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CLARITY in numbers

08
in numbers
Nationwide occupies a unique space in UK
retail financial services – possessing the size,
scale and reach of the banks combined with
the traditional values of a building society –
open, honest, fair and offering excellent long
term value. For this reason, over 14 million
customers trust us with their money.

Our business model will continue to rely mainly
on raising retail savings in order to fund
mortgages. We will maintain our inherently low
risk appetite, will only make as much profit as
is necessary to support our business and will
give value back to our customers through
consistently excellent pricing and service.
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IFRS Underlying Results

These results have been prepared in line with International Financial Reporting Standards accounting policies (‘IFRS’). Where

appropriate, certain aspects of the results are presented to reflect management’s view of the underlying results, to provide a

clearer representation of the performance of the Group.

Profit before tax shown on a reported basis and an underlying basis are set out on page 9. Reported profit before tax of £686.1

million has been adjusted for movements in the value of derivatives and hedge accounting of £30.7 million, policyholder tax of

£14.8 million, and items relating to the Portman merger and disposal of subsidiaries totalling £49.5 million, to derive an

underlying profit before tax of £781.1 million. 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
UK GAAP IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS

Pro-forma Underlying Underlying Underlying

Profit before tax £m 426.8 467.7 539.4 668.6 781.1

Total income net of claims on insurance contracts £m 1,349.7 1,518.4 1,635.7 1,923.2 2,212.5

Cost income ratio % 64.1 61.9 60.6 56.6 55.7

Total assets £m 101,428.4 112,086.1 120,586.0 137,378.5 179,026.6

Loans and advances to customers £m 80,706.2 92,878.0 101,347.6 115,938.4 142,803.7

Member savings balances £m 65,943.9 72,627.2 80,918.6 86,795.4 113,815.8

Total regulatory capital £m 6,186.4 6,577.2 6,983.6 7,960.7 9,474.4

UNDERLYING PROFIT 
BEFORE TAX UP 

17% 
TO 

£781.1 million

REPORTED PROFIT 
BEFORE TAX UP 

5% 
TO 

£686.1 million

MERGER WITH 
PORTMAN 

completed

UNDERLYING 
COST TO INCOME 
RATIO IMPROVED TO 

55.7% 

AN ESTIMATED

£690 million
OF PRICING BENEFITS
DELIVERED TO OUR
MEMBERS 
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In my first statement to you as
Chairman, I am pleased to report
another successful year for
Nationwide, achieved despite the
exceptionally difficult conditions in
the financial world. We delivered
an estimated further £690 million
of value to our members, by
offering better rates and by
charging lower fees and charges
than our competitors. Our

members have also benefited from being part of an organisation with
one of the strongest balance sheets in UK financial services.

Chairman’s Statement
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The last financial year has been

dominated by the onset of the most

difficult and challenging market

conditions of recent times. A detailed

analysis of the circumstances we have had

to contend with and their impact on the

financial results for the year is included in

the Chief Executive’s Review and the

Business Review, later in this document.

In summary, however, I am pleased to be

able to report that the Group has

delivered an extremely robust

performance, despite the prevailing

market conditions, demonstrating the

fundamental strength of our business

even in turbulent times.

We delivered an underlying profit before

tax of £781 million, up 17% from last 

year. Our reported profit before tax

increased by 5% to £686 million. We

attracted £9.1 billion of net retail deposits

in the year, an estimated 19% share of the

market, which is testament to the

strength of our retail network and our

reputation as a safe haven for investors.

Our lending in the year was focused on

quality rather than volume, and net

residential mortgage lending reduced by

around 40% to £6.7 billion.

We completed two major transactions 

this year, both of which improved our

ability to provide attractive and

competitively priced products and

services to our members. On 28 August

2007, we completed the largest merger in

building society history when we merged

successfully with Portman Building

Society, creating the second largest 

retail mortgage lender and the second

largest retail savings provider in the UK. 

I would like to extend a warm welcome 

to those members who have joined us

from Portman.

On 31 January 2008, we concluded our

agreement with Legal & General, under

which they will supply our protection,

investment and pension products. We

now sell Legal & General products via our

2,000-strong team of advisers and

consultants. This wider range of

competitively priced products includes 

our new Ethical Trust, which invests in

companies whose business conforms to

ethical and environmental guidelines.

Supporting the community

At last year’s AGM, our members

endorsed our decision to donate at 

least 1% of our pre-tax profits to charity,

community and environmental 

activities. We have long supported the

communities from which we have grown,

and since 1993 our employees and

members have raised over £5 million 

for our flagship charity Macmillan 

Cancer Support. We are delighted to

celebrate our 15th year of partnership

with Macmillan.

To mark a decade of recognising the

importance of volunteering, in January 

we extended our Nationwide Awards for

Voluntary Endeavour to encompass the

theme of heritage. The awards will

continue to acknowledge the enormous

“

”

WE DELIVERED 
AN ESTIMATED

FURTHER £690
MILLION OF VALUE
TO OUR MEMBERS,
BY OFFERING
BETTER RATES AND
BY CHARGING
LOWER FEES AND
CHARGES THAN
OUR COMPETITORS

UNDERLYING PROFIT
BEFORE TAX OF
£781 MILLION,
UP 17% FROM 
LAST YEAR. OUR
REPORTED PROFIT
BEFORE TAX
INCREASED BY 
5% TO £686
MILLION
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contribution of Britain’s unsung heroes,

who seldom receive the recognition 

they richly deserve.

We have made huge strides in the

management of our impact on the

environment and we became the first

organisation in the financial services

industry to recycle 100% of our waste

paper. Overall, we have reduced our

carbon footprint by 85% since 2005, 

and in the last year alone we have cut 

our CO2 emissions by 45%.

Involving members

As a mutual organisation, we believe it is

important to have a regular and structured

dialogue with the people at the heart of

our business – our members. Throughout

the year, we have held TalkBack events

around the UK to discuss with our

members issues that affect the running of

your Society. Our Online TalkBacks enabled

us to engage those members who prefer

to do business over the internet.

In addition, our Customer Experience

Tracker, involving an external accredited

research company telephoning around

2,000 members on our behalf every

month, helps pinpoint where we are 

doing well, not so well and what is

important to members.

Members are eligible to vote in the

election of directors and on resolutions

proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

In recent years we have encouraged

members to vote by introducing a Quick

Vote option and by making a substantial

donation to charity based on the total

number of votes cast. Last year we went 

a step further by making it possible for

members to vote online, which almost

15% of voters chose to do, and this 

facility is available again this year.

We have been very conscious of the

concerns that our members may have in

the current market conditions. Members

looking for a safe place for their savings

have been able to rely on Nationwide, 

and we have also continued to provide

mortgages that meet our members’

needs, whether they are existing

borrowers or first time buyers.

Board and employees

The merger with Portman Building

Society involved several changes to the

Board. Bill Tudor John became joint

deputy chairman alongside Robert

Walther, and Sue Ellen and Mark Nicholls

both became non executive directors of

the enlarged Society. Tony Prestedge and

Matthew Wyles, both of whom had been

executive directors of Portman, became

Group Development Director and Non-

Retail Director respectively.

My predecessor as Chairman, Jonathan

Agnew, retired after last year’s Annual

General Meeting. In his five year term as

Chairman, Jonathan Agnew played a

leading role in reinforcing Nationwide’s

position as the country’s pre-eminent

mutual organisation. On behalf of the

Board, I would like to thank him for his

leadership and expertise.

I would also like to acknowledge the

contribution made by our employees. In a

year full of challenges, they have shown

tremendous dedication and commitment

to ensure we met, and in many cases

exceeded, our goals. I would like to thank

and congratulate them all.

Geoffrey Howe
Chairman

21 May 2008



Strong performance in an
unprecedented year

We have delivered a strong
performance in what has been an
exceptional year for the Society
and the financial services industry.
On 28 August 2007 we completed
the biggest ever building society
merger with Portman, creating an
enlarged Society with assets now
exceeding £179 billion. We also

faced, from early August onwards, a challenging operating environment
arising from the unprecedented conditions in the world’s financial
markets. Against this background we have delivered underlying profit
before tax of £781 million, up 17%, and reported pre-tax profit of £686
million, up 5% on the previous financial year.

Chief Executive’s Review
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The increase in profit in part reflects the

growth of the organisation with product

sales up 22% and total assets up 30%

since the previous year end. However,

notwithstanding our greater size, our

increased profits represent a very robust

performance, particularly because they

are stated after charging £102 million to

the Income Statement for the

impairment of certain treasury assets.

Prudent and robust balance sheet

In a period of market uncertainty, we

believe our business model, based on

traditional building society values with a

focus on retail funding and prudent

residential lending, has resulted in us

having one of the strongest and safest

balance sheets of its kind in the UK. Our

total capital has increased 19% from

£8.0 billion to £9.5 billion largely

through a combination of the effect of

the merger and retained earnings of the

enlarged business, and our Basel II

capital ratios are strong with a tier 1 ratio

of 9.7% and total solvency ratio of 12.4%.

Our asset quality is high, with mortgage

arrears of 0.36% being less than a third

of the industry average. Our average loan

to value of new mortgage business was

61% and we continue to decline

approximately three out of every five

personal loan applications. We have a

strong retail franchise with approximately

70% of our balance sheet funding 

derived from retail deposits from

members. Our loan to deposit ratio is

117%, and as a result, we have been well

placed to manage our funding through

the liquidity crisis.

Net lending funded from 
retail deposits

We have adopted a prudent approach to

lending throughout the whole year and

our continuing focus on quality has

resulted in a controlled reduction in the

overall volume of lending. Group net

residential mortgage lending was £6.7

billion, (2007: £11.2 billion) representing a

market share of 7.1%. Commercial net

lending was £2.4 billion, £1.0 billion lower

than the previous year. Due to our

cautious approach our unsecured lending

balances reduced by £0.2 billion.

We continue to be regarded as a ‘safe

haven’ for investors and in response to the

challenging funding environment we have

used our significant retail presence to

increase our share of the savings market.

In total we attracted £9.1 billion of net

retail receipts, an estimated 19% share of

the UK savings market. This exceptional

performance and our prudent approach to

lending has meant that we have been

able to fund all of our net lending in the

year from retail deposits.

“

”

WE COMPLETED
THE BIGGEST

EVER BUILDING
SOCIETY MERGER
WITH PORTMAN,
CREATING AN
ENLARGED SOCIETY
WITH ASSETS NOW
EXCEEDING £179
BILLION

THE INCREASE IN
PROFIT IN PART
REFLECTS THE
GROWTH OF THE
ORGANISATION WITH
PRODUCT SALES UP
22% AND TOTAL
ASSETS UP 30%

OUR TOTAL CAPITAL
HAS INCREASED
19% FROM £8.0
BILLION TO 
£9.5 BILLION
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Continuing to fund successfully in
wholesale markets

We have operated throughout the latter

part of this financial year in extremely

difficult wholesale credit market

conditions. These conditions began in

August 2007, with concerns relating to

the U.S. sub-prime mortgage market

rapidly escalating to a wider liquidity

crisis. While some institutions have 

been affected by losses from direct sub-

prime exposure, all have found it more

difficult to obtain funding in the 

wholesale markets.

Nationwide’s business model has served

us well throughout this difficult period.

Our strong retail savings franchise 

reduces our reliance on wholesale

markets. The quality of our balance

sheet, our reputation for prudent

management of our business, and our

range of attractive products have all

contributed to a significant increase in

retail and wholesale inflows in this

financial year. 

To maintain a diverse and flexible range 

of funding options, alongside our retail

franchise we manage a wide range of

wholesale banking and other institutional

relationships, both in the UK and

overseas. Although liquidity in the money

markets has tightened considerably, with

the majority of banks willing to lend

wholesale money only for shorter periods

and at more expensive rates, our pro-

active funding strategy and broad

investor base have allowed us to continue

to fund the business successfully

throughout the credit crunch.

Increased holdings of liquidity

In light of these challenging conditions,

we implemented a strategy to increase

our liquidity, and increased our liquidity

portfolio to £27.3 billion (2007: £14.0

billion) and the prudential liquidity ratio

increased from 10.4% at the start of the

year to 15.7% at 4 April 2008. As part of

this increase we have focused on

increasing our holdings of extremely high

grade, government backed investments

providing the Group with the greatest

security against unforeseen disruption in

market conditions. We have successfully

pursued this strategy, without having to

resort to uneconomic funding options.

Other than an extension of our sale and

repurchase (repo) activity, we have not

resorted to methods of funding outside

our usual channels.

On 21 April 2008 the Bank of England

announced a Special Liquidity Scheme

which it hopes will ease liquidity

constraints in the market. In common

with major UK banks, Nationwide has

agreed to participate in the Scheme 

which we expect will provide a cost

effective source of funds relative to

current market conditions.

High quality treasury assets

Nationwide’s liquidity and investment

assets are of a very high quality. We have

no direct exposure to U.S. sub-prime

mortgages with indirect exposure 

through CDOs of only £4.2 million. Over

97% of our total treasury assets are rated

A or better.

We have not been wholly immune to the

problems in the financial markets

however and have incurred impairment

losses on our investments in Structured

Investment Vehicles (SIVs). At the start of

the financial crisis in August 2007, we

held £167.0 million in seven SIVs, all of

which were established by reputable and

financially strong bank sponsors. SIVs

have been particularly badly affected by

the liquidity issues in the market with

funding for them being withdrawn.

During the second half of the year we

restructured our whole investment

holding in five of the SIV investments 

and a 50% holding in one other. As a

consequence of the restructuring,

underlying assets were purchased at a

discounted price of £1,155 million in

exchange for our original investments in

the SIVs, and we have recorded

impairment charges on our total SIV

portfolio during the second half of the

year of £67.1 million, making a full year

charge of £102.2 million. The £1,155

million of assets acquired as part of the

restructuring of our SIV investments have

been assessed against current market

conditions and prices and there are no

assets that are considered to warrant

further impairment. Our net exposure to

ongoing investments in SIVs at 4 April

2008 amounts to only £1.7 million. 

During the year we also refinanced our

asset backed commercial paper conduit.

The conduit held a US$3.1 billion portfolio

of high grade investments which have

now been purchased by the Society. Prior

to the purchase by the Society, the

conduit had been treated as on balance

sheet for accounting purposes, so these

assets have always been fully reflected in

the Group balance sheet.

The cumulative mark-to-market

adjustment on the Treasury portfolios at 4

April 2008, recorded in the Available for

Sale Reserve, amounts to a reduction of

£418.3 million net of tax, representing

approximately 1.6% on a total portfolio of

£25.5 billion. Given the underlying quality

of the assets that make up this portfolio,

the adjustment in the price of these

assets has been due to widening credit

spreads largely driven by liquidity issues

in the wholesale markets rather than

material changes in underlying

performance. These assets are not

impaired and we currently expect to

obtain full value for them on maturity.

Focus on key strengths

Nationwide is committed to remaining

mutual and our aim is to have the size,

scale and reach of the retail banks

combined with traditional building society

values of transparency and long term

good value. Our prime focus is on the

delivery of real value to our membership

and we have been reshaping our business

in order to focus on our key strengths.

Our merger with Portman is progressing

well. The majority of the first phase of

integration activity has been completed

and we are already seeing the financial

benefits. As planned, further integration

work will continue for the next 12 to 18

months and we are on track to deliver

further synergies in the next financial

year. From 2009/10, we expect the

merger to deliver total synergies of

approximately £90 million per year. 
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The benefits of scale from the merger will

provide real opportunities to enhance our

growth in core markets. We are now the

second largest mortgage lender and the

second largest retail savings provider in

the U.K.

In Consumer Finance we opened 516,000

new current accounts, an estimated

market share of 8% and increased our

current account base to just over 4.4

million. We achieved a 4% growth in the

number of credit card accounts,

compared to a 3% fall in the market

overall, and received an award for ‘Most

Responsible Credit Card Lending

Practices’ at The Card Awards 2008.

We sold 709,000 new general insurance

covers in the year, an increase of 29%

over the previous year. In January we

completed the sale of our investment 

and protection subsidiaries to Legal &

General and implemented a 

distribution agreement to sell Legal &

General products. This alliance will result

in a more customer-friendly sales 

process, faster service and a wider range

of investment and protection products 

for our members, including a new 

Ethical Trust.

In March this year we announced a £300

million major business transformation

programme. The programme will

modernise our technology with an

integrated, next generation technology

platform, and streamline core processes

whilst supporting business growth. This

investment, once completed in 2012, 

will enable us to reduce costs and 

enhance the value and service we offer 

to our members.

Social responsibility

We have been awarded a Gold Award for

our commitment to Corporate Social

Responsibility by Business in the

Community.

The Nationwide Education website was

launched in September 2007 with child

road safety as its initial theme, and this

interactive website is now used in schools

across the UK. In addition, through our

separate Cats’ Eyes for Kids initiative, we

have distributed more than 12 million road

safety reflectors throughout the UK since

October 2001. As part of our commitment

to financial education, we sponsored The

Teenager’s Guide to Money, written by

Jonathan Self, which was published in

November 2007.

At last year’s AGM, our members

endorsed our decision to donate at least

1% of our pre-tax profits to charity,

community and environmental activities.

We have long supported the communities

from which we have grown, and since

1993 our employees and members have

raised over £5 million for our flagship

charity Macmillan Cancer Support.

To mark a decade of recognising the

importance of volunteering, the Society

has entered into an agreement with the

Heritage Lottery Fund. This will widen the

scope of the Nationwide Awards for

Voluntary Endeavour to encompass the

theme of heritage.

Prepared for future 
challenging conditions

The events over the last year have served

to highlight uncertainties in the global

financial markets. This has necessitated a

reassessment of their operation by the

Tripartite Authorities, in conjunction with

international counterparts. Nationwide

has participated fully in discussions with

the Tripartite Authorities and continues to

work with them to develop measures that

will ensure the future financial stability of

the UK financial services sector.

The UK economy is entering a period of

significantly slower growth over the

course of 2008. Nationwide’s main

markets are affected by these

developments, and we are likely to see

this reflected in lower house prices and

significantly lower lending growth. We 

will continue to adopt a prudent 

approach to lending with a focus on high

quality borrowers. We are particularly

keen to support existing members and

have introduced products to support first

time buyers. 

Whilst the outlook for the UK housing 

and mortgage markets is subdued, we

remain positive about the household

savings market. As the equity and housing

markets have weakened, consumers have

turned to retail deposits as a safe home

for their wealth. Until current market

conditions normalise, we will continue to

manage the business with the aim of

funding our retail asset growth from retail

savings balance growth. 

On 24 April 2008, the results of the

preliminary hearing into bank charges

was announced. The judge ruled that 

the fees and charges for unauthorised

overdrafts were subject to the fairness 

test contained in the Unfair Terms in

Consumer Contracts Regulations 1999.

The judgement did not deal with the

question of whether the amounts 

charged are fair. The judgement may be

appealed. We continue to believe that 

our charges are fair and transparent.

Ultimately, we are committed to finding 

a resolution to the bank charges debate

which should bring clarity to both

consumers and the industry.

It remains difficult to predict how long 

the current market conditions will last.

However our business model, financial

strength and diverse range of funding

options provide a strong platform,

allowing us to continue to manage the

business successfully for the benefit of our

members during these difficult times.

Graham Beale
Chief Executive

21 May 2008
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Income Statement Overview

Profit before tax on a reported basis and underlying basis are set out
below. Certain aspects of results are presented to reflect management’s
view of underlying results, to provide a clearer representation of the
performance of the Group.

Underlying profit before tax equates to reported profit before tax
adjusted for the add back of movements in the value of derivatives and
hedge accounting, policyholder tax, items related to the Portman
merger and the net impact of disposal of our investment and protection
subsidiaries to Legal & General.

Year to 4 April 2008 As reported Fair value Merger and Underlying
and other disposal

adjustments
£m £m £m £m

Net interest income 1,796.3 - - 1,796.3
Other income net of claims on insurance contracts 410.9 14.8 (9.5) 416.2
Fair value adjustments from derivatives and hedge accounting (30.7) 30.7 - -

Total income net of claims on insurance contracts 2,176.5 45.5 (9.5) 2,212.5
Administrative expenses 1,167.8 - 59.0 1,108.8
Depreciation and amortisation 124.3 - - 124.3
Impairment losses on loans and advances to customers 105.9 - - 105.9
Provisions for liabilities and charges (9.8) - - (9.8)
Impairment losses on investment securities 102.2 - - 102.2

Profit before tax 686.1 45.5 49.5 781.1

Year to 4 April 2007 As reported Fair value Merger and Underlying

and other disposal

adjustments

£m £m £m £m

Net interest income 1,479.3 - - 1,479.3

Other income net of claims on insurance contracts 445.9 (2.0) - 443.9

Fair value adjustments from derivatives and hedge accounting 0.9 (0.9) - -

Total income net of claims on insurance contracts 1,926.1 (2.9) - 1,923.2

Administrative expenses 984.5 - 14.1 970.4

Depreciation and amortisation 124.4 - 5.4 119.0

Impairment losses on loans and advances to customers 133.6 - - 133.6

Provisions for liabilities and charges 36.5 - - 36.5

Impairment gains on investment securities (4.9) - - (4.9)

Profit before tax 652.0 (2.9) 19.5 668.6

Fair value and other adjustments include movements in the fair value of derivatives and hedge accounting of £30.7 million (2007: gain

of £0.9 million) and policyholder tax of £14.8 million (2007: gain of £2.0 million).
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Profit

A Summary Income Statement on an underlying basis is as follows:

2008 2007 Growth

Underlying Underlying

£m £m %

Net interest income 1,796.3 1,479.3 21.4

Other income 416.2 443.9 (6.2)

Total income 2,212.5 1,923.2 15.0

Expenses 1,233.1 1,089.4 13.2

Impairment and other provisions 198.3 165.2 20.0

Underlying profit before tax 781.1 668.6 16.8

2008 2007

Underlying Underlying

£m £m

Net interest income 1,796.3 1,479.3

Weighted average total assets 160,265.0 129,826.0

% %

Net interest margin excluding Libor / Bank base rate differential 1.02 1.08

Libor / Bank base rate 0.12 0.06

Impact of holding additional liquidity (0.02) -

Net interest margin 1.12 1.14

Underlying profit for the year was £781.1

million, up 16.8% on the previous

financial year.

Total income increased by £289.3

million, partially as a result of the

interest rate environment described

below, and also in part due to the

merger with Portman. Operating

expenses increased by £143.7 million

reflecting increased investment spend in

the business, together with costs arising

from the enlarged operations following

the merger. An impairment loss of

£102.2 million has been charged to the

Income Statement in the year relating to

SIV investments. This has been partly

offset by a reduction in the level of

impairment losses on loans and

advances, and a small reduction in 

other provisions.

On a reported basis, profit before tax

was £686.1 million, up 5.2% on the

previous year. The reported profit

includes £59.0 million of merger and

similar costs, of which £52.3 million are

merger related, including £28.1 million

of redundancy provision. The remainder of

these costs relate to the set up costs of

the new distribution agreement with

Legal & General (L&G) and profit on

disposal of £9.5 million relates to the

disposal of the Society’s protection and

investment subsidiaries to L&G as part of

the same transaction. Profit before tax

also includes movements in the fair value

of derivatives and hedge accounting of

£30.7 million and policyholder tax of

£14.8 million (as explained on page 12).

Performance by Income
Statement Category

Net interest income 

Net interest income increased by 21.4% to

£1,796.3 million in 2008 compared with

2007. Although the money markets have

been impacted by the lack of liquidity, the

resulting interest rate environment has

been beneficial to the Society. This,

coupled with proactive margin

management has meant that the Group

achieved a net interest margin broadly in

line with the previous year at 1.12%. 

“NET INTEREST 
INCOME

INCREASED BY
21.4% TO £1,796.3
MILLION

APPROXIMATELY 
£78 MILLION OF
COST SAVINGS PER
ANNUM PLANNED
FROM THE PORTMAN
MERGER

INCREASE OF 
£26 MILLION
IN SPEND ON
INVESTMENT
PROJECTS TO
IMPROVE
INFRASTRUCTURE”
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The underlying margin has fallen from

that achieved last year for two key

reasons. The first is that competitively

priced retail mortgage business written in

2006/07 has had a full year effect upon

the group net interest margin this year.

This competitive pricing continued into

the first half of this year. Savings products

have also contributed to the reduction in

net interest margin, due largely to the

competitively priced fixed rate bond

products available during the second 

half of the year as competition for retail

funds increased.

As a consequence of our strong retail

savings franchise, which is predominantly

base rate related, the Society’s Libor

denominated net asset exposure has

averaged approximately £33 billion during

the year to 4 April 2008. The interest rate

environment has led to Libor rates

received being on average 51 basis points

higher than bank base rate. This

differential is 26 basis points greater than

the same period last year, contributing

around 12 basis points to the Group’s 

net interest margin.

With a strong retail franchise we have

not been as severely affected by the

issues in the money market as some of

our competitors. Impacts on the net

interest margin of our Treasury business

have been limited as we have been able

to fund the growth in loans and

mortgages from our retail book avoiding

the need to enter into uneconomic long-

term wholesale funding arrangements.

We have chosen to hold a higher level of

Prudential Liquidity, primarily assets

which qualify for 8 day liquidity, which

has been broadly funded by higher levels

of wholesale funding. This has increased

our weighted average total assets held

over the course of the year and

consequently reduced our margin by

circa two basis points.

We anticipate that our underlying margin

(excluding the impact of Libor / base rate

differential) will remain broadly stable in

2008/09.

Other income

Other income represents income earned

from the sale and manufacture of

insurance and investment products

together with administration and

transaction fees not included within

interest margin. Other income also

includes dividends on equities held within

the Treasury investment portfolio.

Other income for the year on an

underlying basis was £416.2 million, 

£27.7 million lower than the last 

financial year. There were two main

drivers of this reduction; the first is that

other income last year included £14.5

million of rental income and profit on

disposal relating to at.home nationwide,

the Society’s residential letting subsidiary,

which sold its business and property

portfolio in July 2006. In addition, the

Society’s profit share from home

insurance has fallen sharply this year 

as a direct result of the severe storms 

and widespread floods experienced

during 2007.

Total underlying expenses amounted to

£1,233.1 million, representing an increase

of 13.2% over the year ended 4 April

2007. This increase compares with a rise

in underlying total income of 15.0%,

which has led to a fall in our underlying

cost to income ratio to 55.7% (2007:

56.6%). The Portman merger has had a

significant impact on underlying costs,

reflecting the increased size of the

business since the merger was completed

in August 2007. We estimate the impact

of Portman related costs in 2007/08

expenses to be around £70 million,

accounting for almost half of the year on

year increase in the Group’s cost base.

Approximately £78 million of cost savings

per annum are planned as part of the

overall synergies from the Portman

transaction, which are estimated to

amount to £90 million per annum by the

end of 2009/10.

There has also been a significant increase

of £26 million in spend on investment

projects and change programmes as the

new executive management team drive to

improve the Society’s infrastructure. This

increased investment will ensure that we

continue to improve the overall quality of

our customer experience and increase our

penetration in our core personal financial

services markets.

The Society continues to focus on its cost

base and the investments to improve our

infrastructure will lead to efficiency

savings in future years. We envisage our

Group cost to income ratio will not change

significantly next year, but will then start

to show an improvement as the results of

this investment start to feed through.

2008 2007 Growth

Underlying Underlying

£m £m %

Employee costs:

• Wages and salaries 430.7 385.8 11.6

• Social security costs 34.4 29.1 18.2

• Pension costs 100.3 94.2 6.5

565.4 509.1 11.0

Other administrative expenses 543.4 461.3 17.8

Depreciation and amortisation 124.3 119.0 4.5

1,233.1 1,089.4 13.2

Expenses 
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The credit during the year for customer

redress relates to the release of small

provisions across a number of areas

including endowment claims and

mortgage exit administration fees.

The impairment charge of £102.2 million

on treasury investments relates to

Structured Investment Vehicles (SIVs).

Nationwide’s exposure to SIVs and the

position in respect of these vehicles are

covered in more detail in the section on

Treasury portfolios on pages 15 and 16.

On 24 April 2008, the results of the

preliminary hearing into bank charges

were announced. Whilst the judge ruled

that the charges are subject to a test of

fairness, the judgement may be subject to

appeal and does not deal with the question

of whether the amounts charged are fair.

We continue to believe that our charges

are fair and transparent, and given the

uncertainty as to the final outcome of the

case, we do not currently hold a provision

in respect of this issue.

Derivatives and hedge accounting

All derivatives entered into by Nationwide

are recorded on the balance sheet at fair

value with any fair value movements being

taken to the income statement. Derivatives

are only used to limit the extent to which

the Group will be affected by changes in

interest rates, exchange rates or other

market indices. Derivatives are therefore

used exclusively to hedge risk exposures

and are not used for speculative purposes.

The charge of £30.7 million (2007: £0.9

million pre-tax gain) relating to fair value

adjustments on derivatives and hedge

accounting, represents the net fair value

adjustment on derivative instruments that

are matching risk exposures on an

economic basis. Some income statement

volatility arises on these items due to

accounting ineffectiveness of designated

hedges, or because hedge accounting has

not been adopted or is not achievable on

certain items. The charge is primarily due

to timing differences in cashflows and

interest rate reset dates between the

derivative instruments and the hedged

assets and liabilities. The impact can be

volatile, especially so in current market

conditions, but will trend to zero over time

and has been excluded in reporting the

Group’s underlying performance.

Policyholder Tax

Prior to the disposal of Nationwide Life

and as a consequence of the requirement

to consolidate the Group’s life business on

a line by line basis, the income statement

includes amounts attributable to

policyholders which affect profit before

tax, the most significant of which is

policyholder tax. Tax on policyholder

investment returns is included in the

Group’s tax charge rather than being offset

against the related income. In order to

provide a clearer representation of the

performance of the Group, these items have

been removed from underlying results.

Taxation

The statutory reported tax charge for the

year is £190.8 million (2007: £188.4

million). This represents an effective tax

rate of 27.8% (2007: 28.9%), which is

lower than the statutory rate in the UK of

30%. The lower rate arises principally as a

result of tax free profits on the sale of

Nationwide Life Limited and Nationwide

Unit Trust Managers Limited (NUTM), and

because of the impact of policyholder tax in

Nationwide Life up to the date of disposal

as referred to above.

Balance Sheet
Loans and advances to customers

Our loans and advances to customers

continues to have a low risk profile. The mix

of lending has remained broadly consistent

over the year although, following the

merger with Portman, moved slightly away

from consumer finance and commercial

lending towards residential mortgages.

2008 2007 Growth

£m £m %

Secured lending (16.0) 0.5 n/a

Unsecured lending 121.9 133.1 (8.4)

105.9 133.6 (20.7)

Impairment losses on loans and advances 

2008 2007 Growth

£m £m %

Customer redress (9.8) 36.5 n/a

Treasury investments 102.2 (4.9) n/a

Impairment losses on investment securities and other provisions

Impairment losses on loans and advances of £105.9 million were £27.7 million lower than the previous year and reflect the quality of

both secured and unsecured lending. The level of provision cover (provision as percentage of assets) for residential mortgages has

remained consistent over the year. The charge for unsecured lending has reduced by 8.4% compared to 2007, reflecting our cautious

approach with continued emphasis on credit quality.
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Retail residential mortgages of £105.5

billion (2007: £88.7 billion) relate to

Nationwide branded advances primarily

made through our branch network and

intermediary channels. Non-Retail

residential mortgages totalling £14.1 billion

(2007: £6.5 billion) are advances made

through our Specialist Lending brands,

UCB Home Loans Corporation Limited

(UCB) and The Mortgage Works (UK) plc

(TMW), who primarily operate in the Buy

to Let and self-certification markets. Within

Non-Retail residential mortgages is a very

small exposure to the adverse market with

just 0.05% (2007: 0.00%) of all advances

relating to sub prime lending.

Asset quality of our residential mortgage

portfolios remains excellent and we have

continued to focus on affordability and

loan to value (LTV) ratios. The total

number of residential mortgages 3 or

more months in arrears as a proportion of

the total book remains very low at 0.36%

(2007: 0.31%) and for prime residential

mortgages the proportion is 0.30% (2007:

0.28%). The figures for 2007 have been

restated, to include as arrears those cases

where customers are making an agreed

payment for less than the contractual

amount. The year on year increase in the

2008 measures arises from the merger

with Portman where arrears levels were

slightly higher, although well within our

risk appetite. Overall, the number of cases

3 or more months in arrears as a

proportion of total cases remains excellent,

amounting to less than one third of the

industry average of 1.21% (2007: 1.01%).

Our positive position compared to the

industry is also evidenced in the 

Specialist Lending portfolios where the

number of cases 3 or more months in

arrears as a proportion of total cases is

1.11% (2007: 0.91%).

Over the year, the average LTV of

residential mortgages has been 61%

(2007: 58%) and the average indexed 

LTV of residential mortgages at the year

end is 43% (April 2007: 39%).

The number of residential properties 

taken into possession during the year 

was 400 (2007: 347). This represents 

only 1.41% (2007: 1.43%) of the total

number of repossessions recorded during

the year by the CML against our share of

stock of 12.79%.

Our commercial lending portfolio of £20.3

billion (2007: £17.9 billion) comprises 

£12.9 billion (2007: £11.3 billion) secured

on commercial property (“Property

Finance”), £6.3 billion (2007: £5.6 billion)

advanced to Registered Social Landlords

and £1.1 billion (2007: £1.0 billion)

advanced under the Private Finance

Initiative. We have never suffered losses

on our lending to Registered Social

Landlords or on Private Finance Initiatives

and there are currently no arrears of 

three months or more on these portfolios.

Our Property Finance portfolio is well

diversified by industry type and by

borrower and we have no significant

exposure to development finance.

Property Finance lending is on investment

property supported by strong tenant

cashflows, and is therefore not

immediately exposed to falls in capital

value. The proportion of Property Finance

cases three months or more in arrears as

at 4 April was 0.66%, and equates to 66

cases (2007: 0.77%, 84 cases).

In consumer finance, the balance of

accounts more than 30 days in arrears

has reduced and our performance

compared to the industry has significantly

improved. For Personal Loans and Credit

Cards, the table below shows our arrears

levels are significantly lower than averages

for the industry (FLA and APACS):

Lending remains predominantly concentrated on high quality secured products with residential mortgages accounting for 83.6%

(2007: 81.9%) of our total loans and advances to customers, commercial lending 14.2% (2007: 15.4%), consumer finance 2.0% (2007:

2.7%) and the remaining 0.2% relating to other lending.

Loans and advances to customers 2008 2007

£bn % £bn %

Retail – Prime residential mortgages 105.5 73.7 88.7 76.3

Non-Retail – Specialist residential mortgages 14.1 9.9 6.5 5.6

Total residential mortgages 119.6 83.6 95.2 81.9

Commercial lending 20.3 14.2 17.9 15.4

Consumer finance 2.8 2.0 3.1 2.7

Other lending 0.3 0.2 - -

Gross balances 143.0 100.0 116.2 100.0

Less: Impairment provisions and fair value adjustment (0.2) - (0.3) -

Total 142.8 115.9

Percentage of accounts more than 30 days in arrears 2007/08 2007/08 2006/07 2006/07

NBS Industry NBS Industry

% % % %

Personal Loans 5.88 11.20 6.12 8.10

Credit Card 4.50 7.99 5.81 8.19
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We are developing a securitisation

capability and expect to use this to

enhance our wholesale funding options

once this market reopens.

While other longer term funding options

have been available to us, we consider

these to be uneconomic at this point in

time. The strength of our retail savings

franchise and continued availability of

wholesale funding have allowed us to

actively manage the balance between

duration and cost of funding.

Funding

The Society has well diversified sources 

of funding. Almost 70% of funding has

been provided by retail savings, and we

attracted a total of £9.1 billion of net 

retail deposits in the year, an estimated

19% market share. This excellent

performance was driven by our

competitive loyalty and fixed rate bond

pricing, combined with our commitment

to better value savings across the range of

products. The net retail deposits provided

more than the funding required for our

total residential, commercial and

consumer finance net lending in the year,

which totalled £8.9 billion.

Wholesale funding increased to £50.1

billion at 4 April 2008 (4 April 2007:

£35.6 billion), in part due to the merger

with Portman. The wholesale funding

ratio increased to 31.0% (4 April 2007:

28.4%), reflecting additional funding

which has been primarily utilised to

strengthen the quality and size of our

liquidity portfolio.

In recent years Nationwide had sought to

extend the diversity of its wholesale

funding sources. This policy has increased

our ability to access funding in the recent

difficult market conditions.

Nationwide has continued to access

wholesale funding throughout the year. 

In July we issued our first US dollar covered

bond, securing $2 billion of funding, with 

a €1 billion issue following in September.

Although the long term public issuance

markets have been effectively closed for 

the second half of the year, we have

continued to demonstrate our ability to

raise funds through privately placed 

covered bond issues, issuing approximately

£0.8 billion between 30 September 2007

and the financial year end.

We have used our repo agreement activity

to provide additional wholesale funding.

Assets eligible for repurchase within our

Treasury Portfolio have been used to

provide £9.5 billion of funding as at 4 April

2008. Certificates of Deposit (CD) also

contribute to our funding, with

outstandings of £8.8 billion at the year 

end compared with £6.4 billion last year.

US Commercial Paper (CP) issuance

remains strong, and as at 4 April 2008 US

CP balances amounted to $6.6 billion 

(4 April 2007: $5.6 billion excluding the 

CP issuance of the conduit).

The following table analyses the change in wholesale funding:

Wholesale funding portfolio mix 2008 2007

% %

Repo Agreements 17.8 0.5

Deposits 13.2 15.7

CDs 17.6 17.5

CP 8.2 12.4

Covered Bonds 18.7 16.2

MTNs 22.4 28.7

Other non-retail (inc Nationwide Life) 2.1 9.0

Total 100.0 100.0

ALMOST 70%
OF FUNDING

HAS BEEN PROVIDED
BY RETAIL SAVINGS

IN JULY, WE ISSUED
OUR FIRST US
DOLLAR COVERED
BOND SECURING 
$2 BILLION OF
FUNDING

NET RETAIL
DEPOSITS 
EXCEEDED OUR 
NET LENDING IN 
THE YEAR OF 
£8.9 BILLION”

“
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Treasury Portfolios

Group treasury assets at 4 April 2008

were £31.6 billion (4 April 2007: £17.5

billion). The assets are held in two

portfolios – the liquidity portfolio and the

investment portfolio. At 4 April 2008, 

the liquidity portfolio totalled £27.3 billion

(4 April 2007: £14.0 billion) and the

investment portfolio totalled £4.3 billion

(4 April 2007: £3.5 billion).

There is a rigorous credit process in place,

which assesses the risks of all assets

before they are acquired and which

continues throughout the period that they

are held in either of the portfolios. Credit

approval is undertaken by an independent

Risk Management Division.

Nationwide has no exposure to emerging

markets and only minimal exposure to

non investment grade debt in the

portfolios. Nationwide has no exposure to

hedge funds.

Treasury assets, in the majority of cases,

are valued using market prices or prices

obtained from counterparties. In cases

where market prices are not available,

discounted cash flow valuation models 

are used.

Out of our total £31.6 billion of treasury

assets held in the liquidity and 

investment portfolios, £25.5 billion are

held as ‘available for sale’ (AFS) and

under IFRS they are marked-to-market

through reserves. These fair value

movements have no effect on the 

Group’s profit for the year or its capital

position. As at 4 April 2008 the balance

on the AFS reserve was £418.3 million

negative, net of tax. Given the

underlying quality of the assets that

make up this portfolio, the adjustment

in the price of these assets has been due

to widening credit spreads largely driven

by liquidity issues in the wholesale

markets rather than widespread

material changes in underlying

performance. These assets are not

impaired and we currently expect to

obtain full value for them on maturity.

Treasury Liquidity Portfolio

The liquidity portfolio totalled £27.3 billion

as at 4 April 2008 (4 April 2007: 14.0

billion). Of this balance, £26.5 billion

qualified as prudential liquidity (4 April

2007: £12.9 billion) representing a

prudential liquidity ratio of 15.7% (4 April

2007: 10.4%). All of our prudential

liquidity is rated A or better with 78%

rated AA or above. We continue to

manage the liquidity portfolio

conservatively, with over 20% of the

portfolio held in sovereign exposure. 

The core 8 day liquidity portfolio,

comprising the most liquid assets, is

consistently managed at a level well in

excess of the building society regulatory

minimum of 3.5% of the balance sheet. 

As at 4 April 2008, the core 8 day

liquidity portfolio had increased to 

£16.2 billion representing a ratio of 

9.9%. The proportion of 8-day qualifying

assets has increased to 59.6% of the

prudential liquidity portfolio from 41.4%

at last year end.

Analysis of Liquidity Portfolio:

Liquidity Portfolio April AAA AA A UK US Europe Other April

2008 2007

£bn % % % % % % % £bn

Loans to financial institutions 2.3 - 76 24 19 4 75 2 0.8

Certificates of deposit and commercial paper 7.3 - 64 36 52 - 47 1 4.6

Bank of England reserve account 2.9 100 - - 100 - - - 0.2

Residential mortgage backed securities (RMBS) 3.5 100 - - 44 - 49 7 2.1

Floating rate notes 6.0 10 46 44 14 4 61 21 4.2

Covered bonds 0.8 93 7 - - 3 91 6 0.6

Gilts 3.3 100 - - 100 - - - -

Qualifying prudential liquidity assets 26.1 43 35 22 49 1 43 7 12.5

Cash and balances with the Bank of England 0.4 100 - - 100 - - - 0.4

Prudential liquidity 26.5 12.9

Clearing accounts 0.2 0.2

Other (including items in transit) 0.6 0.9

Total liquidity portfolio 27.3 14.0

Long Term Short Term Subordinated Outlook
Standard and Poors A+ A-1 A Stable

Moody’s Aa2 P-1 Aa3 Stable

Fitch AA- F1+ A+ Stable

Our short and long term credit ratings from the major rating agencies are as follows:
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(i) Our total investment holdings in RMBS are £285.0 million. Our total US exposure within this portfolio is £169.2 million, made up of £97.2 million Alt

A and £72.0 million Prime First Lien mortgages, all rated AAA. The combined average FICO score is 710 and the average LTV is 77.7%. The

exposure below AAA is to strong well established UK and European issuers.

(ii) CLOs comprise £484.8 million of AAA rated assets. Although corporate default rates are beginning to rise, the underlying portfolios of leveraged

loans continue to perform in line with expectations.

(iii) The CDO exposure is made up of six CDOs, four of which are AAA representing 98% of the exposure. Two CDOs are backed by AAA rated US 

prime RMBS (74%), three CDOs of US ABS were purchased as part of SIV restructures (7%) and we own one US Trust Preferred CDO (19%). 

Total exposure to US sub-prime lending is only £4.2 million notional. There is no direct exposure to commercial real estate CDOs and no exposure 

to synthetic CDOs.

(iv) The credit card portfolio is all AAA rated and is performing in line with expectations.

(v) The CMBS portfolio is exposed to established commercial real estate markets with the bulk of our holdings in the UK and Germany. Underlying

collateral consists of office, retail, industrial and warehouse exposures with experienced sponsors supporting the underlying loans; we hold limited

exposure to leisure markets. Despite capital values falling in the UK there has been no rating revisions across the portfolio.

(vi) The US student loan portfolio comprises 60% FFELP (Federal Family Education Loan Programme) originated loans which are 98% guaranteed by

the US Government, and 40% Alternative Student Loans.

(vii) The £218.5 million corporate bond portfolio includes £182.5 million of assets where the credit risk has been hedged by entering into credit default

swaps (CDS) with an AA rated European financial institution.

(viii) Of the £577.4 million held from financial institutions, £374.3 million is classified as subordinated debt, of which approximately 85% is from

European issuers. The increase in the size of this portfolio in the year is attributable to assets received on exchange of SIV capital notes.

(ix) At the start of the credit crunch in August 2007, we held investments of £167.0 million in seven structured investment vehicles (SIVs). We have

since participated in five restructures and one partial restructure of these SIV investments. As a consequence of the restructuring, nominal £1,199

million of assets were purchased at a discounted market value of £1,155 million, over 95% of which are rated AA or above. In addition, £43.5 million

of restructured capital notes were exchanged at a discounted market value of £11.2 million. The net fair value of the remaining SIV capital notes,

excluding the £11.2 million restructured notes, totalled £1.7 million at 4 April 2008. During the year we have recognised an impairment loss of

£102.2 million on the initial SIV investments. We remain confident that the quality of the underlying assets held, or received as a result of the

exchanges, is sound and that the risk of further significant impairment losses relating to these assets remains low.

(x) The other corporate bonds of £445 million include £379 million of assets repaid in full on maturity shortly after the year end. All the remaining

exposures are whole business securitisations which all benefit from AAA rated monoline insurance wraps.

(xi) Included within other investments category are £132.5 million of unrated coupon strips, underpinned by AA rated financial institutions, £43.2

million of AAA rated mixed equipment leases, £47.0 million of AAA rated other European consumer finance loans, £26.7 million of AAA rated auto

finance and £31.2 million structured notes issued by funding vehicles of AA rated insurance companies.

Treasury Investment Portfolio

At 4 April 2008, the investment portfolio totalled £4.3 billion (4 April 2007: £3.5 billion). Approximately 88% of the investment

portfolio was rated AA or better. The composition of the portfolio has not changed significantly during the year, apart from the impact

of the SIV capital note restructuring as described below.

Analysis of Investment Portfolio:

Investment Portfolio April AAA AA A Other UK US Europe Other April

2008 2007

£bn % % % % % % % % £bn

(i) Retail mortgage backed securities (RMBS) 0.3 59 14 27 - 40 59 1 - 0.4

(ii) Collateralised loan obligations (CLO) 0.5 100 - - - 26 67 7 - 0.4

(iii) Collateralised debt obligations (CDO) 0.1 98 - 2 - - 100 - - -

(iv) Credit card backed securities 0.3 100 - - - 49 51 - - 0.2

(v) Commercial mortgage backed securities 0.9 81 16 3 - 55 11 34 - 0.6

(vi) US student loan 0.7 99 1 - - - 100 - - 0.7

(vii) Corporate bond portfolio 0.2 17 83 - - 37 12 51 - 0.4

(viii) Financial institutions including 

subordinated debt 0.6 - 59 37 4 24 33 37 6 0.1

(ix) SIVs - - - - - - - - - 0.2

(x) Other corporate bonds 0.4 100 - - - 100 - - - 0.4

(xi) Other investments 0.3 42 13 3 42 20 49 28 3 0.1

Total 4.3 70 18 8 4 37 44 18 1 3.5
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Capital Structure

Total capital has increased 19% from 

£8.0 billion to £9.5 billion arising from

the following:

• An increase in retained earnings; and

• Strategic changes in the Nationwide

Group, most notably the merger with

Portman and disposal of Nationwide

investment group.

Capital is held by the Group to protect its

depositors, to cover its inherent risks, to

provide a cushion for unexpected losses,

and to support the development of the

business. In assessing the adequacy of its

capital, the Group considers its risk

appetite, the material risks to which the

Group is exposed and the appropriate

management strategies required to

manage those risks.

The Group is required to manage its

capital in accordance with the rules issued

by its regulator, the Financial Services

Authority (FSA). Prior to 1 January 2008

the Group followed the requirements of

the Capital Accord (Basel I). Since 1

January 2008 the Group has complied

with the EU Capital Requirements

Directive (Basel II). At 4 April 2008 and

throughout the financial year, the Group

complied with the capital requirements

that were in force. As at 4 April 2008 the

Group calculated its capital requirement

on a Standardised basis.

The Group’s Internal Ratings Based

(IRB) Waiver Application was recently

approved by the FSA. There are a

number of conditions which we are

addressing prior to submitting an

updated Individual Capital Assessment

(ICA) based on the IRB approach later

this year.

The following table shows the make up

of Group capital as at 4 April 2008.

Regulatory capital stood at £9.5 billion

(2007: £8.0 billion) with the Group’s

Basel II total solvency ratio remaining

strong at 12.4% (2007: 11.0% on Basel

I basis). The Basel II Tier 1 solvency

ratio stood at 9.7% (2007: 8.7% on

Basel I basis).

2008 2007

£m £m

Basel II Basel I

Tier 1
General reserve 6,303.4 5,295.8

Permanent interest bearing shares (Note 1) 1,244.9 1,045.4

Pension fund deficit add back (Note 2) 19.0 106.0

Intangible assets (Note 3) (136.9) (106.1)

Deductions from Tier 1 capital (Note 4) (5.9) (20.2)

7,424.5 6,320.9

Tier 2
Revaluation reserve 121.2 128.2

Subordinated debt (Notes 1 and 5) 1,743.2 1,617.0

Collective impairment allowance 191.4 184.0

Deductions from Tier 2 capital (Note 4) (5.9) (20.2)

2,049.9 1,909.0

Deductions (Note 6) - (269.2)

Total capital 9,474.4 7,960.7

Risk weighted assets – Pillar 1 (Note 7)
Retail mortgages 43,835.7 47,582.3

Commercial loans 17,305.9 16,073.6

Treasury 7,891.2 5,190.2

Other 3,604.0 3,624.4

Operational Risk 3,962.5 -

Market Risk 39.0 -

76,638.3 72,470.5

Key capital ratios:
Total capital 9,474.4 7,960.7

Core Tier 1 (%) (Note 8) 8.1 7.3

Tier 1 ratio (%) (Note 8) 9.7 8.7

Total capital (%) (Note 8) 12.4 11.0

Tier 2 to Tier 1 ratio (%) 27.6 30.3

Table notes shown overleaf.
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Pension Fund (Retirement
Benefit Obligations)

The Group operates Final Salary, Career

Average Revalued Earnings (CARE) defined

benefit arrangements and defined

contribution arrangements.

The valuation of the Nationwide Pension

Fund (the Fund) at 4 April 2008 resulted

in a deficit of £32.0 million (2007: £163.0

million) using the methodology set out in

IAS 19. Our total retirement benefit liability

under IAS 19, including other schemes, is

£39.7 million (2007: £172.4 million). We

have been actively managing our

retirement benefit liability and have taken 

a number of steps to contain and reduce

the deficit over time:

• Final Salary arrangements closed to 

new members since December 2001 

and CARE arrangements closed in 

May 2007;

• Employee contributions (Final Salary

arrangements) increased from 5% 

to 7%;

• Special contributions of £200 million

paid in the period 2005/06 – 2007/08;

and

• The Trustees continue to work closely

with their advisors to optimise the

investment strategy for the Fund’s assets.

We will continue to review our options 

to manage the Fund in a responsible 

way. Following the full triennial valuation

of the Fund as at 31 March 2007 a plan

has been developed to clear the deficit 

by 2013.

The Portman final salary scheme was

closed to new entrants in 2001. Additional

contributions of £3.5 million per annum

are being paid to ensure that the scheme

is fully funded.

Performance by 
Business Stream

From the beginning of this financial year,

Nationwide reclassified its business

streams, with all customer facing

activities classed as either Retail or Non-

Retail. This brings the business streams in

line with the organisational structure of

the Group. The Retail business stream

consists of the activities which were

previously classed as the Personal

Financial Services stream, apart from

specialist lending activity, which has now

been moved to the Non-Retail stream. In

addition, Treasury income generation

activities, previously included in the

Commercial business stream have now

been moved to Group. Comparative

numbers have been restated accordingly.

Nationwide now classifies its business

streams as follows:

Retail

• Mortgages and Savings

• Consumer Finance

• Insurance and Investments

• Distribution channels supporting these

three product divisions.

Non-Retail

• Commercial lending 

• Specialist mortgage lending.

Group

• Treasury group operations and income

generation activities

• Capital

• Items classified as being non-

attributable to our core business areas.

The contribution to underlying profit

before tax against underlying

comparatives by each of these business

streams is set out in the table below. 

Notes

(1) Permanent interest bearing shares and subordinated debt include any fair value adjustments arising from micro hedging and adjustments for

unamortised premiums and discounts that are included in the consolidated balance sheet. 

(2) The regulatory capital rules allow the pension fund deficit to be added back to regulatory capital and a deduction taken instead for an estimate of the

additional contributions to be made in the next five years, less associated deferred tax.

(3) Intangible assets do not qualify as capital for regulatory purposes.

(4) Certain deductions from capital are required to be allocated, 50% to Tier 1 and 50% to Tier 2 capital.

(5) On 11 April 2008 the Group, with the consent of the FSA, redeemed early €400 million of Subordinated Floating Rate Notes due 2013. Because of

the impending redemption, the Notes do not qualify as capital at 4 April 2008.

(6) The sale of Nationwide Life Limited during the year allowed the release of the £269.2 million deduction from capital as at 4 April 2007 shown above.

(7) The measurement of risk weighted assets differs significantly under Basel II and so the stated figures for 4 April 2007 are not directly comparable

with those for 4 April 2008. (For example, under Basel II retail mortgages that are considered to be secured and not past due are weighted at 35%;

under Basel I the same mortgage assets were weighted at 50%).

(8) Calculated as relevant capital divided by Risk Weighted Assets. Core Tier 1 relates to Tier 1 capital excluding Permanent Interest Bearing shares.

2008 2007 Growth

Underlying Underlying

£m £m %

Retail 263.6 276.6 (4.7)

Non-Retail 268.7 231.9 15.9

Group 248.8 160.1 55.4

Total contribution before tax 781.1 668.6 16.8
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Retail Business Stream

The overall contribution from Retail fell by

4.7% to £263.6 million in the year.

Total income, which includes the impact

of the merger with Portman, grew by

3.7%. This moderate growth in part

reflects the pressure on the underlying

margin arising from the very competitive

mortgage market last year, together with

the higher rates seen in the retail savings

market over the second half of the year. It

also reflects a fall in insurance profit share

arising from the severe storms and

widespread floods experienced in 2007.

Expenses have increased by 13.8%,

reflecting the increased investment in the

business and the additional costs of

operating a larger retail network post

merger. Impairment and other provisions

fell by £68.2 million reflecting a lower

charge for unsecured lending and the

release of other provisions for

endowments and mortgage exit

administration fees.

Mortgages and Savings

Residential mortgages

The volume of lending within the UK

mortgage market was broadly flat over

the last financial year, although this masks

a sharp slowdown in the second half of

the year due to the ongoing impact of the

credit crunch and weakening in housing

market sentiment. The volume of house

purchase transactions has continued to

slow, resulting in house purchase lending

down 12% year on year.

Poor affordability has reduced the

numbers of first-time buyers in the

market. This, combined with a significant

weakening in equity withdrawal by home

movers and remortgages, has led to

weaker levels of net lending. Total net

lending was down 15% year on year and

the second half of this year was 32%

weaker than the comparable period.

In the current market environment, the

lack of liquidity has put pressure on

funding. This has led many lenders to

reposition their products and reassess

their exposure to risk. Against this

environment of reduced supply and

increased costs of borrowing, many

borrowers have been seeking to switch

products, to minimise “payment shock”

and secure ongoing finance. This has

resulted in reduced levels of net lending

but continued high levels of remortgaging

as a proportion of the overall market.

We had a long-standing prudent approach

to lending prior to the credit crunch and

this policy has continued throughout the

year. Our focus is on quality and not

volume and as a result our prime retail

gross mortgage lending reduced to £23.1

billion (2007: £26.9 billion). All of our net

lending has been funded by retail deposits

in the year. Net lending reduced to £4.9

billion (2007: £10.6 billion) representing a

market share of 5.2%, well below our

natural market share of 9.2%.

We have maintained a low risk appetite to

lending. We closely monitor affordability

and loan to value (LTV) profile and all

lending is subject to credit assessment. In

light of current market conditions we have

recently tightened our credit criteria and

reduced the number of products on offer

within the 90-95% LTV band.

Our asset quality remains high. The

average LTV ratio of new retail residential

lending was 59%, whilst the average LTV

of the residential book was 41%. The

number of prime mortgages 3 or more

months in arrears as a proportion of the

book, at 0.30%, remains very low

2008 2007 Growth

Underlying Underlying

£m £m %

Total income 1,462.3 1,410.2 3.7

Expenses 1,098.3 965.0 13.8

Impairment and other provisions 100.4 168.6 (40.5)

Contribution from Retail 263.6 276.6 (4.7)

“£9.1 BILLION
OF NET RETAIL

DEPOSITS IN THE
YEAR, AN ESTIMATED
MARKET SHARE 
OF 19%

AVERAGE LOAN TO
VALUE RATIO OF THE
RESIDENTIAL BOOK
WAS 41%

WE CONTINUE 
TO OFFER AN
INNOVATIVE 25 
YEAR FIXED RATE
MORTGAGE ”



Business Review
CONTINUED

CLARITY in numbers

20 2008 ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

compared with the Council of Mortgage

Lenders (CML) industry average of 1.21%.

The number of retail residential 

properties taken into possession during

the year was 258, which represents 

less than 1% of the total recorded by 

the CML.

Within our product range, our five year

fixed rate mortgage has proved popular

for many customers looking for stability in

their mortgage payments. We also

continue to offer an innovative 25 year

fixed rate mortgage, with a borrower

option to redeem the mortgage after ten

years with no early redemption penalty.

We actively engage with our customers

before the end of their product’s term.

Existing loyal members have access to 

our full product range and can be

rewarded with a substantial discount

against their product reservation fee. 

As a result, our mortgage retention

performance has remained strong. 

Prime residential mortgage redemptions

were £18.2 billion, representing a market

share of 7.2%, which is below our 9.2%

par share.

Under the current market conditions, we

understand borrowers’ concerns

regarding the availability of affordable

mortgages. Our principal focus at this

time will be our existing members and

home buyers, including first time buyers.

We are committed to offering good value

mortgages, whilst maintaining a prudent

and sustainable approach to lending.

Retail savings

UK retail savings balances increased by

8% in the year to 4 April 2008. The

growth in balances has been supported

by strong employment, a rising base rate

during the first half of the year and

continued competition for retail funds.

Retail savings continue to represent our

primary source of funding and our

performance in this market has been

excellent. We attracted a total of £9.1

billion of net retail deposits in the year, 

an estimated market share of 19%. This

significant inflow was driven by our

competitive loyalty and fixed rate bond

pricing, combined with our commitment

to better value savings across the range

of products.

The Group’s total retail member deposits

as at 4 April 2008 amounted to £113.8

billion (2007: £86.8 billion). Despite the

fiercely competitive savings market, we

achieved a 17.1% share of the overall

increase in UK retail savings balances.

Following the merger, we are now

starting the process of transferring ex-

Portman savings accounts onto

Nationwide systems. Due to the volume

of accounts, the savings migration

process will be delivered in three distinct

phases, the first phase of which was

completed in early May 2008.

Looking ahead, we anticipate that

competition for retail savings will

intensify as banks seek to diversify their

funding sources. As a mutual, our focus

will be to ensure we continue to operate

in a clear and transparent way, offering

our customers long term good value.

Consumer Finance

Current Accounts

The Society’s current account,

FlexAccount, is a key product in

developing and retaining lasting

customer relationships. The product

offers both existing and new 

customers a rate of interest of up to

3.50% on credit balances and an

authorised overdraft rate of 9.9%. In

addition, our no charge policy for

overseas card transactions helps to

attract new customers.

Our internet bank remains one of the

best in the market. Around 53% of

FlexAccount customers now regularly

use our internet banking service, and

over 3.2 million members are registered

to use this service.

We opened 516,000 new current

accounts (2007: 580,000) in the year.

Our market share of new accounts is

estimated at 8% (based on CACI’s

Current Account and Savings Database

for the period to Dec 2007). The total

number of Nationwide current accounts

has grown by around 374,000 to just

over 4.4 million.

“ IN CONSUMER 
FINANCE WE

OPENED 516,000
NEW CURRENT
ACCOUNTS, AN
ESTIMATED MARKET
SHARE OF 8%

WE SOLD 709,000
NEW GENERAL
INSURANCE COVERS
IN THE YEAR, 
AN INCREASE OF
29% OVER THE 
PREVIOUS YEAR

OVER 64,000
PROTECTION
POLICIES SOLD

THROUGH OUR
PARTNERSHIP WITH
LEGAL & GENERAL
WE NOW OFFER
AN ETHICAL
INVESTMENT
PRODUCT ”
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In March this year we announced a 

£300 million major business

transformation programme. The first

phase of the programme will focus on

current accounts, with subsequent 

phases supporting savings, mortgages

and branch systems. The significant

investment we are undertaking in our

core banking systems will ultimately

provide us with increased flexibility to

develop and tailor our products to better

suit our customer needs.

Nationwide is committed to the industry

wide ‘Faster Payments’ scheme that will

speed up the transfer of money between

banks and building societies. We will

adopt a phased approach to ensure that

this new service is launched smoothly and

securely. From 27 May, a number of our

FlexAccount customers will be able to

receive payments via the Faster Payments

service. Later in the year all FlexAccount

customers will be able to send and receive

Faster Payments through the Online Bank

and in due course all Nationwide accounts

will also benefit from Faster Payments.

Along with a number of UK banks, the

Society has experienced a number of

customer requests for the repayment of

unauthorised overdraft fees. On 27 July

2007, the Society and a number of banks

together with the Office of Fair Trading,

asked the UK High Court to clarify the

legal position regarding these fees. The

first phase of the test case process was

heard by the Court between 16 January

and 8 February 2008, and dealt with

certain preliminary issues. On 24 April

2008 the judge ruled that the charges

applied by Nationwide and the banks

involved in the case are subject to a test of

fairness. Therefore, the next phase of the

test case process will be to decide

whether the overdraft charges applied by

Nationwide and the banks are fair.

Credit cards

Whilst the total UK credit card market

gross lending was only marginally higher

than last year, we have continued to see

growth in our lending with gross lending

of almost £3.0 billion (2007: £2.7 billion).

In February 2008 the Society received an

award for ‘Most Responsible Credit Card

Lending Practices’ at The Card Awards

2008. The Society was recognised for its

transparency and clarity of credit card

information, for its positive order of

payments and for offering commission free

purchases abroad. The Society was also

awarded a five star rating for its Gold

Credit Card by the financial research

company Defaqto.

We achieved a strong performance relative

to the market with a 4% growth in the

number of live accounts to 1,171,000

(2007: 1,122,000) compared to a 3% fall in

the market overall. During the second half

of the year we launched an initiative to

manage the quality of the credit card base

and this has resulted in an increase in the

percentage of active accounts.

Balances outstanding on credit cards at 

4 April 2008 were £801 million (2007:

£746 million). Asset quality remains

strong. On a consistent basis with the

industry, our level of balances more than

30 days in arrears is 4.50% compared

with the average of 7.99%.

In March 2008 the Society migrated its

credit card account base to a new third

party provider, TSYS, and as a consequence

of the contract opened a new TSYS contact

centre in Coventry to support our credit

card customers. The contact centre will

create up to 300 new jobs and reaffirms

our commitment to UK based operations.

Personal loans

Personal loans are offered through

Nationwide Trust Limited, a wholly owned

subsidiary of the Society. Loans are sold

through the branch network, over the

telephone and via the internet.

We have maintained a cautious approach

to unsecured lending, with a focus on

credit quality. Our prudent lending criteria

employs the use of credit scoring,

affordability and indebtedness rules as part

of our assessment of whether to lend or

not. This process results in approximately

three in every five unsecured loan

applications received being declined.

The UK personal loans market has seen

gross lending fall slightly in comparison

with the previous year. Our prudent

approach, and increase in pricing, has 

led to a reduction in our gross 

unsecured lending to £0.5 billion (2007:

£0.9 billion).

Asset quality remains strong with the

value of balances 30 or more days in

arrears of 5.88% (2007: 6.12%). This is

significantly better than the industry

average of 11.20% (as at February 2008).

Insurance and 
Investments

General insurance

We sold 709,000 new general insurance

covers in the year, an increase of 29%

over the prior year. This strong

performance has been driven by

continued strong sales of buildings and

contents cover to our new and existing

mortgage customers as well as growth of

our standalone home insurance sales

through our direct channels.

The primary general insurance products

offered by the Group are buildings and

contents, payment protection, motor and

travel insurances. Sales of general

insurance products are often linked to,

and therefore can be largely dependent

upon, other product sales such as

mortgages, personal loans and credit

cards, although we have seen a significant

growth in standalone sales in the year.

We have continued to use leading insurers

as third-party underwriters and the

commission and profit share we receive is

an important source of non-interest 

income. Income for the year is down 9%

to £113 million. The severe storms in

January 2007 and widespread floods in

June and July 2007 have led to a

significant increase in buildings and

contents insurance claims, which has

impacted our profit share levels on the

home insurance scheme. It is anticipated

that next year’s profit share levels will also

be impacted.

Protection and investments

On 31 January 2008 the Society sold its

wholly owned subsidiaries, Nationwide

Life Limited (NL) and Nationwide Unit

Trust Managers Limited (NUTM) to Legal

& General (L&G). The new distribution

agreement with L&G will provide an
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excellent opportunity for our members to

choose from a broader range of

competitively priced products from one of

the UK’s top financial services companies

and enjoy an enhanced level of service.

We sell a broad range of protection

products which customers are able to self

select or receive advice from one of our

qualified sales force. With the new L&G

relationship we have started to sell Family

Life Insurance which provides a regular

monthly income in the event of death of a

policyholder before their child reaches the

age of 21, to help pay for the cost of

raising a family. Throughout the year we

have sold over 64,000 protection policies,

a small reduction of 2% compared to the

prior year.

Investment products were sold through

our wholly owned subsidiary, Nationwide

Unit Trust Managers Limited (NUTM) until

31 January when it was sold to L&G. We

currently sell a range of investment

products including unit trusts, ISAs and

Child Trust Funds. Through our

partnership with L&G, we now offer the

Legal & General Ethical Trust, which aims

to provide the potential for reliable growth

by investing in a portfolio of companies in

the FTSE 350 Index, whose business

conforms to a range of ethical and

environmental guidelines. At 4 April 2008

our range of unit trust investment

products held by our customers had a

market value of over £2.8 billion (2007:

£2.7 billion). The growth from new

investments and fund performance in the

year has been offset by the decline in the

worldwide investment markets in the final

quarter of the year.

Pricing benefit

Pricing benefit is the value that

Nationwide estimates that it distributes to

its members in the form of favourable

product pricing (including interest rates,

fees and charges) compared with our

competitors. During the year we estimate

that we generated pricing benefit of

approximately £690 million by offering

better rates and by charging lower fees

and charges than our competitors.

Distribution channels

Nationwide operates a full, integrated

multi-channel retail business which won

several awards this year including

Yourmoney.com award for Best National

Network Personal Banking 2007.

Performance has been strong with total

Retail sales up by more than 20% on the

previous year.

On the high street, our distribution

capability includes a network of around

900 branches and agencies supported by

2,500 ATMs. Last year we invested nearly

£60 million on high street operations.

Whilst some of this facilitated the merger

with Portman branches, we also added

around 2,750m2 of retailing space, the

equivalent of 33 new branches.

Our Internet Bank is well established 

with around two million regular users.

Customers have seen continued

improvements in our on-line security 

over the last year. 

We continue our commitment to UK-

based customer call centres. Our six call

centres handled 8.5 million calls during

the year, an increase of 14%. In addition

our Telephone Self Service has been

improved to allow customers to manage

more of their products for themselves on

the phone. We are in the process of

moving our Swindon Call Centre from our

head office to a purpose built office

elsewhere in the town.

Looking ahead, the priority for

Distribution is to continue to work hard to

resolve any outstanding merger-related

customer service issues. In addition we

will continue to build a modern and

progressive distribution infrastructure.

Non-Retail Business Stream

2008 2007 Growth

Underlying Underlying

£m £m %

Total income 337.4 303.7 11.1

Expenses 73.8 70.2 5.1

Impairment and other provisions (5.1) 1.6 n/a

Contribution from Non-Retail 268.7 231.9 15.9

The underlying contribution from the

Non-Retail business stream increased by

15.9% to £268.7 million. This represents

around a third of the Group’s total

underlying profit.

The increase in profit is primarily driven by

the inclusion of the post merger results of

The Mortgage Works (UK) plc (TMW) and

from growth in Commercial contribution.

In addition, 2007 results include a £9.9

million contribution from at.home

nationwide, a subsidiary which disposed

of its business in that year. Adjusting the

2007 result for this, the year on year

increase would be in excess of 20%.



Business Review
CONTINUED

2008 ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS  23

Commercial lending

The Commercial Division’s loan book

now exceeds £20 billion (2007: £17.9

billion). Commercial lending is a

significant part of our business

accounting for 14% of total Group loan

assets. The Division’s contribution of

£195 million is 11% ahead of the prior

year and is approximately 25% of the

Group underlying profit.

The Division took a cautious stance in

response to uncertain market conditions

and with a focus on existing customers 

the gross lending has decreased to £6.1

billion compared to the prior year (£7.4

billion). Net lending in the year was £2.4

billion (2007: £3.4 billion). We remain

the lender with the largest volume of

total facilities to Registered Social

Landlords – this equates to

approximately 17% market share. Net

lending in this segment was £0.7 billion,

(2007: £0.9 billion).

The commercial portfolio comprises

loans in respect of commercial property

(64%), social housing (31%) and Private

Finance Initiatives (5%). Commercial

property loans are fully secured against

properties and are typically supported by

highly diversified cash flows from long

term covenanted tenants. Loans to social

housing providers, largely Registered

Social Landlords, are secured on

residential portfolios whilst loans

advanced under Private Finance

Initiatives are secured on cash flows

from Government backed contracts. The

portfolio is well diversified by industry

type and geographic location.

Asset quality is very high and we have

never suffered any loss on our lending to

Registered Social Landlords or under

Private Finance Initiatives. The

proportion of commercial property 

cases three months or more in arrears 

as at 4 April was 0.66%, and equates 

to 66 cases (2007: 0.77% equating to

84 cases).

Lending criteria have been tightened

during the year with reduced maximum

LTV levels at 75%, down from 85%.

Specialist lending

The Specialist Lending Division

comprises UCB and TMW. Both

companies operate primarily through

mortgage intermediaries and are

established brands in this market. The

Division provides mortgage loans to

private landlords (‘Buy to Let’), self-

employed borrowers and other non-

conforming lending.

Gross lending in the year increased to

£4.0 billion with the emphasis on the

‘Buy to Let’ market (59% of new

lending). The total mortgage balances

across the two brands exceeds £14

billion. Sub-prime lending of £76 million

is approximately 0.5% of the total

specialist lending book.

The period under review has been

dominated by the impact of the credit

crunch and the volatile trading

conditions that have resulted. A number

of specialist lenders, particularly those

that securitise their mortgage books,

have withdrawn from the market.

Lending criteria has been significantly

refined with selective product

withdrawals and stricter criteria applied

across the remaining product range. The

Division has withdrawn from sub-prime

lending, whilst maintaining a limited

near-prime offering, and has withdrawn

its 100% mortgage option. Criteria has

been tightened in order to focus on value

not volume, the most significant of which

are the maximum LTV capped at 75%

and lower maximum loan sizes. The

average LTV for new business has

increased slightly from 72% at the half

year to 74% as at 4 April 2008.

The reduced competition in the specialist

markets has allowed the Division to apply

a more appropriate pricing of risk. New

business margins have widened to more

appropriate levels in the second half of

the year compared to the intensely

competitive first half.

The book composition at the year end is:

Buy to Let 60%, self certified 36% and

other non-conforming 4%, the majority

of which is prime/near-prime.

The growth in lending has been carefully

managed without compromising asset

quality. The proportion of accounts more

than 3 months in arrears at 1.11% remains

below the industry average of 1.21%, this

average including prime as well as

specialist lending. The average indexed

LTV across all Specialist Lending is 63%.

The concern over new build apartments in

city centres (excluding London) and those

properties purchased via Investment

Clubs remains. However TMW withdrew

from this market in 2005 and UCB in

2007. We are one of only two Buy to Let

lenders that have a portfolio proposition,

with cross collateralisation of cash flows

and equity. This is an attractive offering to

serious investors in professional and semi-

professional markets.

We are optimistic about trading

conditions in terms of competition and

new business margins and remain

cautiously positive on the Buy to Let

market. The shortage of property resulting

from a number of factors, including a lack

of new builds, inward migration, deferral

of purchases and an increase in the

number of mobile workers and students,

should help to support rental demand.

Landlords are seeing rental values rising.

However, increasing refinancing costs and

at best flat house price inflation are acting

as a barrier.

The Division continues to drive through

significant cost savings as a result of the

merger synergies and further initiatives

have been initiated as a response to

current market conditions. The migration

of UCB activity to Bournemouth has been

delivered seamlessly, ahead of schedule,

with the overall migration accelerated by

six months. First class customer service

has been maintained throughout and

both brands were awarded the 

prestigious Financial Adviser Five Star

Service Award in 2007. New initiatives

during the year, such as the roll out of

new on-line application services within

each brand, have provided an improved

customer proposition with on-line

applications now comprising in excess 

of 70% of all new business.
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Contribution from the Group business

stream grew significantly this year to

£248.8 million (2007: £160.1 million),

with net interest income being the main

driver of the increase, partly offset by an

impairment charge on treasury

investments.

Net interest income in the Group business

stream has benefited from the increased

differential between Libor and bank base

rate; the benefit of which is not passed

onto the Retail and Non-Retail Business

streams. The Society’s exposure to

movements in the differential between

Libor and the bank base rate is managed

through the prudent use of swaps linked

to the base rate.

The Group business stream also benefits

from the contribution derived from 

capital held for regulatory purposes in

excess of that allocated to other business

streams on the basis of an economic

capital assessment. The surplus capital

has increased in 2008, resulting in

increased net interest income in this

business stream.

Impairment provisions increased to

£103.0 million compared with a release of

£5.0 million last year. The charge in the

year principally relates to an impairment

provision on Structured Investment

Vehicles (SIVs). More information on the

Treasury portfolios, including SIVs, is

provided on page 15 and analysis by 

asset type and rating is provided on 

pages 15 to 16.

Risk Management 
and Control

Overview

Nationwide seeks to manage

appropriately all the risks that arise from

its activities. The principal risks inherent

within our business are credit risk, market

risk, liquidity risk and operational risk.

The Board has agreed Statements of 

Risk Appetite within which it requires 

the business activities of the Group to 

be conducted. These overarching

parameters are reflected in the key

processes of corporate management 

which the Board oversees:

• corporate planning, strategy and

performance review;

• capital planning; and

• group risk management.

There is a formal structure for managing

risks across the Group which comprises

several key elements:

Detailed risk management policies 

which document our approach to the

management of risk. These policies,

including associated limits, are owned 

and reviewed annually by a hierarchy of

risk management committees which 

report to the Executive Director’s

Committee and the Board.

We operate with clear independence of

responsibilities for risk governance and

oversight. This division of responsibility is

in accordance with best practice within 

the industry.

Risk governance is provided by a structure

comprising five key risk management

committees. Each committee includes

appropriate representation from 

amongst our executive and divisional

directors, as well as from our Risk

Management Division:

• Retail Credit Committee, which has

responsibility for retail credit risks;

• Commercial & Treasury Credit

Committee, which has responsibility 

for non-retail credit risks;

• Assets and Liabilities Committee 

(ALCO), which has responsibility for

market and liquidity risks;

• Operational Risk Committee, which has

responsibility for operational risk; and

• Group Risk Committee, which has

responsibility for ensuring a co-ordinated

approach across all risks and oversight 

of the above risk committees.

Primary responsibility for managing risk

and ensuring controls are put in place lies

with the business units themselves. Risk

oversight is provided by specialist risk

functions within our Risk Management

Division, which are independent of the

business units. The role of these functions

is to maintain and review policies,

establish limits which are consistent with

our risk appetite, monitor and report on

compliance with those limits, and generally

to provide an oversight role in relation to

the management of risk.

Group Internal Audit provides independent

assurance regarding the activities of

business units and the specialist units

within Risk Management Division.

Oversight of the risk management

framework and control systems is 

provided by the Audit Committee on 

behalf of the Board.

Group Business Stream

2008 2007 Growth

Underlying Underlying

£m £m %

Total income 412.8 209.3 97.2

Expenses 61.0 54.2 12.5

Impairment and other provisions 103.0 (5.0) n/a

Contribution from Group 248.8 160.1 55.4
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Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or

counterparty will fail to meet their

obligations to us as they become due.

Credit risk arises primarily from loans and

other credit based products (such as

current account facilities and credit cards)

available to our retail customers, loans to

our commercial customers, and from the

liquid and investment assets held by our

Treasury Division.

Retail credit risk is managed by our 

Retail Division using automated decision

systems that are provided centrally by 

the Retail Credit Risk function in Risk

Management Division. The decision

systems differentiate credit risks for

residential mortgage loans and other

consumer products and services. A

specialist retail underwriting unit, within

Risk Management Division, also considers

those applications for Society mortgages

and unsecured loans which require

individual underwriting. Underwriting for

specialist mortgages is carried out within

the relevant subsidiaries with oversight

provided by Risk Management Division. 

All risk management policy and limits in

respect of retail credit risk are maintained

by the Retail Credit Risk function and

owned by the Retail Credit Committee.

This committee receives regular reports

from Retail Credit Risk about the

performance of all retail credit portfolios.

Commercial credit risk is managed by our

Commercial Division, which is responsible

for all commercial lending activities, and

the Commercial Credit Risk function

within Risk Management Division. The

Commercial Credit Risk team underwrite

all new loans and monitor existing loans.

Loans above certain levels also require

approval from the appropriate

management committee. The Commercial

Credit Risk team maintain the policy and

limits in respect of commercial credit risk

and monitor compliance with the limits,

providing reports to the Commercial &

Treasury Credit Committee about the

performance of the commercial portfolios.

Credit risk within our Treasury Division

arises from the investments held by

Treasury in order to meet our liquidity

requirements and for general business

purposes. Treasury Division is responsible

for managing this aspect of credit risk

within operational limits as set out in the

Group’s risk management policy, with

oversight provided by the Treasury Credit

Risk function within Risk Management

Division. The Treasury Credit Risk team

also underwrite all new facilities and

monitor existing facilities, maintain the

policy and limits in respect of treasury

credit risk, and monitor compliance with

the policy and limits, providing reports to

the Commercial & Treasury Credit

Committee about the performance of the

treasury portfolios.

Retail Credit Committee Commercial & Treasury
Credit Committee ALCO Operational Risk

Committee

Board

Executive Directors’
CommitteeAudit Committee

Group Risk Committee

• Agrees and monitors credit 
risk policies

• Monitors product and portfolio
performance against policy limits
and Risk Appetite

• Agrees and monitors credit 
risk policies

• Monitors product and portfolio
performance against policy limits
and Risk Appetite

• Agrees and monitors liquidity and
market risk policies

• Monitors market risk performance
against limits and Risk Appetite

• Agrees ICA and Capital Plan

• Agrees and monitors operational
risk policies

• Monitors operational risk
performance against limits and 
Risk Appetite

• Reviews the internal control 
and risk management systems • Agrees Group risk policies

• Monitors risk profile against policy limits and 
assesses effectiveness of policies and processes

• Assesses the impact of stress testing

• Apportions capital in line with Risk Appetite 
and the Corporate Plan

• Reviews impact of business proposals on 
Risk Appetite and capital

• Approves overall Risk Appetite

• Approves Individual Capital Assessment (ICA),
Corporate Plan & Capital Plan

• Monitors the Group’s overall risk profile and 
business stream capital allocations
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Market Risk

Market risk incorporates a range of risks,

but the principal elements are interest

rate risk and foreign currency risk. Market

risk is the risk that the value of, or income

arising from, the Group’s assets and

liabilities changes as a result of changes

in interest rates or exchange rates.

Interest rate risk arises from the

mortgage, savings and other financial

services products that we offer. The

varying interest rate features and

maturities on these products, and the use

of wholesale funds to support these

products, create interest rate risk

exposures due to the imperfect matching

of interest rates between different

financial instruments and the timing

differences on the re-pricing of assets and

liabilities. This risk is managed through

the use of appropriate financial

instruments, including derivatives.

The majority of currency balances 

arise from transactions instigated by

Treasury Division, to manage wholesale

funding costs and returns on liquid assets

and to provide diversity in funding and

asset markets. Currency risk is managed

primarily through the use of currency

swaps and forward foreign exchange

contracts. The risk is also managed,

where appropriate, by foreign currency

liabilities being matched with assets

denominated in the same 

foreign currency.

Treasury Division is responsible for

managing our exposure to many aspects

of market risk within the operational

limits set out in the Group’s market risk

policies. Oversight is provided by the

Market Risk team within the Risk

Management Division and by ALCO, which

includes representation from the Treasury

Division and Risk Management Division.

ALCO receives regular reports on all

aspects of market risk, including interest

rate risk and foreign currency risk. Market

risk management policy and limits are

owned by ALCO and maintained by the

Market Risk team.

Our Treasury Division uses derivative

instruments in managing various aspects

of market risk. In doing so it complies

with the Building Societies Act 1986

which limits our use of derivatives to the

management of changes in interest rates,

exchange rates or other factors defined 

by the Act.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is

not able to meet its financial obligations

as they fall due, or can do so only at

excessive cost. The objective of our

liquidity policy is therefore to enable us to

maintain sufficient liquid assets to cover

cash flow imbalances and fluctuations in

funding, to maintain full public confidence

in our business, and to enable us to meet

all our financial obligations.

Liquidity and funding risks arise from

both retail and non-retail activities and

these are inextricably linked. Accordingly,

whilst separate limits are set around

liquidity balances and funding profiles

respectively, further limits are set around

the combined and cumulative

requirements for liquidity and funding

over a forward period.

In addition to the setting of limits,

additional liquidity and funding scenarios

are prepared each month to illustrate

alternative firm specific and market

systemic developments. These results 

are reported to risk committees to assist

in the management of liquidity and

funding risks.

The day-to-day management of liquidity is

the responsibility of Treasury Division,

which manages our portfolio of liquid

assets and our funding activities in

wholesale markets. ALCO manages Group

cashflows on a consolidated and strategic

basis, receiving regular reports on current

and projected liquidity positions including

the impact of stress testing thereon.

Group Liquidity Management Policy

defines different categories of liquidity

and associated limits, and is revised

annually or more frequently as

appropriate. Liquidity risk policy and

limits are maintained by the Market Risk

team within the Risk Management

Division, and approved by the Board. The

Market Risk team also provides oversight

of Treasury management of liquidity. We

also comply with regulatory guidelines

which govern the scope and nature of the

Group’s holdings of liquid assets.

The Group Liquidity Management Policy

also incorporates a Contingency Funding

Plan (CFP). The CFP describes additional

procedures for management of group

cashflows, including triggers for

invocation, additional reporting and

management processes, and the range of

actions available to manage group cash

flow on a more tactical basis. The CFP

was implemented in September 2007,

early within the period of market liquidity

contraction, and has remained in

operation throughout the period. For

longer dated liquidity, the primary

method of realising cashflow has been

through sale and repurchase agreements

(or ‘repo’) rather than from outright sale.

Liquidity risk calculations have been

revised to incorporate these transactions

in an appropriate manner.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising

from inadequate or failed internal

processes, people and systems, or from

external events. A robust Group-wide

operational risk framework has been

implemented to minimise unexpected

losses through the effective management

of the core operational risk exposures

facing the organisation.

We manage operational risk through the

Group’s business units, with senior

management having responsibility for

understanding how operational risk

impacts on their business unit and for

putting in place the appropriate controls

or other mitigation actions, for example,

insurance. The business units are

supported by a central Operational Risk

team within the Risk Management

Division. The central team co-ordinates

activity across a network of operational

risk officers from within the business units

and is also responsible for maintaining

the risk management policy in respect of

operational risk.

Our Operational Risk Committee (ORC) is

accountable to the Board and the Group

Risk Committee for overseeing the

Group's operational risk profile and
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performance. The ORC ensures that levels

of operational risk are managed within

defined risk appetite tolerances and

provides oversight of the effective and

consistent implementation of the

operational risk management strategy,

policy and approach across the Group.

Capital Management

New capital adequacy rules came into

force in the UK from 1 January 2008,

following the implementation of the Basel

II and the EU Capital Requirements

Directive as set out in the FSA Handbook.

The Group currently adopts the

Standardised approach for the calculation

of Basel II Pillar 1 (minimum capital). The

FSA has recently granted approval for the

Group to adopt an Internal Ratings Based

(IRB) approach. There are a number of

conditions which we are addressing prior

to submitting an updated Internal Capital

Assessment (ICA) based on the IRB

approach later this year.

The Group conducts an Internal Capital

Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP)

annually of all risks under Basel II Pillar 2

Supervisory Review and Evaluation

Process (SREP). This is used to assess the

Group’s capital adequacy and determine

the levels of capital required going

forward to support the current and future

risks in the business. This analysis is

collated into an ICA that is approved by

the Board. The ICA incorporates expected

future capital requirements from 

changes in business volumes, mix of

assets and activities, and current and

future risks in the context of multiple,

stressed scenarios.

The amount and composition of the

Group’s capital requirement is therefore

determined by assessing the minimum

capital requirement under Basel II Pillar 1,

the Group’s economic capital requirement

and the impact of stress and scenario

tests under Pillar 2, the Group’s Individual

Capital Guidance (ICG) and the capital

requirement that is consistent with the

Group’s target external rating.

The ICA is used by the FSA to determine

and set our capital requirements in the

ICG. The Group manages its capital above

the ICG at all times. 

During the year we gave notice to redeem

€400m of capital, in the form of

subordinated Lower Tier 2 notes, for

which the call date was 11 April 2008.

This supported our strategy of efficiently

managing our capital base under Basel II.

The Society has a capital surplus

calculated using the Basel II Standardised

approach, which rose further upon

completion of the sale of Nationwide Life

and Nationwide Unit Trust Managers to

Legal & General.

Under Basel II Pillar 3 (disclosure) the

Group is required to publish further

information about our exposures. We

anticipate that the Pillar 3 report will be

published on our website

www.nationwide.co.uk later this year.

Mark Rennison
Group Finance Director

21 May 2008

“ TIER 1 CAPITAL 
RATIO OF 9.7%

THE LIQUIDITY
PORTFOLIO
TOTALLED £27.3
BILLION

ALL OF OUR
PRUDENTIAL
LIQUIDITY IS RATED 
A OR BETTER WITH
78% RATED AA 
OR ABOVE ”
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The Community and Environmental

Affairs team works to support the

communities in which Nationwide

operates and to manage our approach to

corporate responsibility. For us, this

entails operating and growing the

business in such a way as to meet the

needs of the present while conserving

resources for future generations. It is

based on our core values of fairness,

honesty, integrity and transparency.

CR is widely considered to have three

elements: economic, social and

environmental. For Nationwide,

economic considerations are important

in order to ensure that we have a

sustainable business for our members

and employees. As an integral part of our

stance on mutuality, we play a strong

and active role in supporting

communities across the UK. Nationwide

is not a major polluter and strong

financial performance enables us to play

an important role in protecting the

environment. It also allows us to make

appropriate fiscal contributions and

during the year we paid taxes in excess

of £900 million on behalf of the

Nationwide Group of companies,

employees and members. 

Further details of our economic policies,

objectives and performance can be found

elsewhere in this document.

Governance and accountability

Board member responsibility for

individual corporate responsibility issues

are outlined in the table.

Responsibility for our overall approach to

corporate responsibility rests with the

Group Development Director.

Co-ordination of management activities

is the responsibility of the Head of our

Community and Environmental Affairs

department. The Community and

Environmental Affairs team strives to

ensure that Nationwide makes an active

contribution to, and positive impact

upon, the communities and

environments in which it operates. Our

employees are also encouraged to take

personal responsibility to create a more

sustainable society.

Corporate Responsibility strategy

At Nationwide’s 2007 Annual General

Meeting (AGM) in July, members voted

in favour of a commitment to invest at

least 1% of pre-tax profit in community,

charitable and environmental activities

from April 2008. As well as building on

existing successful partnerships and

programmes, we are actively reviewing

our overall strategy to develop new

programmes that are aligned with our

business objectives and activities, in

order to maximise the beneficial

impacts on society and the associated

benefits to our business.

Current priorities include:

• entering into an agreement with the

Heritage Lottery Fund, which will widen 

the scope of the Nationwide Awards for

Voluntary Endeavour, the Society’s long-

standing award scheme for people involved

in volunteering, to encompass 

the theme of heritage. We will continue to

work in association with the Wales Council

for Voluntary Action, Northern Ireland

Council for Voluntary Action, Scottish

Council for Voluntary Organisations and

Business in the Community;

• extending the scope of our 15-year

strategic partnership with Macmillan in

support of cancer welfare;

• developing new programmes in financial

capability and housing via long-term

partnerships with organisations such as the

Citizens Advice Bureau and Shelter; and

• extending our community and

environmental affairs programme to

include some former Portman Building

Society activities, such as supporting the

Bournemouth Symphony Orchestra, a

national youth cricket scheme, and the

Wessex Autistic Society’s 10k run. 

Introduction

Nationwide is continually working to develop its Corporate 
Responsibility (CR) programme and to more fully integrate this across 
the whole business, recognising it as a key component of our 
corporate values, our brand and our reputation. By more closely 
aligning our social and environmental activities to our core business
drivers, we can better define our corporate personality and differentiate
ourselves from our competitors. Research has shown that a strong 
CR programme also helps to attract and retain employees and
customers – the lifeblood of any successful organisation.

Issue Board member Job title

Workplace – occupational health and safety* Graham Beale Chief Executive 

Workplace – employee issues Graham Beale Chief Executive 

Human Rights Graham Beale Chief Executive 

Marketplace – customers/consumers Stuart Bernau Retail Director 

Marketplace – supply chain David Rigney Group Operations Director

Environment Tony Prestedge Group Development Director

Community Tony Prestedge Group Development Director

*David Rigney, Group Operations Director will have responsibility for health & safety, effective 

from 6 April 2008.



BITC Corporate Responsibility Index

In our fourth submission to the Business in

the Community Corporate Responsibility

Index in 2007 we achieved a ranking of

Gold in the top 100 Companies that Count,

improving our score from 89% to a score

of 91.5%. This demonstrates that we are

continuing to perform strongly in areas,

such as defining our corporate strategy

and implementing employee policies and

practices, and have made improvements in

other areas, such as integration with the

business and environmental impact.

To ensure that we continue to improve,

we are taking action in a number of

areas, such as:

• further integrating the corporate 

strategy into our operational practices

across the business, for example within

our performance management and

remuneration systems;

• reviewing current and planned

community investment activities to 

better align these to business priorities

and objectives and measure the impact

of key community partnerships; and

• incorporating our social and

environmental risks into the process for

managing business risk.

Reporting

Our Better Society report sets out our

approach to our members, employees,

communities, the environment and our

partners. It also details our performance 

in these areas, shows our targets for

improvements and identifies the

challenges that we face. Further

information can be found on our 

Better Society website, at

www.nationwide.co.uk/bettersociety

Diversity

We are committed to promoting a

supportive and inclusive culture for all our

employees, members and business

partners. We seek to harness the strengths

and talents of each of our employees to

create a productive workforce that puts

members first and which generates ever

greater value for them. Diversity is

important to business plans throughout

Nationwide, and increased awareness of it

helps maximise productivity and value.

We strive for equal opportunities at all

levels of our business and we encourage

employee diversity in order to eliminate

discrimination and to reflect and

understand the communities in which we

operate. This is supported by our Diversity

and Equality of Opportunity Committee

(DEOC) chaired by the Divisional Director

for Insurance and Investments. The DEOC

is comprised of senior managers from

across the business along with the General

Secretary of the Nationwide Group Staff

Union. It is responsible for developing

actions relating to diversity and taking

them forward as part of business plans.

These include:

• identifying ways of overcoming 

barriers to greater diversity, as well as

setting clear and measurable goals for

doing so;

• evaluating the workforce with external

benchmarking data and recommending

changes as necessary; 

• maintaining action plans, best practice

bulletins and case studies on the

diversity intranet site according to an

agreed communications strategy; and

• sponsoring the Disability Action Group,

which leads our discussions on disability

issues for members and employees.

We work closely with a number of 

external organisations to promote 

diversity, including:

• Employers’ Forum on Age (EFA):

Nationwide was a founding member of

the EFA and has been a member of its

Executive Steering Committee for eleven

years, enabling us to influence age

legislation and age diversity in the UK;

• Business in the Community’s Race for

Opportunity programme: in 2005 and

2006 we achieved Gold status in their

national benchmarking survey. There 

was no survey in 2007 but we hope to

achieve Gold standard again when the

2008 results are announced later 

this year;

• Employers’ Forum on Disability: as a

member we have the opportunity to

work closely with Government and other

stakeholders, sharing best practice to

make it easier to employ disabled people

and to serve disabled customers;

Corporate Responsibility
CONTINUED

2008 ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS  29

“

• Business in the Community’s

Opportunity Now Programme: through

this programme we have been

recognised externally for our work on

gender equality and best practices in

the workplace; and

• Stonewall (the UK’s leading gay, lesbian

and bisexual equality organisation):

Nationwide is a Stonewall Diversity

Champion and was ranked in the top

five financial services organisations in

their Corporate Equality Index in 2007.

We have recently worked with external

diversity experts to conduct a strategic

review of our approach to diversity and

inclusion. We have consulted with our

members, employees and senior

managers to develop a new strategy that

is aligned to our changing business

needs. In 2008 we will be focusing on

implementing recommendations from the

review to ensure that diversity is fully

embedded into our business plans and

working environment.

WE CONTINUED 
TO PURCHASE

OUR ELECTRICITY
FROM RENEWABLE
ENERGY SOURCES
AND HAVE REDUCED
OUR CO2 EMISSIONS
BY OVER 85%
SINCE 2005

100% OF OUR
WASTE PAPER IS
NOW RECYCLED
UNDER SECURE
CONDITIONS FROM
ALL OF OUR SITES

14 MILLION
MEMBERS...
19,000
EMPLOYEES...
PHYSICAL 
PRESENCE IN 
OVER 900 UK
LOCATIONS ”
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Employee commitment

We look carefully at how we engage with

our employees and how their

commitment impacts positively upon our

members. Over the last five years we have

established through our Viewpoint

employee survey that satisfaction with

leadership, reward and recognition,

training and development and resourcing

all play a key part in driving up employee

commitment, as does alignment with our

corporate values defined through PRIDE:

Put Customers First, Rise to the

Challenge, Inspire Confidence, Deliver

Best Value and Exceed Expectations.

As well as providing a clearly defined set

of core values to work to, PRIDE also

drives the behaviours we expect all

employees to demonstrate in order to

deliver our brand promises, treat

customers fairly and deliver the standard

of performance the business requires to

be successful.

The relationship between employee

commitment, member advocacy and

business performance has been

incorporated in our ‘service profit chain’

research which we call Project Genome.

In addition to conducting our own

research in this area, we also collaborate

with the University of Bath. They have not

only confirmed our findings but also

established that our employees’ opinions

on sustainability and fairness (both

internal and external) have a major

positive impact on their commitment.

Research will continue over the course of

the coming year to enable us to gain

greater insight into our employees’

commitment.

Community

We have over 150 years’ experience of

working in positive partnership with the

community. Our commitment today

remains as strong as ever. With more than

14 million members and over 19,000

employees, we have a physical presence 

in over 900 locations across the UK. To

reinforce our commitment to this local

presence, we go to great lengths to ensure

that our community activities reach every

corner of the UK, and are relevant to our

members, to our employees and to the

communities in which they take place.

We focus very clearly on projects which are

of lasting benefit, which involve the

broadest possible cross-section of the

community and which help the most

marginalised communities in the UK.

Recent highlights in 2008 include:

• together with our partner Disability Sport

Events (‘DSE’) we are helping aspiring

champions on the road to the Beijing and

London Paralympics as part of a £1

million programme through to 2012. For

the second year, we donated 10p to DSE

for every vote cast at last year’s AGM,

which generated an additional £100,000;

• raising over £15,000 for Macmillan

Cancer Support from the World’s Biggest

Coffee Morning fundraising event.

Macmillan has been our flagship charity

for 15 years and we have raised more

than £5 million for people living with

cancer since the partnership began. In

addition, in 2008 we will donate 20p to

Macmillan for every vote cast at this

year’s AGM, up to £250,000;

• sponsoring the Nationwide Achievement

Awards at the 2007 VISA Paralympic

World Cup in Manchester in May;

• our continued commitment to the Cats’

Eyes for Kids campaign, which has

distributed 12 million safety reflectors to

primary schoolchildren (as of October

2007), to help to reduce the number of

child pedestrian casualties. The scheme

won a Big Tick award for excellence from

Business in the Community. A recent

Government announcement has revealed

a significant fall in the casualty rate

among child pedestrians; down 51%

compared to the average for 1994 – 1998;

• developing a bespoke Nationwide

Education website to contain our

programmes, commitments and 

activities that link into education,

accompanied by an educational hot

line/enquiry service. The current live

programme is for road safety, building 

on our Cats’ Eyes for Kids material. 

Future programmes will include 

financial literacy and the environment;

• being rated a ‘socially responsible

company’ by 85% of our employees,

many of whom were involved in

community activities during the year; and

• re-launching the Nationwide Awards for

Voluntary Endeavour as the Nationwide

Community & Heritage Awards, with the

Heritage Lottery Fund as our primary

partner. The new awards will recognise

more than 1,300 individuals and groups

engaged in community volunteering and

keeping our local heritage alive.

We are constantly inspired by the

boundless generosity, creativity and sense

of fun of our employees across the UK. 

We aim to support and encourage

employees who decide to get involved –

where there is measurable value not only

for the community, but to Nationwide and

our members. Our employees can benefit

personally too, in terms of self-

development and personal fulfillment.

Employees can also recognise the

contributions of colleagues by nominating

them for our Community and 

Environment Awards, held twice a year.

Environment

Everything we do has environmental

impacts – from our internal operations to

our products and services. We have been

working to improve our understanding 

and measurement of these impacts and

how we consider them in decision 

making. Wherever possible we are 

APPROXIMATELY 
10% (440,000)

OF ELIGIBLE
ACCOUNTS HAVE
CHOSEN PAPERLESS
STATEMENTS

WE WILL DONATE 
20P TO MACMILLAN
FOR EVERY VOTE
CAST AT THIS YEAR’S
AGM, UP TO
£250,000

“

”
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working to reduce the negative

environmental aspects of our operations

while delivering our business objectives.

The nature of our business means that

our direct effect upon the environment is

not large, compared with some industries.

However, we still believe that we can take

actions that make a difference in solving

the very real environmental issues the

world is facing. By far the biggest of these

is climate change, associated with

increased levels of carbon dioxide (CO2) in

the atmosphere resulting from the use of

fossil fuels. The issue of climate change

and our more significant direct

environmental impacts are discussed

further in the next three sections.

We are also looking at how we can deal

with our indirect impacts by, for example,

giving advice to our members about

energy efficiency in the home, and

building environmental criteria into our

supplier selection process. Examples of

how we are beginning to manage the

environmental aspects of our purchasing

activities and our supply partners are

given in the Partners section below.

Climate change

Nationwide believes that there is more

than enough evidence to support the

strategic decision that we must take

measures to reduce our CO2 emissions.

One of our most significant environmental

impacts is the CO2 emissions resulting

from the energy used in our buildings.

In 2003/04, our work with The Carbon

Trust helped us develop a five-year 

carbon management action plan (2004 –

2009) to reduce carbon emissions from

energy use. A key part of this strategy is

the procurement of electricity from

renewable sources (excluding Northern

Ireland operations).

We have reduced our CO2 emissions by

85% since 2005, through the

procurement of renewable electricity,

accompanied by improvements in the

efficiency of building and IT equipment.

We will continue this strategy and will 

also aim to purchase electricity from

renewable sources for our Northern

Ireland operations.

Waste and paper

We aim to reduce the amount of other

waste we produce by lowering our

consumption of materials where

practicable and through re-using and

recycling where possible.

For Nationwide, paper remains the most

significant category of waste. In 2005/06

we stated our intention to review and

improve our waste management 

policies. We recycle 100% of paper from

all of our UK sites, including unused or

out-of-date marketing and direct mail

literature. We are an industry leader in 

the level of security applied to our waste

paper handling, operating a policy of

lockable bins on all sites with a regular

floor walk service by operatives who are

security vetted by our specialist

contractor, Iron Mountain.

Members using our on-line facilities are

able to opt out of receiving printed

statements. This option is available for 

all FlexAccount, card-based savings

accounts and credit card statements.

Since this option was introduced in

2005, approximately 10% of total eligible

accounts (amounting to 440,000

accounts) have chosen paperless

statements. In addition, 90% of the

materials used in our marketing literature

are recycled, including all direct mail.

We donate surplus furniture and 

office equipment to a charity near our

Swindon headquarters, that donates

corporate furniture and equipment to

local schools and charities. Over 100

tonnes has been sent to the Waste to

Wonders’ Green Standards since the

relationship began.

Transport

Our main transport impacts come from

business travel and employee travel to

and from work. We aim to increase the

provision of efficient cars for business

purposes, reduce our business mileage

where feasible and support our

employees by offering sustainable travel

options. A key element is our car share

scheme, introduced in 1998 in our main

centre in Swindon and now extended to

our Northampton site.

Nationwide’s award-winning travel plan

encourages employees to consider a range

of other options, providing bus timetable

information, free lunchtime buses, car

sharing and video conferencing facilities.

Employees can also buy bikes through our

flexible benefits scheme, with dedicated

cycle storage, showers and changing

facilities available at our Swindon,

Northampton and Wakefield sites.

Partners

As a thriving business with a presence

throughout the UK, we have over 5,000

active suppliers accounting for an annual

spend of over £600 million. We recognise

that working with our suppliers and other

partners can have a positive impact on our

sustainability performance.

We are one of 59 organisations to have

been accredited by the Chartered Institute

of Purchasing and Supply (CIPS) under its

scheme of certification in best practice and

policy for purchasing. In dealing with our

suppliers, we subscribe to the recognised

ethical code of conduct set out by CIPS,

which mirrors the Society’s own values.

Aramark Limited is one of the largest

suppliers to Nationwide, providing catering

services across nine buildings including

the two main administration buildings at

Swindon and Northampton. The team is

committed to quality and to supporting

Nationwide in improving its environmental

performance. In 2006 it attained Quality

and Environmental Management System

accreditation (ISO 9001 and 14001).

We recycle used and obsolete clothing

through Wilcox Industrial Supply. With a

new collection of corporate clothing every

two years, appropriate disposal of obsolete

garments is crucial, and another way in

which we support communities in need.

Group Purchasing have introduced a

sustainable purchasing programme that

enables us to recognise the potential

consequences of purchasing and reduce

the potential negative impacts on the

business. The new programme allows us to

integrate sustainable and ethical

purchasing into the decision making

process when procuring third party goods

and services for Nationwide.
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Over the past 10 years, the Foundation’s

funding criteria have encompassed a

number of diverse themes, namely,

Community Support and Realising

Potential (1998 – 2000), Volunteering,

Quality of Life and Tackling Disadvantage

& Discrimination (2000 – 2002) and,

Volunteering and Rural Communities

(2002 – 2005). The current grant-making

strategy, Supporting Families, comprises

the themes of Domestic Violence,

Prisoners’ Families and Young Offenders.

The strategy incorporates two grants

programmes, the Small Grants

Programme and the Investor Programme.

The Investor Programme is designed 

to offer long term flexible support and

core funding to a selected number of

charities, over three years, whilst

encouraging and funding partnership

working among them.

The aims are designed to:

• support the 1 in 4 women and 1 in 6

men who experience domestic violence

at some point in their lives (source:

Home Office);

• prevent re-offending. Offenders are six

times less likely to re-offend if they

maintain strong family ties whilst in

prison (source: Social Exclusion Unit

Report: Reducing Re-offending by Ex-

Prisoners 2002); and

• support the rehabilitation of young

people in or leaving custody to prevent

them re-offending. Research shows that

70% of young offenders re-offend within

12 months of release (source:

Understanding and Preventing Youth

Crime by David Carrington for Joseph

Rowntree Foundation).

Each aim of the Investor Programme has

a budget of £1.25 million and is

supporting six charities over a three-year

period. This includes grant funding of

£150,000 to each charity, £250,000 to

fund partnership working activities

identified by each group of six charities

and £100,000 to evaluate the work to

ensure it is making a difference.

The Small Grants Programme offers one-

off grants of up to £5,000 to registered

charities with an income of under

£500,000. For the financial year ended 

31 March 2008, 139 small grants were

made to charities across the UK, totalling

over £634,000.

For some time, the Nationwide

Foundation has been interested in

increasing the capacity of charities and

the charitable sector in terms of their

skills and infrastructure, hence the

Foundation’s commitment to offer longer

term grants and core funding, for example

salaries. Through its work over the past 

ten years, the Foundation has come to

appreciate that charities can benefit from

other forms of support, in addition to

grants and funding, which can add value

in a number of ways. The Foundation

recently formed a partnership with two

other grant makers, the Abbey Charitable

Trust and Volunteering England, who

share the same ideas. It was agreed to

commission some research into how

charities can benefit from ‘non-financial

support’, and in particular, how

companies and charities can work better

together for mutual benefit. The research

was undertaken by the Smart Company

(now Corporate Citizenship) and found

that companies can add significant value

by offering the specialised skills of their

staff through volunteering programmes.

Skills-based volunteering in core areas

such as finance, PR and management

strategy can drive the growth of the

charity and help build capacity. The

research (Developing Understanding

Around Non-Financial Support) established

that an increase in this type of support

would be greatly valued by charities. The

Foundation is now working with

Volunteering England and Abbey

Charitable Trust to share the findings of

this research with companies and

charities across the UK.

http://www.nationwidefoundation.org.uk/

NFS_report_08.pdf

The Foundation has also recently begun

working in partnership with the youth

volunteering charity, v, and the Public

Service Broadcasting Trust (PSBT), which

in turn is working with the ITV regions

Meridian, Thames Valley and West, on a

project called ITV Fixers. PSBT is a UK

based charity which brings mainstream

broadcasting, public and voluntary sector

services and audiences together, using

broadcast media, in order to improve

accessibility to amenities in local

communities. Its aim is to bridge the gap

between local services and individuals

who either cannot, or do not, participate

in using the facilities which are generally

available to the public at large. v exists to

inspire a new generation of young

volunteers (aged 16 – 25) in England and

During 2007, the Nationwide Foundation celebrated its 10th 
anniversary. Since it was set up in 1997, the Foundation has always
focused on targeting social exclusion and offering support to those
most in need. In order to achieve this, the Foundation has received 
over £27 million from Nationwide Building Society, which has been
distributed to more than 2,400 charities across the United Kingdom.
The Nationwide Foundation is a registered charity (No 1065552) 
and company limited by guarantee which makes donations to 
registered charities, and is funded principally from contributions 
from Nationwide Building Society.
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SINCE IT WAS 
SET UP IN 1997,

THE FOUNDATION
HAS RECEIVED OVER
£27 MILLION
FROM NATIONWIDE
BUILDING SOCIETY

139 SMALL 
GRANTS WERE MADE
TO UK CHARITIES
TOTALLING OVER
£634,000

£100,000
PROVIDED 
TOWARDS A MAJOR
CAMPAIGN TO 
REACH OUT TO
YOUNG PEOPLE

to enable a lasting change in the quality,

quantity and diversity of youth

volunteering. ITV Fixers is a multi-media

campaign supporting young people (16 –

25) to take action on any issue they feel

strongly about – changing things for the

better. The young people choose their

own subjects to work on, which must

relate to something useful which helps

others, and produce a film showing what

they have achieved. The film is shared on-

line at ITV Local, and there is also a

chance of the project being featured in

television news bulletins. The aim of this

collaboration is to increase volunteering

opportunities, in the South and South East

of England, for young people aged 16 –

25, who:

• are affected by domestic violence;

• have a family member in prison;

• are young offenders or are at risk of

offending; or

• are financially excluded.

“

”

The hope is that more young people from

these groups will participate in

volunteering and have a chance to

maximise their opportunities for personal

development. To this end, Nationwide

Foundation has provided £100,000 over

two years (matched by v) towards this

project, which is a major campaign to

reach out to young people.

The Nationwide Foundation is an

innovative grant maker and is committed

to making a significant difference to

people’s lives. The Foundation is currently

looking at developing a new strategy and

is also continuing to explore ways of

working with other funders and

organisations, which have similar aims

and ideologies, in order to give maximum

support to the charitable sector.

More information about the 

Foundation is available from:

The Nationwide Foundation

Nationwide House, Pipers Way

Swindon SN38 2SN

Telephone: 01793 655113

Fax: 01793 652409

Email:

enquiries@nationwidefoundation.org.uk

Website:

www.nationwidefoundation.org.uk 
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Geoffrey Howe (58)

Chairman

Geoffrey Howe joined the Board in 2005

and became Chairman of the Society in

July 2007. He brings considerable

regulatory, management and legal

experience to the Board. He is currently

Chairman of Jardine Lloyd Thompson

Group plc and a Director of Investec plc.

Geoffrey was formerly Chairman of

Railtrack Group plc, a Director and General

Counsel of Robert Fleming Holdings Ltd

and Managing Partner of Clifford Chance.

Graham Beale (49)

Chief Executive

Graham Beale joined the Society in 1985.

He is a chartered accountant by training

and was appointed to the Board as Group

Finance Director in April 2003. He took up

his current role as Chief Executive in April

2007. He is also a non executive director

of Visa Europe Limited and Visa Europe

Services. Prior to his appointment to the

Board, he worked extensively in the

Finance function and held a number of

senior, general management positions

within the Society including Managing

Director of a wholly owned property

company and Divisional Director of

Commercial Lending.

2

1

As at 4 April 2008

Stuart Bernau (56)

Group Retail Director

Stuart Bernau joined the Society in 1990

and was appointed to the Board in 1996.

He is responsible for all aspects of the

retail facing side of the business and is

also a Director of various Society

subsidiaries. Stuart is responsible for

developing the Group’s Distribution

Strategy for the branch network,

telephone channels and the internet as

well as the Nationwide’s Customer 

Service Strategy.

Tony Prestedge (38)

Group Development Director

Tony Prestedge was appointed to the

Board in August 2007 and was previously

Group Operations Director of Portman

Building Society. He has held a number of

senior management and executive roles at

Barclays plc, including Managing Director

Home Finance and a Member of the Retail

Banking Executive Committee. He is

currently responsible for Change

Management, Human Resources,

Corporate Affairs, Group Strategy and

Planning and Group Customer Experience.

He is currently a Trustee of The

Nationwide Foundation.

4

3 Mark Rennison (47)

Group Finance Director

Mark Rennison is a chartered accountant

who joined the Society and was appointed

to the Board in February 2007. He is

responsible for Finance, Treasury, Audit,

Business Protection, Risk Management and

Legal & Compliance. He is a director of

various Society subsidiaries. Prior to his

appointment, Mark was a partner at

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP where he

worked in the financial services practice

with a specific focus on retail and

corporate banking. He has also worked

extensively with group treasury operations,

leasing and asset finance businesses.

David Rigney (44)

Group Operations Director

David Rigney joined the Society in 1999

and was appointed to the Board in 2006.

He is currently responsible for Member

Account Administration, Information

Technology, Business Services and Group

Purchasing. He is also leading a

transformation programme to complete

the modernisation of the Society’s 

systems. He is a non executive director 

of HM Land Registry and a Director of

various Society subsidiaries. Prior to

joining the Society, David held a number 

of senior management positions in both

the public and private sector.

6

5
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John Sutherland (51)

Sales & Marketing Director

John Sutherland joined the Society in 1988

and was appointed to the Board in 2007.

He has considerable experience in change

management. He is responsible for all

group retail marketing including pricing,

product development and improving

customers’ experience of buying from

Nationwide. Prior to his appointment to

the Board, John held Divisional Director

roles running the branch network and the

Group’s operational back offices.

Matthew Wyles (49)

Non Retail Director

Matthew Wyles was appointed to the

Board in August 2007 and was 

previously Group Development Director of

Portman Building Society. Prior to joining

Portman in 1997, Matthew was an

executive director within the Global

Reinsurance Division at the Willis Corroon

Group specialising in mortgage risk.

Matthew is responsible for three 

Divisions: Commercial Lending, Specialist

Lending and Nationwide for

Intermediaries. He is also a Director of

various Society subsidiaries.

Bill Tudor John (63)

Joint Deputy Chairman

Bill Tudor John joined the Board in August

2007 as Joint Deputy Chairman and was

previously Chairman of Portman Building

Society. Between 1972 and 2000 he was a

Partner in the international law firm Allen

& Overy, the last six years as the Senior

Partner. He has considerable experience in

the law and investment banking. He is

currently a Director of Lehman Brothers,

Wales In London Limited and Grainger plc

and he is Deputy Chairman of the

Financial Markets Law Committee and a

fellow of Downing College, Cambridge.

9

8

7 Robert Walther (64)

Joint Deputy Chairman

Robert Walther joined the Board in 2002

and became Deputy Chairman in 2006

and Joint Deputy Chairman in August

2007. His background is in investment

and insurance. Robert is currently

Chairman of Nationwide Pension Fund,

Portman Pension Fund and Fidelity

European Values plc and a non executive

director of BUPA. He was formerly Chief

Executive of Clerical Medical from 1995 to

2001 which he joined in 1965.

Stella David (45)

Non executive director

Stella David joined the Board in 2003 and

became Chairman of the Remuneration

Committee in 2006. She brings

considerable expertise in marketing,

general management, branding and the

management of consumer goods. She is

Senior Vice President and Chief Marketing

Officer for the international drinks group

Bacardi Ltd and prior to this she was Vice

President of their Global Operations.

Sue Ellen (59)

Non executive director

Sue Ellen joined the Board in August

2007 and was previously a non executive

director of Portman Building Society. She

brings broad experience in healthcare,

leisure and financial services gained as

the Managing Director of BUPA Health

Services, Managing Director of United

Racecourses and as a non executive

director of Birmingham Midshires and

Asda. She is currently Chairman of West

Middlesex University Hospital NHS Trust

and is a Director of Prudential Health

Holdings Ltd and St. John Ambulance. 

12

11

10 Mark Nicholls (58)
Non executive director

Mark Nicholls joined the Board in August

2007 and was previously a non executive

director of Portman Building Society. He

has broad experience in financial markets

and was a main Board Director of SG

Warburg Group plc and Managing Director

of the private equity group of the Royal

Bank of Scotland. He is Chairman of

EcoSecurities Group plc, Deputy Chairman

of Venture Production plc and a non

executive director of Northern Investors

Company plc and The Evolution Group plc.

Derek Ross (57)
Non executive director

Derek Ross joined the Board in 2004. He is

also Chairman of the Society’s Audit

Committee. He has extensive experience in

audit and financial advisory services,

particularly in areas of treasury and risk

management. Prior to his appointment he

was a senior partner of Deloitte & Touche

LLP for 18 years and previously for seven

years a corporate treasurer and tax

manager with Black & Decker. He is

currently a director and Chairman of the

Audit Committee of European Central

Counterparty Limited and of Access Bank.

Suzanna Taverne (48)
Non executive director

Suzanna Taverne joined the Board in 2005.

She brings considerable expertise in

strategy, finance and management. She is

currently a Director of FCE Bank plc and the

Design Museum and Chair of One Parent

Families|Gingerbread. Suzanna was

formerly a Director of Imperial College

London, Managing Director of the British

Museum, Director of Strategy at Pearson

plc, a consultant to Saatchi and Saatchi plc,

Finance Director of The Independent and a

senior manager at S.G. Warburg & Co Ltd.

15

14

13
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The directors have pleasure in presenting

their Annual Report and Accounts for the

year ended 4 April 2008.

As set out more fully in the Statement of

Accounting Policies, this Annual Report and

Accounts has been prepared in accordance

with International Financial Reporting

Standards (IFRS). All financial information

given in this Directors’ Report is taken solely

from the statutory results prepared on this

basis. Unaudited, like-for-like results which

allow comparison between 2008 and 2007

are given in the Business Review on pages 

9 to 27.

Business objectives

The principal purpose of the Society and its

subsidiaries (the Group) is to provide a

diverse range of personal financial services,

offering competitive pricing and excellent

service. Underpinning this objective are our

core values, which are to be open, honest

and fair in our dealings with customers, to

deliver long term good value, and to

provide a safe and secure home for our

members’ savings.

Business Review and future 
developments

The Group’s business and future plans are

reviewed by the Chairman and Chief

Executive on pages 4 to 8 and in the

Business Review on pages 9 to 27.

Key Performance Indicators

The 12 Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

used by management for determining 

Group performance are described in the

Report of the Directors on Remuneration

pages 41 to 46.

KPIs include financial indicators and non

financial indicators. Financial KPIs are

documented in the Chief Executive’s Review

from page 6 and Business Review from 

page 9.

The non financial KPIs are:

• Customer experience. We use external

consultants to monitor customer

experience across several areas and set a

target for overall performance. We

outperformed the target in 2007/08.

• Employee turnover. We closely monitor

voluntary employee turnover across

various job categories against a planned

target. Overall, turnover was below the

target set for 2007/08.

• Controls, risk and compliance. We monitor

a basket of measures relating to our

control systems, risk management and

regulatory compliance. Challenging

targets for improvement were set and

these were achieved by the year end.

Our Corporate Responsibility Statement on

pages 28 to 31 outlines how we measure

our corporate responsibilities including the

commitment of our employees and our

commitment to the environment.

Profits and capital

Profit before tax was £686.1 million 

(2007: £652.0 million). The profit after tax

transferred to the general reserve was

£495.3 million (2007: £463.6 million).

Total Group reserves at 4 April 2008 were

£6,008.1 million (2007: £5,464.4 million)

after taking into account the revaluation

reserve of £121.2 million (2007: £128.2

million), the available for sale reserve of

negative £418.3 million (2007: credit £40.4

million) and the cash flow hedge reserve of

£1.8 million (2007: £nil).

Gross capital at 4 April 2008 was £9,311.2

million (2007: £8,126.8 million) including

£2,058.2 million (2007: £1,617.0 million) 

of subordinated debt and £1,244.9 million

(2007: £1,045.4 million) of subscribed

capital. The ratio of gross capital as a

percentage of shares and borrowings at 

4 April 2008 was 5.6% (2007: 6.5%) and

the free capital ratio was 5.1% (2007:

6.0%). (See the Annual Business 

Statement on page 105 for an explanation

of these ratios).

Mortgage arrears

The Group mortgage portfolios at 4 April

2008 included 686 mortgage accounts

(2007: 389), including those in possession,

where payments were more than 12 months

in arrears. The total amount of principal

loans outstanding in these cases was £78.1

million (2007: £47.5 million). The total

amount of arrears in these cases was £8.0

million (2007: £5.4 million) or 0.01%

(2007: 0.01%) of total mortgage balances.

Charitable and political donations

Results for the year include charitable

donations of £2,448,191 (2007:

£2,380,565) including £2,000,000 

(2007: £2,000,000) to the Nationwide

Foundation, a report on which is given 

on pages 32 and 33. No contributions were

made for political purposes. However, as a

result of the Political Parties, Elections and

Referendums Act 2000 time allowed to

employees to carry out civic duties can

amount to a donation. The Group 

supports a very small number 

of employees in this way.

Creditor payment policy

The Group’s policy is to agree the terms of

payment with suppliers at the start of

trading, ensure that suppliers are aware of

the terms of payment and pay in accordance

with its contractual and other legal

obligations. The Group’s policy is to settle

the supplier’s invoice for the complete

provision of goods and services (unless there

is an express provision for stage payments),

when in full conformity with the terms and

conditions of the purchase, within the

agreed payment terms.

The Society’s creditor days were 18 days at 

4 April 2008 (2007: 23 days).

Risk management

The financial management objectives and

policies of the Group are shown in the

Business Review on pages 9 to 27 and in

Note 48 on pages 89 to 100.

As a result of its normal business activities,

the Group is exposed to a variety of risks, the

most significant of which are operational

risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group has established a number of

committees and policies to manage these

risks. These are set out in the Risk

Management and Control section of the

Business Review on page 24.

In addition to these financial risks the 

Group is exposed to the effects of the

economic cycle, particularly relating to 

the UK residential housing market, and 

the competitive nature of the UK 

personal financial services markets in 

which we operate. These are discussed in

the Chief Executive’s Review on page 6.

Employees

During the financial year the Society has

maintained and developed systems for the

provision of information to employees. The

Employee Involvement Committee, chaired

by the Group Development Director, and its

sub-committees act as forums where

representatives from the business and the

Union consult and share information on a

range of business and employment issues.

The Society has continued to consult actively

with the Nationwide Group Staff Union. In

addition, meetings, team briefings, circulars,

newsletters and the Society’s intranet ensure

employees are aware of the Society’s

performance and objectives and the

business environment in which it operates.

It is the Society’s policy to afford access to

training, career development and promotion

opportunities equally to all employees

regardless of their race, creed, sex, marital

For the year ended 4 April 2008
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status, age, physical or mental disability.

Should employees become disabled, it is the

Society’s policy to continue their employment

where possible with appropriate training and

redeployment where necessary.

Directors’ responsibilities in respect 
of the preparation of the Annual Accounts

This statement, which should be read in

conjunction with the Statement of the

Auditors on page 47, is made by the directors

to explain their responsibilities in relation to

the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the

directors’ emoluments disclosures within 

the Report of the Directors on Remuneration,

the Annual Business Statement and the

Directors’ Report.

The directors are required by the Building

Societies Act 1986 (the Act) to prepare, for

each financial year, Annual Accounts which

give a true and fair view of the income and

expenditure of the Society and the Group for

the financial year and of the state of the

affairs of the Society and the Group as at the

end of the financial year, and which provide

details of directors’ emoluments in

accordance with Part VIII of the Act and

regulations made under it. The Act states

that references to IAS accounts giving a true

and fair view are references to their achieving

a fair presentation. In preparing those Annual

Accounts, the directors are required to:

• select appropriate accounting policies 

and apply them consistently;

• make judgements and estimates that 

are reasonable and prudent;

• state whether applicable accounting

standards have been followed, subject to

any material departures disclosed and

explained in the Annual Accounts; and

• prepare the Annual Accounts on the 

going concern basis, unless it is

inappropriate to presume that the 

Group will continue in business.

The directors are also required by the

Disclosure and Transparency Rules of the

Financial Services Authority to include a

management report containing a fair 

review of the business and a description of

the principal risks and uncertainties facing

the Group.

In addition to the Annual Accounts, the Act

requires the directors to prepare, for each

financial year, an Annual Business 

Statement and a Directors’ Report, each

containing prescribed information relating 

to the business of the Society and its

connected undertakings.

A copy of the Annual Accounts is placed on

Nationwide Building Society’s website. The

directors are responsible for the maintenance

and integrity of statutory and audited

information on the website. Information

published on the internet is accessible in

many countries with different legal

requirements. Legislation in the United

Kingdom governing the preparation and

dissemination of financial statements may

differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Directors’ statement pursuant to the
Disclosure and Transparency Rules

The directors confirm that, to the best of 

each person’s knowledge and belief:

• the financial statements, prepared in

accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the

EU, give a true and fair view of the assets,

liabilities, financial position and profit of 

the Group and Society; and

• the management report contained in the

Business Review includes a fair review of

the development and performance of the

business and the position of the Group 

and Society, together with a description of

the principal risks and uncertainties that

they face.

Directors’ responsibilities in respect 
of Accounting Records and 
Internal Control

The directors are responsible for ensuring that

the Society and its connected undertakings:

• keep accounting records which disclose 

with reasonable accuracy the financial

position of the Society and the Group and

which enable them to ensure that the

Annual Accounts comply with the Act; and

• establish and maintain systems of control 

of its business and records, and of

inspection and report.

The directors have general responsibility 

for safeguarding the assets of the Group 

and for taking reasonable steps for the

prevention and detection of fraud and 

other irregularities.

The directors who held office at the date 

of approval of this directors’ report confirm

that, so far as they are each aware, there is 

no relevant audit information of which the

Group’s auditors are unaware; and each

director has taken all the steps that they

ought to have taken as directors to make

themselves aware of any relevant audit

information and to establish that the Group’s

auditors are aware of that information.

Going concern

The directors are satisfied that the Group has

adequate resources to continue in business

for the foreseeable future and that, therefore,

it is appropriate to adopt the going concern

basis in preparing the Annual Accounts.

Directors

The following served as directors of the

Society during the year:

G M T Howe MA (Cantab) (Chairman)

J G W Agnew MA (Retired from the Board 

19 July 2007) 

W Tudor John MA (Cantab), D.L. (Joint

Deputy Chairman) (Appointed to the Board

28 August 2007) 

R P Walther MA, FIA (Joint Deputy

Chairman)

G J Beale BSc, ACA (Chief Executive Officer)

S D M Bernau BSc (Econ), FCIB, MCT

(Group Retail Director)

T P Prestedge (Group Development

Director) (Appointed to the Board 28 

August 2007)

M M Rennison BA, FCA (Group Finance

Director) 

D J Rigney ACMA, MBA (Group Operations

Director)

B K Simpson MIMIS, FRSA (Retired from 

the Board 5 May 2007) 

J A Sutherland MA, MBA, FCIB, Dip FS

(Sales & Marketing Director) (Appointed to

the Board 5 April 2007)

M P V Wyles ACII (Non Retail Director)

(Appointed to the Board 28 August 2007) 

Mrs S J David MA (Cantab) 

Mrs S C Ellen BSc (Appointed to the Board

28 August 2007)

R G Handover (Retired from the Board 

19 July 2007)

M P Nicholls MA (Cantab), MBA (Appointed

to the Board 28 August 2007)

D A Ross BSc, LLB, FCA, ACMA, CTA

(Fellow), FCT

Ms S Taverne

G M T Howe, D A Ross, J A Sutherland 

and Mrs S C Ellen will retire at the Annual

General Meeting on 17 July 2008. G M T

Howe, D A Ross and Mrs S C Ellen will stand

for re-election and J A Sutherland will stand

for election.

None of the directors has any beneficial

interest in shares in, or debentures of, any

connected undertaking of the Society.

The auditors

A resolution to re-appoint

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditors will

be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

G M T Howe
Chairman 

21 May 2008
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The Board believes good corporate

governance is essential to our

commitment to best practice, effective

disclosure and constructive dialogue with

our members. This report aims to provide

members with information on corporate

governance based on the principles and

provisions of the Combined Code (the

Code) issued by the Financial Reporting

Council in 2006. Although not mandatory

for building societies, the Financial

Services Authority (‘FSA’) encourages

building societies to have regard to the

Code. The Board considers that the

Society complies with the BSA Guidance

for Building Societies on the Code.

The Board

The principal functions of the Board are to

determine the strategy and policies of the

Group; to set out the guidelines within

which the business is managed; and to

review business performance. The Board

ensures that the Group operates within

the Society’s Memorandum and Rules,

relevant legislation and regulation and

For the year ended 4 April 2008

that proper accounting records and

effective systems of business control are

established, maintained, documented and

audited. The Board’s Terms of Reference*

include a list of specific matters reserved

to the Board. A High Level Business

Control Manual sets out Board members’

individual responsibilities and the

delegated authorities.

Board membership and independence

The table below identifies the Chairman,

Joint Deputy Chairmen, Chief Executive,

Senior Independent Director and

chairmen and members of the Board’s

Audit, Nomination and Remuneration

Committees. The table also shows the

number of Board and Committee

meetings attended by each director

during the year, with the total number of

meetings that the director could have

attended shown in brackets.

Geoffrey Howe was appointed Chairman

of the Society following the Annual

General Meeting (‘AGM’) in 2007. He is

responsible for leading the Board and

communicating with the Society’s 

members on behalf of the Board. Geoffrey 

is independent and has no conflicting

relationships or circumstances that could

affect his judgement. Geoffrey’s other

significant commitments are set out at

page 107.

Graham Beale, the Chief Executive, is

responsible for managing the Society’s

business within the parameters set by the

Board. Robert Walther and Bill Tudor John

are Joint Deputy Chairmen and Robert

Walther is the Senior Independent Director.

The merger with Portman Building Society

in August 2007 (the ‘merger’) resulted in

an increase in the size of the Board. Sue

Ellen, Mark Nicholls and Bill Tudor John

joined as non executive directors. Tony

Prestedge and Matthew Wyles joined as

executive directors. Consequently, the

Board now has a balance of seven 

executive and eight non executive 

directors (including the Chairman). The

Board considers that all its non executive

directors are independent in accordance

with the criteria set out in the Code.

Director Board Audit Nomination Remuneration
Committee Committee Committee

J G W Agnew (retired from the Board 19/7/2007) 4(4) - 2(2) -

G J Beale 10(10) - - -

S D M Bernau 10(10) - - -

S J David, Chairman of the Remuneration Committee 9(10) - 5(5) 4(4)

S C Ellen (appointed to the Board 28/8/2007) 5(6) 3(4) - -

R G Handover (retired from the Board 19/7/2007) 4(4) 2(2) 2(2) 1(1)

G M T Howe, Chairman of the Board and the Nomination Committee 10(10) 2(2) 5(5) 1(1)

M P Nicholls (appointed to the Board 28/8/2007) 5(6) 3(4) - 3(3)

T P Prestedge (appointed to the Board 28/8/2007) 6(6) - - -

M M Rennison 10(10) - - -

D J Rigney 10(10) - - -

D A Ross, Chairman of the Audit Committee 10(10) 6(6) - -

J A Sutherland 10(10) - - -

S Taverne 10(10) 5(6) - 4(4)

W Tudor John, Joint Deputy Chairman (appointed to the Board 28/8/2007) 6(6) - 2(2) 3(3)

R P Walther, Joint Deputy Chairman and Senior Independent Director 10(10) - 4(5) 4(4)

M P V Wyles (appointed to the Board 28/8/2007) 6(6) - - -

Table of Board and Committee Membership Attendance Record
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Appointments to the Board

Under its Terms of Reference*, the

Nomination Committee, consisting of four

non executive directors led by the

Chairman, regularly reviews the structure,

size and composition of the Board and

recommends any changes in accordance

with the Board’s Composition and

Succession Plan*. In addition, members of

the Society have the right under the

Society’s Rules to nominate candidates for

election to the Board. All directors must

meet the tests of fitness and propriety laid

down by the FSA and are required to be

registered with the FSA as an ‘approved

person’ in order to fulfil their ‘controlled

function’ as a director.

The service contracts of executive

directors and the letters of appointment of

non executive directors are available for

inspection on request from the Secretary.

Information and professional
development

There are ten formal Board meetings each

year and Board members, including the

Secretary, meet informally prior to each

meeting thereby providing an opportunity

for discussion and exchange of

information. Papers for Board and

Committee meetings are distributed a

week in advance. All Board members have

access to independent, professional advice

and the benefit of appropriate liability

insurance, both at the Society’s expense.

All new executive and non executive

directors receive a full, formal and tailored

induction on joining the Board. Any

training or development needs are

identified during this process and in the

course of subsequent annual evaluations

of the Board’s and individual director’s

performance and effectiveness.

Performance evaluation

The Board conducts a formally

documented annual evaluation of its

performance and effectiveness, led by the

Chairman, following completion of a

questionnaire by all Board members.

Evaluation of the Chairman is led by the

Senior Independent Director, based on the

views of the executive and non executive

directors. Individual non executive

directors are evaluated on a one to one

basis by the Chairman. Executive directors

are evaluated against predetermined

performance targets for their business

areas and their own personal

performance. Evaluation of executive

directors is undertaken by the Chief

Executive whose performance is in turn

evaluated by the Chairman.

Re-election

The Society’s Rules require that all

directors are submitted for election at the

AGM following their first appointment to

the Board, except where their

appointment occurs during the period

starting with the beginning of the

Society’s financial year and ending with

the AGM itself, in which case they must

seek election at the AGM in the following

year. All directors are required to seek re-

election every three years. In respect of

the former directors of Portman Building

Society who joined the Board following

the merger, the Rules confirm that they

may be treated as if appointed or last

elected as a director on the date of

appointment or last re-election to the

board of Portman Building Society.

Remuneration

The Report of the Directors on

Remuneration is on pages 41 to 46.

Financial reporting

The directors’ responsibilities for

preparing the Society’s accounts,

including the Annual Business Statement,

the Directors’ Report and the directors’

emoluments disclosures are set out in the

Directors’ Report on pages 36 to 37.

Risk management and internal control

The Board is responsible for determining

strategies for risk management and

control. Senior management is

responsible for designing, operating and

monitoring risk management and internal

control processes. The Audit Committee,

on behalf of the Board, is responsible for

reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness

of these processes. The system of internal

control is designed to enable the Society

to achieve its corporate objectives within a

managed risk profile, not to eliminate risk.

The Board, following review by the 

Audit Committee, is satisfied that the

Society’s systems are appropriate and

meet the requirements of the Code and

the revised supplementary Turnbull

guidance. The Board confirms that any

significant failings or weaknesses

identified from their review of the

effectiveness of the internal control

systems are being remedied.

The Board has approved a Group Risk

Appetite Statement. The Risk

Management Division ensures that

appropriate risk management systems

exist across the Group’s operations and

that there is a process for identifying,

evaluating and managing significant risks

in line with the Group Risk Appetite

Statement. The Group Internal Audit

function provides independent and

objective assurance that the risk

management systems are appropriate 

and effective. The Group Risk Committee

ensures a co-ordinated approach by the

Group across all risks, on which it reports

to the Board. The Committee oversees the

working of the other Risk Committees of

the Group.

The principal categories of financial risk

inherent in the Group’s business are

described in greater detail in the Business

Review under the heading Risk

Management and Control on page 24,

together with an explanation of the

structure adopted within the Group for

managing financial risk (including the

roles of the Group Risk Committee, Credit

Committees and the Assets and Liabilities

Committee). The management of

operational risk is overseen by the

Operational Risk Committee which reports

into the Group Risk Committee.

Audit Committee and auditors

The Audit Committee comprises four non

executive directors. The Chairman of the

Board is not a member of the Committee

although he usually attends meetings of

the Committee by invitation. The Board is

satisfied that at least one member of the

Committee has recent and relevant

financial experience. All members of the

Audit Committee receive supplementary

fees in recognition of their additional
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responsibilities. Under its Terms of

Reference*, the Audit Committee’s

responsibilities include arrangements for

applying financial reporting and internal

control principles and maintenance of an

appropriate relationship with the Society’s

external auditors.

In order to safeguard auditor objectivity

and independence, the Audit Committee’s

policy on the engagement of external

auditors for non-audit services includes a

requirement for prior approval by the

Committee where the proposed fee for

non-audit work either exceeds a certain

amount, or the fees would exceed set

proportions of the audit fee. The Audit

Committee differentiates between non-

discretionary services (i.e. those required

to be carried out by the auditors) and

other services. The level of non-audit fees

is constantly kept under review.

The Committee is also responsible for

ensuring that there are effective

whistleblowing arrangements to enable

employees to raise confidentially any

concerns about possible improprieties in

matters of financial reporting or other

matters, and effective arrangements for

investigation and appropriate follow-up.

The Committee has met six times in the

year. It excludes the executive directors

from part of its meetings and meets with

the external auditors in private session

annually. By invitation of the Committee,

executives and others regularly attending

its meetings include the Chief Executive,

the Group Finance Director, the Divisional

Directors for Risk Management and Legal

& Compliance, the Chief Internal Auditor

and the external auditors. Minutes of the

Committee’s meetings are routinely

distributed to all Board members and the

Chairman of the Committee reports to 

the Board following each Audit 

Committee meeting.

Evaluation of the Committee’s performance

and effectiveness is undertaken annually

by a detailed review of its activities against

its Terms of Reference and analysis of self

assessment questionnaires completed by

members of the Committee, Chairman of

the Board, Chief Executive, Group Finance

Director, Chief Internal Auditor and the

external auditors. A report is then

considered by the Committee.

Relations with members

As a mutual, the Society has a

membership comprised almost

exclusively of over 14 million individuals,

all of whom are the Society’s customers.

The Society seeks the views of members

in various ways. Member TalkBack events

(both face-to-face and via the internet)

give members an opportunity to put

questions or points to a director or senior

executive. The Member Suggestion

Scheme enables members to express

their views on an ongoing basis. A

feedback log allows employees to record

any ad hoc comments from members on

any aspect of the Society’s business.

The Society’s Customer Experience

Tracker, involving an external accredited

research company telephoning around

2,000 members on its behalf every

month, provides feedback on the

Society’s customer experience

performance.

In addition, members’ participation in its

Usability Centre enables the Society to

obtain developmental input and feedback

on a range of proposed improvements

and efficiencies.

Constructive use of the AGM

Following the merger, this year the

Society will send out details of the AGM to

approximately 7.5 million members who

are eligible to vote. Members are sent

voting forms and are encouraged to vote

or appoint a proxy to vote if they cannot,

or choose not to, attend the AGM. Voting

may be by post, in any of the Society’s

branches, online at nationwide.co.uk or at

the AGM. All votes and all proxy votes are

counted under independent scrutiny. At

the AGM the Chief Executive gives a

presentation on the main developments

in the business and members present

have the opportunity to raise questions

and put forward their views. A poll is

called in relation to each resolution at the

AGM and all proxy votes cast are included

in the published voting results.

All members of the Board are present at

the AGM each year (unless exceptionally

their absence is unavoidable) and the

Chairmen of the Audit and the

Remuneration Committees are therefore

available to answer questions.

*The following documents are available

from the Secretary on request and also on

our website at www.nationwide.co.uk

• Board’s Terms of Reference

• Board Composition and Succession Plan

• Terms of Reference of the Audit

Committee, Nomination Committee and

Remuneration Committee

Geoffrey Howe
Chairman

21 May 2008 
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For the year ended 4 April 2008

The Remuneration Committee

The remuneration of our most senior

executives (our Chief Executive Officer,

executive directors and divisional 

directors) is determined by the Society’s

Remuneration Committee. The

Remuneration Committee is made-up of

independent non executive directors of 

the Society. The current members of the

Remuneration Committee are Stella David

(Chairman of the Committee), Suzanna

Taverne and Robert Walther, who were

joined following the merger with Portman

by Bill Tudor John and Mark Nicholls.

During the year Richard Handover retired

as a non executive director and member 

of the Committee. The Committee meets

on a regular basis to set and review

performance targets and decide on how 

we pay our directors. During the year the

Committee met four times and considered

the following areas:

• Directors’ pay review and performance

payments;

• Performance pay, scheme design and

performance against targets;

• The Chairman’s fee;

• Changing trends in directors’

remuneration in the market place;

• Changes to directors’ contracts; and

• Contractual terms for directors who 

leave the Society.

The Remuneration Committee draws on the

advice of independent external consultants

in performing its duties. This year the Hay

Group Limited provided independent

advice for the Committee ensuring that

they had up to date information on market

rates of pay and performance pay, best

practice and remuneration trends in the

market in general. The Committee is also

supported by Geoffrey Howe (Chairman of

the Board), the Human Resources Director

and on occasions the Chief Executive

Officer, who may also be invited to attend

committee meetings to provide further

background information and/or context to

assist the Committee in their duties. No

individual is present at a meeting where

their own pay is decided. 

Reward principles and decisions on pay

The Committee is guided by the 

following principles:

1. Reward will enable the attraction and

retention of high quality people.

2. There must be a clear link between

performance and reward.

3. The rationale for setting

salary/performance pay levels must be

clear to our Members and so our

approach to rewards should be as

simple and uncomplicated as possible.

4. Competitive levels of remuneration will

be determined by reference to the

market for similar jobs within the UK

financial services industry.

5. Our rewards will reflect the market, 

but not drive it.

The Remuneration Committee considers

the following when deciding on pay levels:

1. The size and responsibilities of the role;

2. Pay levels for similar roles in other

financial services organisations;

3. The performance of the individual and

of Nationwide.

Elements of pay

The reward package for directors consists of the following:

Element What is its purpose?

Base salary Base salary reflects the size of the role and what other similar companies 

would pay, as well as the individual’s skills, experience and performance.

Annual The Annual Performance Pay Plan provides an opportunity to set 

Performance challenging performance targets for the year and rewards directors for 

Pay meeting these.

Medium Term The Medium Term Performance Pay Plan recognises sustained

Performance Pay performance and achieving challenging financial targets over a three

year performance cycle.

Benefits Benefits include pension provision, a car allowance, healthcare and 

mortgage allowance.

Introduction

Dear Member

I am pleased to present our

Remuneration Report for 2007/2008.

As a mutual organisation, Nationwide 

is run for the benefit of our Members. 

Our principal objective is to create more

value for Members through competitively

priced products and services. To achieve

this we need to ensure that we have 

high quality people who can deliver our

goals and who, in return, are rewarded

fairly for running the Society on behalf 

of our Members.

The last year has been a challenging

period for Nationwide and indeed for the

whole of the financial services industry. 

In August 2007 the merger with Portman

Building Society was successfully

completed, strengthening Nationwide’s

position and providing significant

financial benefits to our Members.

Your Society has been successfully

managed through this demanding 

period by the directors and their teams.

As ever, but particularly in the current

climate, it is essential that we reward our

top management fairly and in line with

the market so that we can continue to

attract, retain and motivate talented

executives. With these aims in mind, 

the Remuneration Committee has

reviewed, and made some changes to,

the senior executives’ annual

performance pay plan scheme. More

details about the new arrangements 

are given below and overleaf.

Nationwide adopts high standards of

corporate governance so, although as a

mutual we are not required to, we provide

full details of our directors remuneration

and ask our Members to approve the

Remuneration Report at the AGM.

This report covers the key disclosure

requirements of the Combined Code on

Corporate Governance relating to

remuneration that apply to Nationwide.

We have followed market best practice 

in terms of disclosure of directors’

remuneration arrangements in so far as 

it applies to Nationwide as a mutual

building society. The total emoluments

included in the tables at the end of this

report are audited numbers. I hope that

you find this report informative.

Mrs S J David
Chairman of the Remuneration

Committee
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Base salary

Base salary reflects the size of the 

role and what other similar 

companies would pay, as well as the

individual’s skills, experience and

performance.

Base salary is designed to ensure we pay

around the median market rate for the job

and our aim is to be neither the highest

nor the lowest payer. The Remuneration

Committee reviews directors’ salaries

every year. The principal way in which we

reward performance is through our

Performance Pay Plans. 

Measure KPIs Why is it used?

Total Member Value 1. Pricing benefit As a mutual we aim to provide the best value products and services to our Members and 

2. Profit before tax at the same time ensure that we generate enough profit to run our business, invest for the 

Group’s future, satisfy the regulators and keep the Society financially secure.

Income 3. Group net lending Mortgages are how we generate a lot of our income and are key part of providing value to 

4. Non mortgage and our Members. We want to grow and strengthen our business and provide even more value 

savings sales to our Members and selling a broad range of products is important to achieving this.

Serving Members 5 Customer experience We exist to serve the needs of our Members. It is important that we independently measure 

measure how successful we are in doing just that. We know that having a committed workforce 

6. Employee turnover means we can deliver better customer service and therefore retaining our best employees 

is important to us.

Financial Strength 7. Group return on capital As a mutual we manage our costs and the amount of income we generate very carefully in 

8. Cost income ratio order to make enough money to ensure the continuing financial strength of the Society. 

9. Costs Return on capital and solvency are two measures which inform us about whether we are 

10. Net interest margin growing profitably and maintaining the financial security we offer our members and 

11. Solvency investors. At the same time we monitor the levels of risk we take on and the quality of the 

12. Controls, risk and control environment within the business to manage our exposure to unforeseen losses.

compliance

Annual Performance Pay 

The Annual Performance Pay Plan

provides an opportunity to set

challenging performance targets
for the year and rewards directors for

meeting these.

Performance payments are only made if

targets are met. The Committee sets

annual performance targets and then

meets on a regular basis to review

performance against those targets. This

year the Committee decided to change

the Annual Performance Pay Plan for

directors in order to increase the focus on

individual accountability and

performance. For the 2007/08 financial

year, the plan has been linked to

performance in the following three

categories:

• group performance;

• local performance (based on Group

performance for the CEO); and

• individual performance.

In addition, there is an overall

performance condition in the Plan relating

to profit. If the profit level falls below a

specified level, determined in advance by

the Remuneration Committee, then no

performance pay will be awarded.

Group performance

The 12 Key Performance Indicators (KPI) measures used for determining the Group performance under the Annual Performance Pay

Plan are summarised in the following table. These are the Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) from Nationwide’s Corporate Plan. 

Meeting the targets set for these measures means that we are performing strongly and delivering value to our Members.

CEO

On target pay for CEO 2007/08 On target pay for EDs 2007/08

Variable: 
Annual &

Medium Term
Performance

Pay, 54%

Fixed: 
Base Salary,

46%

EDs

Variable: 
Annual &

Medium Term
Performance

Pay, 46%

Fixed: 
Base Salary,

54%

On target pay

Nationwide strongly believes in pay for performance. 

A large portion of the total pay that directors can earn is

based on their personal performance and that of the

Society. The charts below show the split of 2007/08

target remuneration between fixed base salary and

Annual and Medium Term Performance Pay for the 

CEO and a typical executive director.
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The target and maximum performance pay

levels have been increased by comparison

to the 2006/07 scheme in order to keep

the plan in line with current market

practice. The maximum performance

award is only paid if the Society out-

performs against the targets set by the

Remuneration Committee for each of the

elements. This year the performance pay

awarded to the CEO was 112% and the

average performance pay awarded to

executive directors was 63.67%.

The Annual Performance Pay Plan awards,

represent a strong performance in a

demanding year made even more difficult

by unprecedented market conditions. The

particular challenges in the current year

presented by the merger and subsequent

process of integration of Portman and the

impact of the credit crisis, have all been

considered by the Committee and

reflected in the performance pay awarded. 

The Committee will continue to monitor

the effectiveness of the Annual

Performance Pay Plan and any changes

will reflect the need to ensure the plan

effectively recognises and rewards

performance which adds value to our

Members and ensure the financial

strength of the Society.

Medium Term Performance Pay Plan 

The Medium Term Performance 

Pay Plan recognises sustained
performance and achieving

challenging financial targets over a

three year performance cycle. A new

three year performance cycle starts

each year.

The Performance Pay awards made to

directors in 2008 are in respect of

achievement against the financial targets

in the following areas over the three years

from 2005/06 to 2007/08:

Measure What does it mean? Why is it used?

Accumulated Total This is the aggregate of We need to ensure that the business is financially strong and Members receive the

Member Value profit and pricing benefit benefits of mutuality.

over 3 years given to Members.

Cost Income Ratio This measures how Improving our efficiency and lowering our costs enables us to give more value to

efficiently we run the our Members.

business.

The maximum incentive that could be

paid during the year to the Chief

Executive is 70% of base salary and for

other executive directors it is 60%. Like

the Annual Performance Pay Plan, the

maximum can only be paid if the Society

out-performs against the demanding

targets set by the Remuneration

Committee. If our performance falls below

the minimum acceptable performance,

then no performance pay awards will 

be made. The Remuneration Committee

reviews performance against targets 

each year.

The Medium Term Performance Pay

awarded this year reflect that over the 3

years of the plan we have been able to

provide our Members with member value

of around £680 million per annum

through better product pricing and we

have also run the business more

efficiently by reducing our reported cost

income ratio from 60.6% in 2005/06 to

55.7% in 2007/08.

The Plan has been operating for a 

number of years and it has been highly

successful in helping to focus and reward

our directors in delivering sustained value

and benefits to our Members.

Target payout (% of base salary) Maximum payout (% of base salary)
Performance element Performance element

Group Local Individual Total Group Local Individual Total

CEO 45% 0% 30% 75% 75% 0% 50% 125%

Executive directors 15% 25% 10% 50% 25% 40% 20% 85%

Local performance

Local performance relates to the

performance of the area of the business for

which the director concerned is directly

responsible. Targets and objectives from

the Corporate Plan are identified by the

Remuneration Committee for each of the

executive directors at the beginning of the

year. Performance against these targets is

monitored and assessed by the

Remuneration Committee, assisted by the

CEO at the end of the year. Performance

pay awarded is based on how well the

director’s business area has performed

relative to the targets and objectives set.

Individual performance 

The Committee recognise the importance

of individual contributions and this

element of the Annual Performance Pay

Plan is closely monitored throughout the

year. Individual performance covers

elements such as personal contribution,

leadership, management, living the

corporate values and the contribution that

an individual makes to achieving

organisational priorities.

The way in which the 3 elements of Group,

Local and Individual performance combine

to form the Performance Pay awarded

(expressed as a percentage of base salary

for target and maximum performance) are

shown in the following table:
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Non executive directors 2008 2007

Society Subsidiary Total Society Subsidiary Total

Fees Fees Fees Fees

(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3)

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

G M T Howe (Chairman) 187 - 187 50 - 50

Mrs S J David 62 - 62 53 - 53

Ms S C Ellen 26 - 26 - - -

M P Nicholls 26 - 26 - - -

D A Ross 89 - 89 65 - 65

Ms S Taverne 57 - 57 43 - 43

W Tudor John (Joint Deputy Chairman) 47 - 47 - - -

R P Walther (Joint Deputy Chairman) 80 18 98 65 18 83

J G W Agnew 96 - 96 200 - 200

R G Handover 20 - 20 51 - 51

J Engestrom - - - 18 5 23

B A Walsh - - - 27 - 27

Total 690 18 708 572 23 595

Pension payments to past directors in respect 

of services as directors 378 409

Notes:

1. G M T Howe was appointed Chairman 19 July 2007. Ms S C Ellen, W Tudor John and M P Nicholls were appointed to the Board following the merger

with the Portman Building Society on 28 August 2007 having previously been non executive directors of Portman Building Society.

2. Subsidiary fees relate to fees payable as a director of Nationwide Life Ltd and Nationwide Unit Trust Managers Ltd before the sale of the companies 

on 31 January 2008.

3. J G W Agnew and R G Handover retired from the Board on 19 July 2007. J Engestrom and B A Walsh retired from the Board on 20 July 2006.

The Committee will continue to monitor

the effectiveness of the Medium Term

Performance Pay Plan design and as with

the Annual Performance Pay Plan, any

changes will reflect the need to ensure the

plan effectively recognises and rewards

performance which adds value to our

Members and increase the financial

strength of the Society.

Pensions and benefits

Four executive directors (G J Beale, S D M

Bernau, D J Rigney, J A Sutherland) are

members of the executive section of the

Nationwide Pension Fund and they have

been able to accrue a pension of 1/30th of

pensionable salary for each year of

service, up to a maximum of two-thirds of

pensionable salary. Pension entitlements

are reduced to take account of any

entitlement a director may have under the

Group’s funded unregistered pension

scheme and any elections to restrict

pension accrual. Three executive directors

have elected to receive pension allowances

in compensation for restricting pension

accrual and details can be found in notes to

the directors’ remuneration tables below.

T P Prestedge is a member of the 

Portman Executive Stakeholder Scheme.

M M Rennison receives payments to

compensate him for pension benefits that

he gave up when he left his previous

employer to join the Society. He also

receives pension accrual under our 1/54th

Career Average Revalued Earnings Pension

Scheme and a monthly pension allowance.

M P V Wyles is a member of the executive

section of the Portman Final Salary Scheme

and is able to accrue a pension of 3% of

pensionable salary for each year of service,

up to a maximum of two-thirds of the

Scheme earnings cap (currently 

£123,750). He also receives a monthly

pension allowance.

In addition, executive directors receive

other benefits including a car allowance,

healthcare and mortgage allowance. 

All current executive directors have a

contractual notice period of 12 months.

Fees for non executive directors

The fees payable to non executive

directors are set after reviewing the

responsibilities of each director compared

with roles in similar organisations. The

Chairman’s fee is reviewed and approved

by the Remuneration Committee. The fees

of the other non executive directors are

reviewed and approved by the executive

directors and by the Chairman.

Non executive directors do not take part

in any of our performance pay plans or in

any pension arrangement.
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Executive directors Salary Pension Annual Benefits Medium Increase Total before Contractual/ Total

allowances Performance Term in accrued contractual/ other

Pay Performance pension other settlements

Pay settlements (Note 3)

2007 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

G J Beale 374 6 181 24 178 21 784 - 784

S D M Bernau 368 - 179 24 175 19 765 - 765

M M Rennison 67 17 32 5 32 1 154 - 154

D J Rigney 153 6 73 13 72 14 331 - 331

P F Williamson 605 242 374 24 342 24 1,611 1,608 3,219

B K Simpson 445 178 216 24 211 6 1,080 890 1,970

J H Willens 161 64 69 13 120 10 437 926 1,363

2,173 513 1,124 127 1,130 95 5,162 3,424 8,586

Notes:

1. G J Beale was promoted to the office of Chief Executive Officer on the 1 April 2007 having previously been the Group Finance Director. J A Sutherland

was appointed to the Board on 5 April 2007. T P Prestedge and M P V Wyles were appointed to the Board on 28 August 2007.

2. £195,700 of the salary of G J Beale and £30,500 of the salary of D J Rigney has been paid in non pensionable form. G J Beale and D J Rigney 

receive a pension allowance on this non pensionable salary in lieu of an alternative pension benefit. J A Sutherland receives a pension allowance

instead of additional pension accrual. His pension benefits previously accrued in the Fund remain linked to pensionable salary. Over the financial 

year M M Rennison transferred benefits into the Fund which relate to benefits in his previous employment. The increase in accrued pension over the

financial year relating to service with Nationwide Building Society is £7,717 p.a.

3. P F Williamson, B K Simpson and J H Willens, retired from the Board on 31 March 2007, 5 May 2007 and 30 September 2006 respectively. A full

breakdown of their contractual and other compensation was given in the 2007 Report of the Directors on Remuneration (page 43). They each

received a pension allowance in 2007 instead of receiving further benefits that they were entitled to under the Society’s pension plans.

Executive directors Salary Pension Annual Benefits Medium Increase Total before Contractual/ Total
(Note 1) allowances Performance Term in accrued contractual/ other

(Note 2) Pay Performance pension other settlements
Pay settlements

2008 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

G J Beale 575 78 644 25 357 23 1,702 - 1,702

S D M Bernau 400 - 215 23 206 33 877 - 877

T P Prestedge 179 - 114 86 92 - 471 - 471

M M Rennison 400 103 315 21 206 23 1,068 - 1,068

D J Rigney 318 12 234 24 164 21 773 - 773

J A Sutherland 280 112 136 25 144 55 752 - 752

M P V Wyles 185 34 118 7 95 2 441 - 441

2,337 339 1,776 211 1,264 157 6,084 - 6,084

Executive directors
The table below shows the remuneration

received for the year ended 4 April 2008.

The contractual settlement is made up of

salary and performance pay for the

balance of the notice period for each

departing director, earned Medium Term

Performance Pay Plan payments (based 

on the Society’s performance and 

reduced to take into account that the

director left the Society before the end 

of the normal plan cycles) and other

payments that each director is entitled to.

Further details are provided in the notes

to the table.
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Executive directors Accrued Accrued Transfer Transfer Change in Additional Transfer Directors’ Society
pension at pension at value at value at transfer pensions value of the contributions contributions

4.4.08 4.4.07 4.4.08 4.4.07 value earned in increase in year to Directors
(Note 3) (Note 3) year DC scheme

(Note 2)
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

(a) (b) (c) (d) (c)-(d) (e) (f) (g) (h)

G J Beale 206 183 2,879 2,128 751 15 215 27 -

S D M Bernau 264 231 5,031 3,789 1,242 24 463 28 -

T P Prestedge - - - - - - - 9 54

M M Rennison 24 1 316 14 302 23 298 20 -

D J Rigney 63 42 746 401 345 19 230 20 -

J A Sutherland 165 110 2,575 1,443 1,132 51 789 20 -

M P V Wyles 39 37 795 610 185 2 40 4 -

Notes:

1. T P Prestedge and M P V Wyles were appointed to the Board on 28 August 2007. J A Sutherland was appointed to the Board on 5 April 2007.

2. T P Prestedge is a member of the Portman Executive Stakeholder Scheme to which the Society makes contributions. Over the financial year 

M M Rennison transferred benefits into the Fund which related to benefits in his previous employment. The pension as at 4 April 2008 and real

increases in accrued pension over the financial year relating to service with Nationwide Building Society are £9,102 p.a. and £7,717 p.a. respectively.

The equivalent transfer value of the real increase in accrued pension is £100,774. J A Sutherland receives a pension allowance instead of additional

pension accrual. The pension benefits previously accrued in the Fund remain linked to pensionable salary.

3. Figures in columns (b) and (d) for M P V Wyles are as at 28 August 2007.

Explanations:

(a) and (b) show deferred pension entitlements at 4 April 2008 and 2007 respectively.

(c) is the transfer value of the deferred pension in (a) calculated at 4 April 2008.

(d) is the equivalent transfer value at 4 April 2007 of the deferred pension in (b) on the assumption that the director left service on that date.

(e) is the increase in pension built up during the year recognising the additional service completed and the effect of pay changes in ‘real’

(inflation adjusted) terms on the pension already earned at the start of the year.

(f) is the capital value of the pension in (e).

(g) contributions are inclusive of salary sacrifice contributions.

(h) the contributions made by the Society in respect of directors' defined contribution arrangements.

Mrs S J David
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

21 May 2008

Pensions
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We have audited the Group and Society Annual

Accounts of Nationwide Building Society for the

year ended 4 April 2008 which comprise the

Group and Society Income Statements, the

Group and Society Balance Sheets, the Group

and Society Statements of Recognised Income

and Expense, the Group and Society

Statements of Movements in Reserves, the

Group and Society Cash Flow Statements and

the related notes. These Annual Accounts 

have been prepared under the accounting

policies set out therein. We have also audited

the information in the Report of the Directors

on Remuneration that is described as having

been audited.

We have examined the Annual Business

Statement (other than the details of Directors

and Officers upon which we are not required to

report) and the Directors’ Report.

Respective responsibilities of 
Directors and Auditors

The Directors’ responsibilities for the

preparation of the Annual Report, including the

Annual Accounts, the Report of the Directors on

Remuneration, the Annual Business Statement

and the Directors’ Report in accordance with

applicable law and International Financial

Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the

European Union, are set out in the Statement

of Directors’ Responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the Annual

Accounts and the part of the Report of the

Directors on Remuneration to be audited in

accordance with relevant legal and regulatory

requirements and International Standards on

Auditing (UK and Ireland). This report,

including the opinion, has been prepared for,

and only for, the Society’s members as a body

in accordance with Section 78 of the Building

Societies Act 1986 and for no other purpose.

We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or

assume responsibility for any other purpose or

to any other person to whom this report is

shown or into whose hands it may come save

where expressly agreed by our prior consent 

in writing.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the

Annual Accounts give a true and fair view and

whether the Annual Accounts and the part of

the Report of the Directors on Remuneration to

be audited have been properly prepared in

accordance with the Building Societies Act

1986, regulations made under it and Article 4

of the IAS Regulation. We also report to you our

opinion as to whether certain information

included within the Annual Business Statement

gives a true representation of the matters in

respect of which it is given, whether the

information given in the Directors’ Report is

consistent with the accounting records and the

Annual Accounts, and whether the Annual

Business Statement and the Directors’ Report

have been prepared in accordance with the

applicable requirements of the Building

Societies Act 1986 and regulations made 

under it.

We also report to you if, in our opinion, the

Annual Accounts are not in agreement with the

accounting records, or if we have not received

all the information and explanations we require

for our audit.

We read other information contained in the

Annual Report and consider whether it is

consistent with the audited Annual Accounts.

This other information comprises only the

Financial Highlights, the Chairman’s Statement,

the Chief Executive’s Review, the Business

Review, Corporate Responsibility, Nationwide

Foundation, Board Biographies, the remainder

of the Report of the Directors on Remuneration

and the Report of the Directors on Corporate

Governance. We consider the implications for

our report if we become aware of any 

apparent misstatements or material

inconsistencies with the Annual Accounts, the

Annual Business Statement or the Directors’

Report. Our responsibilities do not extend to

any other information.

Basis of Audit Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with

International Standards on Auditing (UK and

Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board.

An audit includes examination, on a test basis,

of evidence relevant to the amounts and

disclosures in the Annual Accounts, the Annual

Business Statement and the part of the Report

of the Directors on Remuneration to be audited.

It also includes an assessment of the significant

estimates and judgements made by the

Directors in the preparation of the Annual

Accounts, and of whether the accounting

policies are appropriate to the Group’s and

Society’s circumstances, consistently applied

and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to

obtain all the information and explanations

which we considered necessary in order to

provide us with sufficient evidence to give

reasonable assurance that the Annual Accounts

and the part of the Report of the Directors on

Remuneration to be audited are free from

material misstatement, whether caused by

fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming

our opinion we also evaluated the overall

adequacy of the presentation of information in

the Annual Accounts and the part of the Report

of the Directors on Remuneration to be audited.

Opinion

In our opinion:

• the Annual Accounts give a true and fair

view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by

the European Union, of the state of the

Group’s and the Society’s affairs at 4 April

2008 and of the Group’s and the Society’s

income and expenditure and cash flows for

the year then ended;

• the information given in the Annual Business

Statement (other than the information upon

which we are not required to report) gives a

true representation of the matters in respect

of which it is given;

• the information given in the Directors’ Report

is consistent with the accounting records and

the Annual Accounts; and

• the Annual Accounts, the part of the Report

of the Directors on Remuneration to be

audited, the Annual Business Statement and

the Directors’ Report have each been

prepared in accordance with the applicable

requirements of the Building Societies Act

1986 and regulations made under it and, as

regards the Annual Accounts, Article 4 of the

IAS Regulation.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and

Registered Auditors

London

21 May 2008

To the members of Nationwide Building Society
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For the year ended 4 April 2008

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

Restated

(Note 1)

Notes £m £m £m £m

Interest receivable and similar income 3 9,701.3 6,890.9 9,342.0 6,552.9

Interest expense and similar charges 4 7,905.0 5,411.6 7,827.0 5,293.2

Net interest income 1,796.3 1,479.3 1,515.0 1,259.7

Fee and commission income 5 333.2 335.4 296.1 299.8

Fee and commission expense 6 (1.7) (3.6) (1.7) (3.3)

Premiums on insurance contracts and fair value gains/losses on 

insurance assets 7 142.3 224.9 - -

Income from investments 8 24.7 23.1 152.7 430.2

Other operating income 9 3.3 36.0 5.0 12.4

(Losses)/gains from derivatives and hedge accounting 10 (30.7) 0.9 (31.6) 2.2

Profit on sale of subsidiary undertakings 9.5 - 132.9 -

Total income 2,276.9 2,096.0 2,068.4 2,001.0

Insurance claims and change in insurance liabilities 7 100.4 169.9 - -

Total income net of claims on insurance contracts 2,176.5 1,926.1 2,068.4 2,001.0

Administrative expenses 11 1,167.8 984.5 1,085.0 936.5

Depreciation and amortisation 124.3 124.4 123.3 123.1

Impairment loss on loans and advances to customers 13 105.9 133.6 56.9 76.2

Provisions for liabilities and charges 36 (9.8) 36.5 (11.8) 34.0

Impairment losses/(gains) on investment securities 18 102.2 (4.9) 102.2 (4.9)

Profit before tax 686.1 652.0 712.8 836.1

Analysed as:

• Profit before tax and merger and similar costs 745.1 671.5 771.8 855.6

• Merger and similar costs (59.0) (19.5) (59.0) (19.5)

Profit before tax 686.1 652.0 712.8 836.1

Taxation 14 190.8 188.4 158.4 143.8

Profit after tax 495.3 463.6 554.4 692.3

Merger and similar costs relate to the merger with Portman Building Society on 28 August 2007 and setting up of the new distribution agreement with

Legal & General.

The accounting policies and notes on pages 53 to 104 form part of these Accounts.
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At 4 April 2008

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

Restated

(Note 1)

Notes £m £m £m £m

Assets
Cash and balances with the Bank of England 406.5 364.0 398.4 361.1

Loans and advances to banks 17 5,784.1 1,490.1 5,723.6 1,321.4

Investment securities – available for sale 18 25,485.5 15,600.6 25,508.8 13,723.1

Derivative financial instruments 19 2,407.7 1,071.6 1,230.1 1,044.4

Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk 20 247.0 (619.5) 247.0 (619.5)

Loans and advances to customers 21 142,803.7 115,938.4 126,046.1 106,469.1

Investments in equity shares 22 60.9 36.7 19.4 10.7

Investments in group undertakings 23 - - 16,283.0 9,287.7

Intangible fixed assets 24 136.9 106.1 124.6 106.1

Property, plant and equipment 25 810.8 663.7 797.6 648.4

Investment properties 26 15.1 15.1 11.9 11.9

Accrued income and expenses prepaid 27 555.5 76.3 1,828.3 176.3

Deferred tax assets 28 115.9 77.2 109.5 73.1

Other assets 191.5 161.6 148.3 81.4

Assets classified as held for sale 16 5.5 2,396.6 5.5 -

Total assets 179,026.6 137,378.5 178,482.1 132,695.2

Liabilities
Shares 29 113,815.8 86,795.4 113,815.8 86,795.4

Deposits from banks 30 11,776.8 3,288.7 11,226.4 2,767.4

Other deposits 31 4,566.6 3,406.7 7,870.9 5,806.8

Due to customers 32 3,433.2 2,926.1 732.4 945.0

Debt securities in issue 33 33,771.8 28,871.7 34,026.0 27,568.1

Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk 20 0.2 (30.2) 0.2 (19.9)

Derivative financial instruments 19 1,201.5 703.2 1,292.3 564.6

Other liabilities 35 750.9 516.5 660.3 438.6

Provisions for liabilities and charges 36 16.0 50.3 16.0 37.3

Accruals and deferred income 37 355.1 367.0 314.1 328.4

Subordinated liabilities 38 2,058.2 1,617.0 2,058.2 1,617.0

Subscribed capital 39 1,244.9 1,045.4 1,244.9 1,045.4

Current tax liabilities (12.2) 93.2 (7.4) 73.8

Retirement benefit obligations 40 39.7 172.4 39.4 172.1

Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale 16 - 2,090.7 - -

Total liabilities 173,018.5 131,914.1 173,289.5 128,140.0

General reserve 41 6,303.4 5,295.8 5,452.4 4,413.1

Revaluation reserve 42 121.2 128.2 121.2 127.9

Available for sale reserve 43 (418.3) 40.4 (382.8) 14.2

Cash flow hedge reserve 44 1.8 - 1.8 -

Total reserves & liabilities 179,026.6 137,378.5 178,482.1 132,695.2

The accounting policies and notes on pages 53 to 104 form part of these Accounts.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 21 May 2008.

G M T Howe Chairman

R P Walther Joint Deputy Chairman

G J Beale Director and Chief Executive

M M Rennison Group Finance Director
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Statements of Recognised Income and Expense

CLARITY in numbers

For the year ended 4 April 2008

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

Notes £m £m £m £m

Available for sale investments – net fair value loss 43 (633.1) (69.0) (569.5) (51.2)

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment 42 (18.5) 21.4 (18.0) 21.3

Cash flow hedge amortisation 44 (1.0) - (1.0) -

Actuarial gain on retirement benefit obligations 41 60.8 1.6 60.8 1.3

Taxation on items through reserves 165.7 15.4 163.6 13.9

Net expense recognised directly in reserves (426.1) (30.6) (364.1) (14.7)

Net profit for the year 495.3 463.6 554.4 692.3

Total recognised income and expense for the year 69.2 433.0 190.3 677.6



2008 ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS  51

Statements of Movements in Reserves

For the year ended 4 April 2008

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

Notes £m £m £m £m

At 5 April 5,464.4 5,031.4 4,555.2 3,877.6

Total recognised income and expense for the year 69.2 433.0 190.3 677.6

Acquired on transfer of engagements 51 704.7 - 677.3 -

Merger related bonus to Portman members 41 (328.7) - (328.7) -

Taxation of merger related bonus to Portman members 41 98.5 - 98.5 -

At 4 April 6,008.1 5,464.4 5,192.6 4,555.2

The accounting policies and notes on pages 53 to 104 form part of these Accounts.
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Cash Flow Statements

CLARITY in numbers

For the year ended 4 April 2008

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

Notes £m £m £m £m

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 686.1 652.0 712.8 836.1

Adjustments for:

• Non-cash items included in profit before tax 50 399.9 272.6 284.8 243.1

• Changes in operating assets 50 (31,432.3) (13,664.1) (32,991.9) (17,553.6)

• Changes in operating liabilities 50 40,989.7 15,724.3 44,963.3 19,220.9

• Interest paid on subordinated liabilities (87.0) (68.2) (87.0) (68.2)

• Interest paid on subscribed capital (74.4) (44.9) (74.4) (44.9)

• Taxation (66.7) (178.3) (8.9) (129.0)

Net cash flows from operating activities 10,415.3 2,693.4 12,798.7 2,504.4

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investment securities (23,570.9) (10,983.8) (23,456.6) (10,086.4)

Sale and maturity of investment securities 16,260.0 9,268.7 14,311.0 8,815.7

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (179.1) (111.2) (178.2) (111.2)

Sale of property, plant and equipment 20.5 21.7 19.6 16.8

Purchase of investment properties - (5.4) - -

Sale of investment properties 1.5 286.6 - -

Purchase of intangible fixed assets (38.6) (58.6) (38.6) (58.6)

Sale of subsidiary undertaking 288.9 - 288.9 -

Cash and cash equivalents acquired on transfer of engagements 391.5 - 388.6 -

Net cash flows from investing activities (6,826.2) (1,582.0) (8,665.3) (1,423.7)

Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of subordinated liabilities - 201.8 - 201.8

Issue of subscribed capital - 347.3 - 347.3

Net cash flows from financing activities - 549.1 - 549.1

Net increase in cash 3,589.1 1,660.5 4,133.4 1,629.8

Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 5,622.6 3,962.1 5,009.7 3,379.9

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 50 9,211.7 5,622.6 9,143.1 5,009.7

Changes in operating assets and changes in operating liabilities include £19,981.2 million of assets and liabilities acquired on transfer of engagements

from Portman Building Society.
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1 Statement of Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and interpretations issued by the

International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC); as adopted by the European Union and with those parts of the Building Societies

(Accounts and Related Provisions) Regulations 1998 applicable to organisations reporting under IFRS. The financial statements have been prepared

under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of investment properties, land and buildings, available for sale assets, derivatives and

other financial assets at fair value through the income statement. A summary of the Group’s accounting policies is set out below. 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires the use of estimates and assumptions that

affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during

the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual results ultimately

may differ from those estimates. Further details on critical accounting estimates are given in note 2.

Transfer of engagements

On 28 August 2007, the Society merged with Portman Building Society, with Portman transferring its engagements to the Society. The transfer of

engagements has not been accounted for in accordance with IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ as this standard specifically excludes business

combinations involving two mutual entities. The assets and liabilities acquired on transfer of engagements from Portman Building Society are

incorporated at their carrying values in the Portman cessation accounts, adjusted to reflect the Group’s accounting policies. Details of the transfer are

given in note 51. The income statement includes the results of the engagements transferred from Portman Building Society since 28 August 2007. 

The Portman Building Society completion accounts are available on application from the Financial Services Authority.

Basis of consolidation

The Group accounts consolidate the assets, liabilities and results of the Society and all its subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are all entities, including special purpose entities, over which the Society has the power to govern the financial and operating policies

generally. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and are de-consolidated from the date that

control ceases. Upon consolidation, inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions are eliminated. 

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated in the Society Accounts at cost less provisions for any impairment in value. The Directors consider it

appropriate for administrative and commercial reasons that subsidiary undertakings have financial years ending on 31 March. Adjustment is made for

individually significant transactions arising between 31 March and the Society’s year end. Certain special purpose entities have year ends other than 

31 March and are consolidated using internal management accounts prepared to that date.

As the consolidated accounts include partnerships where a Group member is a partner, advantage is taken of the exemption given by Regulation 7 of 

the Partnerships and Unlimited Companies (Accounts) Regulations 1993 with regard to the preparation and filing of individual partnership accounts.

The following IFRS and IFRIC pronouncements relevant to the Group have been adopted:

• Amendment to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements – Capital Disclosures’. This standard requires additional disclosures of the objectives, policies

and processes for managing capital, quantitative data about what the Group regards as capital, and compliance with capital requirements. 

The Group has previously applied early IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments : Disclosures’ prospectively from 5 April 2005.

Future Accounting Developments

The following pronouncements will be relevant to the Group but were not effective at 4 April 2008 and have not been applied in preparing these

financial statements. The full impact of these accounting changes is being assessed by the Group; however, the initial view is that these pronouncements

are not expected to cause any significant impact on the Group Accounts other than as noted in the table overleaf.
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Prior year adjustment for change in accounting policy

There has been a change of accounting policy that impacts on the Society only and not on the consolidated Group in respect of the financing

arrangements between the Society and its subsidiary Nationwide Covered Bond LLP (the LLP).

The Society issues covered bonds to external counterparties and then on lends the proceeds on back to back terms to the LLP. The LLP then uses these

same proceeds to purchase a beneficial interest in mortgages from the Society. As a consequence of the IAS 39 recognition requirement, the mortgages

remain on the balance sheet of the Society and the receipt of proceeds from the LLP is recorded as a loan from the LLP.

Previously the loan to the LLP and the loan back to the Society were recognised as an asset and a liability, in addition to the asset recognised for the

mortgages and the liability recognised for the bonds issued to external counterparties. This had the effect of grossing up both the Society’s balance

sheet and its interest income and expense. Under the new policy, the loan to the LLP and the loan back to the Society are not recognised separately as

an additional asset and liability. This ensures that the balance sheet and income statement of the Society do not present two assets (and associated

interest income) and two liabilities (and associated interest expense) for the same underlying cash flows. The directors believe that the new policy better

reflects the substance of the arrangement.

The impact of this change of accounting policy has been to reduce total assets and liabilities in the Society’s balance sheet at 4 April 2008 by £10,927.8

million, (4 April 2007 : £5,942.4 million). There is no net change to 2007 (or prior period) reported Society pre or post tax profits in the income

statement and there is no change to the net increase in cash in the cash flow statement, although there were changes to gross amounts reported. Gross

interest receivable and payable for 2007 have been reduced by £118.4 million. 

Assets classified as held for sale and associated liabilities

In accordance with IFRS 5 (non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations) the Group classifies assets and liabilities as held for sale, where

they will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. The assets and liabilities are carried at the lower of their

carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell except for financial assets which are included at fair value. Details of the assets and liabilities classified as

held for sale are disclosed in note 16.

1 Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)

Pronouncement Nature of change Effective date

IFRIC 14 and IAS 19 – The Limit on a Provides guidance on the availability of refunds or reductions in future Annual periods (AP) 

Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding contributions for retirement plans. Specifies how a minimum funding beginning on or 

Requirement and their Interaction requirement might either affect the availability of reductions in future after 1 January 2008 

contributions or give rise to a liability.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial This will revise the presentation of financial statements including a single AP on or after

Statements (Revised) statement of comprehensive income or a separate income statement and 1 January 2009

a statement of comprehensive income with a statement of movements in

reserves. Adopting this change would have a fundamental effect on the

presentation of the accounts.

IFRS 8 Operating Segments Replaces IAS 14 Segment Reporting and requires the reporting of AP on or after

information on operating segments based on how financial information is 1 January 2009

reported and evaluated internally.

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs (Revised) Relates to interest costs on assets that take a substantial time to get ready AP on or after

for intended use or sale. The option to recognise all borrowing costs 1 January 2009

immediately as an expense is eliminated, such costs must be capitalised.

All other borrowing costs should be expensed as incurred.

IFRS 3 Business Combinations (Revised) This revision brings the combination of two Mutual organisations into the AP on or after 

scope of the standard. Business combinations must be accounted for using 1 July 2009

the acquisition method. All payments to purchase a business are to be

recorded at fair value at the acquisition date. Hence this change would

have impacted on the way we accounted for the merger by requiring

assets to be fair valued.

IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate This revision covers the treatment of partial acquisitions, step acquisitions, AP on or after

Financial Statements (Amended) acquisition related costs and contingent consideration. 1 July 2009

IAS 32 Financial Instruments: This amendment requires some puttable financial instruments and some AP on or after

Presentation and IAS 1 Presentation of financial instruments that impose on the entity an obligation to deliver to 1 January 2009

Financial Statements – puttable financial another part a pro rata share of the net assets of the entity only on

instruments and obligations arising on liquidation to be classified as equity (currently would be classified as

liquidations (Amended) financial liabilities). Nationwide holds no such instruments.

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes Addresses accounting by entities who grant customer loyalty award credits AP on or after 

to customers as part of sales transactions and which can be redeemed in 1 July 2008

the future for free or discounted goods or services. The Group does not

currently operate such a scheme.
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1 Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)

Interest receivable and interest expense

For instruments measured at amortised cost the effective interest method is used.

The effective interest rate method is used to measure the carrying value of a financial asset or a liability and to allocate associated interest income or

expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the

expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. 

In calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, early

redemption penalty charges) but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees received and paid and costs borne that are an

integral part of the effective interest rate and all other premiums or discounts above or below market rates.

Interest income on available for sale assets, derivatives and other financial assets at fair value through the income statement is included in interest

receivable and similar income.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognised using

the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Fees and commissions

Direct fees and costs incremental to generating a financial instrument are deferred and spread as interest receivable or expense on an effective 

interest basis.

Other fees and commissions are recognised on the accruals basis as services are provided, or on the performance of a significant act.

Segmental reporting

A business segment is defined as a group of assets and operations providing products and services that are subject to different risks and returns from

those of other business segments. The Group considers that business segments are its primary reporting format for segment analysis. Business segments

are based on the Group’s management and internal reporting structures.

No segmental analysis is presented on geographical lines because substantially all of the Group’s activities are in the United Kingdom and the Isle of Man.

Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets (including the fair value of

contingent liabilities) of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition or date of implementation of IFRS 3. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is

included as an intangible asset. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. The impairment test

compares the carrying value of goodwill to the underlying associated asset value in use. If the carrying value exceeds the value in use, goodwill is

considered impaired. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

(b) Software

IAS 38 ‘Intangible Assets’ requires the capitalisation of certain expenditure relating to software development costs. Software development costs are

capitalised if it is probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefits. Costs incurred to establish technological feasibility or to maintain

existing levels of performance are recognised as an expense.

Web costs are capitalised where the expenditure is incurred on developing an income generating website.

Where software costs are capitalised, they are amortised using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives (3 to 5 years). The amortisation

periods used are reviewed annually.

Computer application software licences are recognised as intangible fixed assets and amortised using the straight line method over their useful lives.

Leases

Leases entered into by the Group are primarily operating leases.

(a) As lessee

Operating leases are leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the lessee. The Group has entered

into operating leases for land and buildings. Operating lease payments are charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the life of

the lease. 

(b) As lessor

Lease income receivable under operating leases is credited to the income statement on a straight line basis over the life of the lease. 

Taxation including deferred tax

Corporation tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law in each jurisdiction, is recognised as an expense in the period in which profits arise.

The tax effects of tax losses available for carry forward are recognised as an asset when it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against

which these losses can be utilised.
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Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the

balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the timing of the reversal of the

temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Tax related to fair value re-measurement of available for sale assets, which are charged or credited directly to the available for sale reserve, is also credited

or charged directly to the available for sale reserve and is subsequently recognised in the income statement together with the deferred gain or loss.

Tax related to movements in the valuation of property, which are charged or credited directly to the revaluation reserve, is also credited or charged

directly to the revaluation reserve and is subsequently recognised on disposal of the property.

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold and long leasehold properties comprise mainly branches and office buildings.

Branches and non specialised buildings are stated at revalued amounts, being the fair value, determined by market based evidence, at the date of the

valuation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent impairment. Valuations are completed annually by independent surveyors.

Increases in the valuations of branches and non specialised buildings are credited to the revaluation reserve except where they reverse decreases for the

same asset previously recognised in the income statement, in which case the increase in the valuation is recognised in the income statement. Decreases

in valuations are recognised in the income statement except where they reverse amounts previously credited to the revaluation reserve for the same

asset, in which case the decrease in valuation is recognised in the revaluation reserve. 

Other property, plant and equipment, including specialised administration buildings and short leasehold buildings, are included at historical cost less

accumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items, major alterations and

refurbishments. Where applicable, directly attributable borrowing costs incurred in the construction of qualifying assets are capitalised.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets commences when the assets are ready for their intended use and is calculated using the straight

line method to allocate their cost or valuation over the following estimated useful lives:

Branches and non specialised buildings 60 years

Specialised administration buildings 25 to 43 years

Short leasehold buildings over the period of the lease

Other equipment 3 to 10 years

Estimated useful lives are reviewed annually and adjusted, if appropriate, in the light of technological developments, usage and other relevant factors.

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An asset’s

carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the net disposal proceeds with the carrying amount of the asset and are included in the

income statement.

Investment properties

Investment properties, which comprise of properties held for rental, are stated at fair value. The properties are revalued annually by independent

surveyors supported by market evidence. Changes in fair value are included in the income statement. 

Depreciation is not charged on investment properties. 

Financial liabilities

Borrowings, including shares, deposits, debt securities in issue and subordinated liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, being the issue proceeds

net of premiums, discounts and transaction costs incurred. 

Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Amortised cost is adjusted for the amortisation of any

transaction costs premiums and discounts. The amortisation is recognised in interest expense and similar charges using the effective interest method.

Permanent Interest Bearing Shares (subscribed capital), which are redeemable at specific dates at the option of the Society, are classified as financial

liabilities. 

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or has expired.

Borrowings that are designated as hedged items are subject to measurement under the hedge accounting requirements described in the derivatives and

hedge accounting policy note. 

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at inception into the following four categories:

(a) Financial assets at fair value through the income statement

This category consists of derivative financial assets and those assets designated as financial assets at fair value through the income statement at

inception, including all mortgage commitments entered into where a loan has not yet been made. The Group does not hold any financial assets

classified as held for trading.

1 Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)
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Financial assets at fair value through the income statement are carried at fair value. The fair values of derivative instruments are calculated by

discounted cash flow models using yield curves that are based on observable market data.

Gains and losses arising from the changes in the fair values are recognised in the income statement.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. The 

Group’s residential and commercial mortgage loans, unsecured lending and loans to banks are classified as loans and receivables.

Loans are recognised when the funds are advanced to customers. Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective 

interest method.

(c) Available for sale (AFS)

AFS assets are non-derivative financial assets that are not classified into either of the two categories above. 

AFS assets are measured at fair value. Available for sale assets are, in the majority of cases, valued using market prices or prices obtained from

counterparties. In cases where market prices are not available, discounted cash flow valuation models are used.

Interest on available for sale assets is determined using the effective interest method (see interest receivable above).

Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair values are recognised directly in the available for sale reserve, except for impairment

losses, and foreign exchange gains and losses, which are recognised in the income statement. Gains and losses arising on the sale of AFS assets,

including any cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in the available for sale reserve, are recognised in the income statement. 

(d) Investments in equity 

Investments in equity include certain investments which are held at fair value, with the remainder included at cost. Movements in fair value are

accounted for through the AFS reserve.

The Group has not classified any financial assets into the held to maturity category.

Purchases and sales of financial assets are accounted for at trade date. 

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows have expired or where substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership

have been transferred.

The impact of hedging on the measurement of financial assets is detailed in the derivatives and hedge accounting policy note.

Impairment of financial assets

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether, as a result of one or more events that occurred after initial recognition, there is objective

evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets are impaired. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the borrower or group

of borrowers are experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments or the debt being restructured

to reduce the burden on the borrower.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists either individually for assets that are separately significant or individually or

collectively for assets that are not separately significant. If there is no objective evidence of impairment for an individually assessed asset it is

included in a group of assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for impairment. 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s

carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The resultant

provisions have been deducted from the appropriate asset values in the balance sheets.

The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between loss

estimates and actual loss experience.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the

impairment was recognised the provision is adjusted and the amount of the reversal is recognised in the income statement.

Where a loan is not recoverable, it is written off against the related provision for loan impairment once all the necessary procedures have been

completed and the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off decrease the amount of

impairment losses recorded in the income statement.

Loans subject to collective impairment assessment and whose terms have been renegotiated are no longer considered to be past due or impaired

but are treated as new loans after the minimum required number of payments under the new arrangements have been received. Loans subject to

individual impairment assessment, whose terms have been renegotiated, are subject to ongoing review to determine whether they remain impaired

or are considered to be past due.

(b) Available for sale assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets are impaired.

If any such evidence exists for available for sale financial assets, the cumulative loss – measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and

the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously recognised – is recognised in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an investment debt security classified as available for sale increases and the increase can be objectively

related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the income statement, the impairment loss is reversed through the 

income statement.

1 Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)
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Derivatives and hedge accounting

Derivatives are entered into to reduce exposures to fluctuations in interest rates, exchange rates, market indices and credit risk.

(a) Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are carried at fair value with movements in fair values recorded in the income statement. Fair values are calculated by discounted cash

flow models using yield curves that are based on observable market data. All derivatives are classified as assets where their fair value is positive and

liabilities where their fair value is negative. Where there is the legal ability and intention to settle net, then the derivative is classified as a net asset or

liability, as appropriate. 

(b) Embedded derivatives

A number of complex contracts contain both a derivative and a non-derivative component, in which case the derivative is termed an embedded

derivative. If the economic characteristics and risks of embedded derivatives are not closely related to those of the host contract, and the overall

contract itself is not carried at fair value, the embedded derivative is accounted for separately and reported at fair value with gains and losses being

recognised in the income statement.

(c) Hedge accounting

When transactions meet the criteria specified in IAS 39, the Group applies fair value hedge accounting so that changes in the fair value of the

underlying asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk are recorded in the income statement to offset the fair value movement of the

related derivative.

To qualify for hedge accounting at inception the hedge relationship must be clearly documented. At inception the derivative must be expected to be

highly effective in offsetting the hedged risk, and effectiveness must be tested throughout the life of the hedge relationship.

The Group discontinues hedge accounting when:

i) it is evident from testing that a derivative is not, or has ceased to be, highly effective as a hedge;

ii) the derivative expires, or is sold, terminated or exercised; or

iii) the underlying item matures or is sold or repaid.

The Group may also decide to cease hedge accounting even though the hedge relationship continues to be highly effective by ceasing to designate

the financial instrument as a hedge.

If the derivative no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the cumulative fair value hedging adjustment is amortised over the period to

maturity of the previously designated hedge relationship. If the underlying item is sold or repaid, the unamortised fair value adjustment is

immediately reflected in the income statement.

In a micro hedge, the carrying value of the hedged item is adjusted for the change in value of the hedged risk. In the case of a portfolio hedge, the

adjustment is included in fair value adjustments for hedged risk.

Employee benefits

(a) Pensions

The Group operates a number of defined benefit and defined contribution pension arrangements. The majority of the Group’s employees are

members of the defined benefit plans. A defined benefit plan is one that defines the benefit an employee will receive on retirement, depending on

such factors as age, length of service and salary.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of the defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at

the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated by the independent actuary using the projected

unit credit method and assumptions agreed with the Group. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the

estimated future cash flows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the

related pension liability.

Actuarial gains and losses arise from experience adjustments (the effects of differences between previous actuarial assumptions and what has

actually occurred) and changes in actuarial assumptions. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full, in the year they occur, in the statement of

recognised income and expense.

The Group also operates defined contribution arrangements. A defined contribution arrangement is one into which the Group and the employee pays

fixed contributions, without any further obligation to pay further contributions. Payments to defined contribution schemes are charged to the income

statement as they fall due.

Past service costs are recognised immediately in the income statement, unless the changes to the benefits are conditional on the employees

remaining in service for a specified period of time (the vesting period). In this case, the past service costs are amortised on a straight line basis over

the vesting period.

(b) Other post-retirement obligations

The Group provides post-retirement healthcare to a small number of former employees. The Group recognises this obligation and the actuarial gains

and losses in a similar manner to the defined benefit pension plans.

1 Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)
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(c) Other long term employee benefits

The cost of bonuses payable twelve months or more after the end of the year in which they are earned are recognised immediately in the year in

which the employees render the related service.

(d) Short term employee benefits

The cost of short term employee benefits, including wages and salaries, social security costs and healthcare for current employees is recognised in

the year of service.

Long term life insurance

(a) Classification of contracts

Prior to the sale of Nationwide Life the Group issued linked contracts that transferred both insurance risk and financial risk, and term and annuity

contracts that transferred insurance risk. Contracts that contained significant insurance risk for the Group were accounted for as insurance liabilities.

Contracts that did not contain significant insurance risk were classified as investment contracts and accounted for as financial liabilities. Premiums

were recognised as revenue when they become payable by the contract holder. Claims and surrenders were recognised when notified and maturities

recognised on the policy maturity date.

(b) Recognition and measurement of insurance liabilities

Premiums on term insurance contracts were recognised as revenue when they become due for payment. Single premiums on linked contracts were

recognised as revenue when the policy came into force. A liability for contractual benefits that were expected to be incurred in the future was

recognised when the premiums were recognised. Benefits were accounted for on maturity or when the insured event occurred. The increase or

decrease in the liability for contractual benefits and benefits paid is included in the income statement. 

The liability for linked contracts is adjusted for the changes in the fair value of the underlying assets. 

A liability adequacy test is performed using current best estimates of future contractual cash flows, claims handling and administrative expenses and

investment income from assets backing the liabilities. Any deficiency is immediately charged to the income statement by establishing a provision for

losses arising from the liability adequacy test.

Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Sterling, which is the functional currency of the parent undertaking. Items included in the

financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using their functional currency. Foreign currency transactions are translated into

Sterling using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the

rate prevailing at the year end. 

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the retranslation and settlement of these items are recognised in the income statement. 

Exchange differences on equities held at fair value through the income statement, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Fair values are

translated using the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to set

off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise an asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

Sale and repurchase agreements (including stock borrowing and lending)

Investment and other securities may be lent or sold subject to a commitment to repurchase them (a ‘repo’). Such securities are retained on the balance

sheet when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership remain within the Group, and the counterparty liability is included separately on the

balance sheet as appropriate.

Similarly, where the Group borrows or purchases securities subject to a commitment to resell them (a ‘reverse repo’) but does not acquire the risks and

rewards of ownership, the transactions are treated as collateralised loans, and the securities are not included in the balance sheet.

The difference between sale and repurchase price is accrued over the life of the agreements using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity from the date of

acquisition, including: cash and non-restricted balances with central banks, treasury bills and other eligible bills, loans and advances to banks, other

amounts due from banks and short term government securities. 

Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised where there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that the obligation will be settled and it can be

reliably estimated.

Contingent liabilities have not been recognised.
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The Group has to make judgements in applying its accounting policies which affect the amounts recognised in the accounts. In addition, estimates and

assumptions are made that could affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the following financial year. The most significant areas

where judgements and estimates are made are as follows:

Impairment provisions on loans and advances

At 4 April 2008 loans and advances to customers totalled £142,991.2 million (2007: £116,243.4 million) against which impairment provisions of £212.1

million (2007: £203.8 million) have been made.

In accordance with the accounting policy on the impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost where objective evidence exists that a loss has

been incurred, the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows

discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.

Key assumptions included in the measurement of the incurred loss include data regarding the probability of any account going into default, the

probability of defaulted accounts progressing to possession and the eventual loss incurred in the event of forced sale or write off. These assumptions are

based on observed historical data and updated as management considers appropriate to reflect current conditions. The accuracy of the impairment

provision would therefore be affected by unexpected changes in the above assumptions.

To the extent that actual cashflows differ from that estimated by 10%, the impairment provisions on loans and advances would change by an estimated

£33.9 million.

Impairment of available for sale assets

At 4 April 2008 the fair value of available for sale assets totalled £25,485.5 million (2007: £15,600.6 million). At 4 April 2008 cumulative impairment

losses of £30.8 million (2007: £5.6 million) have been charged to the general reserve.

The Group determines that available for sale assets, which include Structured Investment Vehicles (SIVs), are impaired when it is considered that there is

objective evidence of impairment. In determining whether this evidence exists, the Group evaluates, among other factors, the normal volatility in

valuation together with consideration of the appropriateness of valuations under the current market conditions, evidence of deterioration in the financial

health of the investee, industry and sector performance and operational and financing cash flows. This determination has been supported by rigorous

credit assessment, undertaken by Risk Management Division, independently of our Treasury Division. Further details on the impairment of available for

sale assets are included in note 48.

Fair value of derivatives and available for sale assets

Derivative financial instruments and available for sale assets are stated at fair value.

Derivative financial instruments are valued by discounted cash flow models using yield curves that are based on observable market data.

Available for sale assets are, in the majority of cases, valued using market prices or prices obtained from counterparties. In cases where market prices

are not available, discounted cash flow valuation models are used. Changes in the assumptions used in the models could affect the reported fair value of

available for sale assets.

Retirement benefit obligations (Pensions)

At 4 April 2008 net retirement obligations totalled £39.7 million (2007: £172.4 million).

The Group has to make assumptions on the discount rate, expected return on pension plan assets, mortality, inflation and future salary rises when

valuing its pension liability and the cost of benefits provided. Changes in assumptions could affect the reported liability, service cost and expected return

on pension plan assets.

The impact of a 0.1% increase in the inflation assumption would be to increase the carrying value of the pension obligations by approximately £43

million and vice versa. The impact of a 0.1% increase in the discount rate would be to reduce the value of the pension obligations by approximately £43

million and vice versa. Further details on the assumptions used in valuing the retirement benefit obligations can be found in Note 40.

Provisions for liabilities and charges

The Group establishes provisions for the estimated cost of making redress payments to customers in respect of past product sales or other

administration processes, in those cases where the original processes are found to have been deficient. The ultimate cost is inherently uncertain and in

determining the level of provisions required it is necessary for management to exercise significant judgement. The principal assumptions underlying the

provisions relate to the number of cases requiring redress and the estimated average cost of redress per case; these will be affected by external factors

beyond the control of management, such as regulatory actions and the performance of the financial markets. Therefore over time it is possible that

adjustments will be necessary to the level of provisions held.

Effective interest rates (EIR)

The Group uses the EIR method to recognise income for certain financial assets (including Retail and Commercial mortgages) held at amortised cost. To

calculate the appropriate EIR the Group makes assumptions of the expected lives of financial instruments and the anticipated level of early redemption

charges. The most critical assumption is the anticipated level of early redemption penalty charges.

The impact of a 10% change in the anticipated level of early redemption charges would result in a change of the value of the loans on the balance sheet

of £4.4 million.

Taxation

Significant estimates are required in determining the provision for corporation tax. There are a number of transactions for which the final tax

determination is uncertain at the balance sheet date.

2 Judgements in applying accounting policies and critical accounting estimates
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3 Interest receivable and similar income

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

Restated

(Note 1)

£m £m £m £m

On loans fully secured on residential property 6,547.3 5,029.7 5,861.1 4,618.0

On other loans:

• Connected undertakings - - 648.5 385.5

• Other 1,045.3 879.8 903.1 742.7

On investment securities 1,111.4 703.3 983.4 583.9

On other liquid assets 246.8 133.8 195.4 78.6

Net income on financial instruments hedging assets 608.8 33.2 608.8 33.2

Expected return on pension assets (note 40) 141.7 111.1 141.7 111.0

9,701.3 6,890.9 9,342.0 6,552.9

Included within interest receivable and similar income is interest accrued on impaired financial assets: Group £20.5 million, Society £12.6 million 

(2007: Group £17.9 million, Society £15.9 million) and the unwind of the discount on the impairment provisions: Group £5.5 million, Society £5.5 million

(2007: Group £7.0 million, Society £7.0 million) (note 13).

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

Restated

(Note 1)

£m £m £m £m

On shares held by individuals 4,963.9 3,489.0 4,963.9 3,489.0

On other shares 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3

On subscribed capital 76.0 51.0 76.0 51.0

On deposits and other borrowings:

• Subordinated liabilities 90.1 68.8 90.1 68.8

• Connected undertakings - - 216.7 126.1

• Other 829.8 488.3 634.5 332.5

On debt securities in issue 1,564.8 1,155.5 1,533.6 1,095.4

Foreign exchange differences 0.6 2.6 4.2 2.6

Net expense on financial instruments hedging liabilities 266.1 64.0 194.3 35.5

Pension interest cost (note 40) 113.4 92.1 113.4 92.0

7,905.0 5,411.6 7,827.0 5,293.2

5 Fee and commission income

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Mortgage related fees 22.2 22.2 17.2 18.4

Banking and savings fees 165.6 159.2 165.3 159.0

General insurance fees 106.7 119.7 85.5 96.7

Other fees and commissions 38.7 34.3 28.1 25.7

333.2 335.4 296.1 299.8

4 Interest expense and similar charges
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6 Fee and commission expense

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Mortgage related fees - 2.0 - 2.0

Other fees and commissions 1.7 1.6 1.7 1.3

1.7 3.6 1.7 3.3

8 Income from investments

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Income from equity shares 24.7 23.1 - 0.5

Income from shares in subsidiary undertakings - - 152.7 429.7

24.7 23.1 152.7 430.2

Group
2008 2007

£m £m

Insurance premiums receivable:

• Gross 165.1 189.7

• Reinsurers’ share (22.1) (26.1)

Fair value (losses)/gains on insurance assets (0.7) 61.3

Premiums on insurance contracts and fair value gains/losses on insurance assets 142.3 224.9

Group
2008 2007

£m £m

Insurance claims paid:

• Gross 170.7 180.9

• Reinsurers’ share (10.9) (14.2)

Change in provisions for insurance liabilities:

• Gross (22.0) 3.2

• Reinsurers’ share (37.4) -

Insurance claims and change in insurance liabilities 100.4 169.9

Fair value gains/losses on insurance assets include a loss of £14.8 million (2007: gain of £2.0 million) on policyholder assets which are offset by gains 

(2007: losses) included in the taxation charge. Further information is presented in note 14.

7 Insurance premiums and insurance claims and change in insurance liabilities

Nationwide Group sold its life insurance subsidiary, Nationwide Life on 31 January 2008 to Legal & General. Therefore, 2008 reflects transactions up to

and including 31 January 2008 only.
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9 Other operating income

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Change in value of in force life insurance contract business (8.6) 8.4 - -

Rental income from investment properties 0.8 6.6 0.5 0.8

Other rental income 4.2 5.0 4.2 5.0

Profit on sale of investment properties 1.1 8.5 - -

Profit on revaluation of investment properties 0.4 2.2 - 1.7

(Loss)/profit on sale and revaluation of property, plant and equipment (1.0) 3.6 (0.3) 3.1

Income from subsidiary undertakings - - 0.7 1.6

Other 6.4 1.7 (0.1) 0.2

3.3 36.0 5.0 12.4

Administration expenses include £52.3 million (2007: £10.8 million) directly relating to the merger with Portman Building Society and £6.7 million

(2007: £3.3 million) relating to the setting up of the new distribution agreement with Legal & General.

Directors’ emoluments are shown as part of the Report of the Directors on Remuneration in accordance with Schedule 10A, paragraphs 1 to 9 to the

Building Societies Act 1986.

10 (Losses)/gains from derivatives and hedge accounting

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Gains less losses on derivatives:

• Derivatives designated as fair value hedges (913.4) 700.1 (1,016.9) 784.5

• Attributable to hedged risk 889.4 (682.9) 992.0 (765.9)

(24.0) 17.2 (24.9) 18.6

• Other derivatives (50.7) 86.9 (50.7) 86.9

Other 44.0 (103.2) 44.0 (103.3)

(30.7) 0.9 (31.6) 2.2

11 Administrative expenses

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Employee costs:

• Wages and salaries 430.7 385.8 404.8 362.3

• Social security costs 34.4 29.1 32.1 27.1

• Pension costs (note 40) 100.3 94.2 94.4 88.3

565.4 509.1 531.3 477.7

Other administrative expenses 602.4 475.4 553.7 458.8

1,167.8 984.5 1,085.0 936.5

Other administrative expenses include:

• Property operating lease rental 35.5 31.1 34.8 30.0

• Direct operating expenses on investment properties - 0.6 - -

• Other property costs 47.3 40.9 45.9 38.8

• Postage and communications 60.6 57.8 59.7 57.0

• Computer costs 58.9 42.6 57.9 41.3

• Marketing and advertising 20.3 20.8 20.2 20.1

• Money transmission and other bank costs 54.9 44.0 54.3 43.2

• Legal and professional 41.2 36.1 34.2 28.1

• Training, education and other staff related costs 126.1 52.2 109.6 49.5

• Other 157.6 149.3 137.1 150.8

602.4 475.4 553.7 458.8

The other income from change in value of in force life insurance contract relates to the former subsidiary Nationwide Life Limited for the period up to 

the sale of the subsidiary to Legal & General on 31 January 2008.
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Central administration employee numbers include employees engaged in direct customer-facing operations in administrative centres. 

Employee numbers included 2,378 staff who transferred to the Society on 28 August 2007 from Portman Building Society on the transfer 

of engagements.

12 Employees

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

The average number of persons employed during the year was: 

• Full-time 12,784 11,519 11,949 10,743

• Part-time 5,534 5,296 5,347 5,097

18,318 16,815 17,296 15,840

Society

• Central administration 8,469 7,592 8,469 7,592

• Branches 8,827 8,248 8,827 8,248

Subsidiaries 1,022 975 - -

18,318 16,815 17,296 15,840

13 Impairment provisions on loans and advances to customers

2008 Loans fully secured on Loans fully secured on Other loans Total
residential property land

Individual Collective Individual Collective Individual Collective Individual Collective
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

At 5 April 2007 2.0 28.4 7.5 23.1 - 142.8 9.5 194.3

Charge/(credit) for the year 5.1 (17.0) (4.2) 0.1 - 121.9 0.9 105.0
Acquired on transfer of 

engagements 0.2 21.8 - - - - 0.2 21.8
Amounts written off 

during the year (2.4) (0.2) (1.1) - - (129.3) (3.5) (129.5)
Amounts recovered 

during the year 0.6 (0.3) 3.9 0.1 - 14.6 4.5 14.4
Unwind of discount 

of provision - - 0.1 - - (5.6) 0.1 (5.6)

At 4 April 2008 5.5 32.7 6.2 23.3 - 144.4 11.7 200.4

The Group policy in relation to the use of its auditors on non-audit engagements sets out the types of services they are generally precluded from

performing. All non-audit services, where the fee is expected to exceed a de minimis limit, are subject to pre-approval by the Audit Committee. The fee

payable for other services includes extra work in respect of the merger with Portman Building Society.

11 Administrative expenses (continued)

The remuneration of the auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, is set out below:

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Audit fees for the Group and Society statutory audit 1.3 0.9 1.2 0.8

Fees payable for other services:

• Audit of subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 0.4 0.3 - 0.1

• Other services pursuant to legislation 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

• All other assurance services 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.4

• Other services relating to taxation - - - -

• All other services 2.0 1.7 2.0 1.7

4.3 3.4 3.8 3.1
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These provisions have been deducted from the appropriate asset values in the balance sheet.

2008 Loans fully secured on Loans fully secured on Other loans Total
residential property land

Individual Collective Individual Collective Individual Collective Individual Collective
Society £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

At 5 April 2007 0.1 19.6 7.5 23.1 - 70.7 8.5 113.4

Charge/(credit) for the year 0.2 (11.5) (4.2) 0.1 - 72.3 (4.0) 60.9
Acquired on transfer of 

engagements - 10.5 - - - - - 10.5
Amounts written off 

during the year (0.2) (0.2) (1.1) - - (67.2) (1.3) (67.4)
Amounts recovered 

during the year 0.3 (0.1) 3.9 0.1 - 6.9 4.2 6.9
Unwind of discount 

of provision - - 0.1 - - (5.6) 0.1 (5.6)

At 4 April 2008 1.3 18.3 6.2 23.3 - 77.1 7.5 118.7

13 Impairment provisions on loans and advances to customers (continued)

2007 Loans fully secured on Loans fully secured on Other loans Total

residential property land

Individual Collective Individual Collective Individual Collective Individual Collective

Group £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

At 5 April 2006 1.8 30.1 9.6 23.2 - 91.9 11.4 145.2

Charge/(credit) for the year 1.0 (0.8) 0.4 (0.1) - 133.1 1.4 132.2

Amounts written off 

during the year (1.4) (0.9) (0.5) - - (86.2) (1.9) (87.1)

Amounts recovered 

during the year 0.8 - (0.2) - - 9.0 0.6 9.0

Unwind of discount 

of provision (0.2) - (1.8) - - (5.0) (2.0) (5.0)

At 4 April 2007 2.0 28.4 7.5 23.1 - 142.8 9.5 194.3

2007 Loans fully secured on Loans fully secured on Other loans Total

residential property land

Individual Collective Individual Collective Individual Collective Individual Collective

Society £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

At 5 April 2006 1.3 21.4 9.6 23.2 - 55.1 10.9 99.7

Charge/(credit) for the year - (1.3) 0.4 (0.1) - 77.2 0.4 75.8

Amounts written off 

during the year (0.8) (0.5) (0.5) - - (60.8) (1.3) (61.3)

Amounts recovered 

during the year 0.7 - (0.2) - - 4.2 0.5 4.2

Unwind of discount 

of provision (0.2) - (1.8) - - (5.0) (2.0) (5.0)

At 4 April 2007 1.0 19.6 7.5 23.1 - 70.7 8.5 113.4
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14 Taxation

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Current Tax:

• UK corporation tax at 30% (2007: 30%) 188.8 138.8 151.5 76.4

• Corporation tax – adjustment in respect of prior years (15.5) (16.0) (10.9) (11.8)

173.3 122.8 140.6 64.6

Isle of Man income tax 10.9 0.6 - -

Total current tax 184.2 123.4 140.6 64.6

Deferred tax (note 28):

• Current year (9.0) 59.4 5.8 73.1

• Adjustment in respect of prior periods 9.6 5.6 6.3 6.1

• Effect of corporation tax rate change 6.0 - 5.7 -

Total deferred taxation 6.6 65.0 17.8 79.2

190.8 188.4 158.4 143.8

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Profit before tax 686.1 652.0 712.8 836.1

Tax calculated at a tax rate of 30% (2007: 30%) 205.8 195.6 213.8 250.8

Effect of different tax rates in other countries (3.0) (2.1) - -

Effect of life subsidiary (10.2) 0.8 - -

(Income)/expenses not taxable/deductible for tax purposes:

• Building depreciation 2.1 1.7 2.1 1.5

• Sale of subsidiaries (5.3) - (42.3) -

• Non taxable dividend received - - (35.8) (105.0)

• Other 1.3 2.8 19.6 2.3

Adjustments in respect of prior years (5.9) (10.4) (4.6) (5.8)

Utilisation of rate change of deferred tax balances 6.0 - 5.6 -

190.8 188.4 158.4 143.8

15 Segmental reporting

The Group reports through the following three business segments: 

Retail

• Mortgages and Savings, which includes the provision of residential mortgages (excluding specialist mortgage lending, see Non-Retail below).

• Consumer Finance, which includes credit card, unsecured personal lending and current accounts.

• Insurance and Investments, which includes general insurance products, life assurance and unit trust products. These products were previously 

sold through our subsidiaries, Nationwide Life and Nationwide Unit Trust Managers. Following the sale of the subsidiaries to Legal & General on 

31 January 2008, Nationwide has sold Legal & General insurance and investment products. The products continue to be sold via our existing

distribution arrangements.

The Society’s tax charge includes receipts for the surrender of tax losses to subsidiary undertakings totalling £0.9 million (2007: receipts for the

surrender of tax losses of £12.7 million).

Under IFRS, tax on policyholder investment returns is required to be included in the Group’s tax charge rather than being offset against the related

income. The impact is, therefore, to either increase or decrease profit before tax with a corresponding change in the tax charge. The tax attributable to

policyholder earnings was a credit for the Group of £14.8 million (2007: charge of £2.0 million).

Further information about deferred tax is presented in note 28.

The actual tax charge differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK as follows:
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2008 Retail Non-Retail Group Consolidation Total
Adjustments

£m £m £m £m £m

Net interest income 451.3 1,830.5 (485.5) - 1,796.3
Revenue from other segments 636.7 (1,504.0) 867.3 - -

1,088.0 326.5 381.8 - 1,796.3
Other income net of claims on insurance contracts 359.5 10.9 40.5 - 410.9

Total revenue 1,447.5 337.4 422.3 - 2,207.2
Administrative expenses 979.2 71.1 117.5 - 1,167.8
Depreciation and amortisation 119.1 2.7 2.5 - 124.3
Impairment losses on loans and advances to customers 110.2 (5.1) 0.8 - 105.9
Provisions for liabilities and charges (9.8) - - - (9.8)
Impairment losses on investment securities - - 102.2 - 102.2

Segment results 248.8 268.7 199.3 - 716.8
Losses from derivatives and hedge accounting (30.7)

Profit before tax 686.1
Taxation 190.8

Profit after tax 495.3

Segment assets 239,768.2 20,294.2 35,368.3 (116,565.6) 178,865.1
Unallocated assets - - - - 161.5

Total assets 179,026.6

Segment liabilities 241,793.0 20,931.0 53,027.3 (143,162.9) 172,588.4
Unallocated liabilities - - - - 430.1

Total liabilities 173,018.5

Capital expenditure 236.3 7.6 4.3 - 248.2

Non-Retail

• Commercial lending, which includes all costs and income associated with the Group’s lending to the commercial property sector including Registered

Social Landlords. 

• Specialist mortgage lending – includes Buy to Let and self certified mortgages provided by subsidiaries (UCB Home Loans Corporation Ltd and 

The Mortgage Works (UK) plc).

Group

• Treasury group operations and income generation activities.

• Cost and income associated with managing the Group’s capital position and wholesale funding and liquid asset management of the Group.

• Items classified as being non-attributable to our core business areas, including rental income and associated property costs surplus to the Society’s

retail needs and costs which cannot be meaningfully allocated to a business segment.

Income has been attributed to the business segments in which it is generated. Funding costs have been calculated using a funds transfer pricing

methodology which reflects the nature of the interest received or paid. The transfer pricing flows are shown as revenues from other segments.

Administrative expenses and depreciation have been allocated to segments based on the resources consumed, except where they cannot be 

meaningfully allocated in which case they have been included in the Group business segment.

Capital is allocated to each business segment for investment purposes and is based on economic capital principles. No charge has been made for capital.

15 Segmental reporting (continued)
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15 Segmental reporting (continued)

The 2007 accounts previously reported segments analysed between Personal Financial Services, Commercial and Group activities. The following changes

have been made. Specialist lending activity has been transferred from Personal Financial Services (now known as Retail) to Non-Retail (formerly known

as Commercial). Treasury income generation activities have been transferred from Commercial (now known as Non-Retail) to Group activities.

The Group operates predominantly in the UK and the Isle of Man and accordingly no geographical analysis has been presented.

2007 Retail Non-Retail Group Consolidation Total

Adjustments

£m £m £m £m £m

Net interest income 884.5 1,328.1 (733.3) - 1,479.3

Revenue from other segments 141.9 (1,048.2) 906.3 - -

1,026.4 279.9 173.0 - 1,479.3

Other income net of claims on insurance contracts 385.8 23.8 36.3 - 445.9

Total revenue 1,412.2 303.7 209.3 - 1,925.2

Administrative expenses 850.6 67.1 66.8 - 984.5

Depreciation and amortisation 114.4 3.1 6.9 - 124.4

Impairment losses on loans and advances to customers 132.1 1.5 - - 133.6

Provisions for liabilities and charges 36.5 - - - 36.5

Impairment gains on investment securities - 0.1 (5.0) - (4.9)

Segment results 278.6 231.9 140.6 - 651.1

Gains from derivatives and hedge accounting 0.9

Profit before tax 652.0

Taxation 188.4

Profit after tax 463.6

Segment assets 181,446.7 26,964.7 20,968.9 (92,126.7) 137,253.6

Unallocated assets 124.9

Total assets 137,378.5

Segment liabilities 183,362.1 24,853.0 40,094.4 (116,656.1) 131,653.4

Unallocated liabilities 260.7

Total liabilities 131,914.1

Capital expenditure 156.0 4.1 2.0 - 162.1
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Placements with banks with a maturity on acquisition of less than 3 months are included in the total cash and cash equivalents figure in note 50.

Mandatory reserve deposits with the Bank of England are not available for use in the Group’s day to day operations.

16 Assets classified as held for sale and associated liabilities

On 7 February 2007 the Group announced the proposed sale of its life, investment and pensions subsidiaries, Nationwide Life Limited and Nationwide

Unit Trust Managers Limited to Legal & General. Consequently, the assets and liabilities of these undertakings were disclosed separately in the 2007

accounts as required by IFRS 5 (Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations). These companies were sold on 31 January 2008.

Assets classified as held for sale at 4 April 2008 are former offices or branches of Portman Building Society that were surplus to requirements on

transfer of engagements.

An analysis of assets classified as held for sale and associated liabilities is as follows:

Balance sheet Group & Society Group

2008 2007

Notes £m £m

Assets
Loans and advances to banks - 198.8

Insurance assets at fair value - 1,909.6

Other assets - 288.2

Branches 5.5 -

Total assets held for sale 5.5 2,396.6

Liabilities
Deposits from banks - 875.0

Insurance contract liabilities in force 34 - 1,178.0

Other liabilities - 37.7

Total liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale - 2,090.7

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Placements with banks with a maturity on acquisition of:

• Less than three months 5,582.7 1,224.2 5,522.2 1,166.3

• More than three months but less than one year 4.0 110.8 4.0 -

• More than one year but less than five years - 3.0 - 3.0

5,586.7 1,338.0 5,526.2 1,169.3

Mandatory reserve deposits with the Bank of England 197.4 152.1 197.4 152.1

5,784.1 1,490.1 5,723.6 1,321.4

17 Loans and advances to banks
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During the year an impairment loss of £102.2 million in Group and Society (2007: Group and Society gain of £4.9 million) has been recognised in the

income statement as a result of liquidity issues faced by a number of treasury investment securities.

Investment securities with a carrying value of £8,857.0 million (2007: £183.3 million) have been sold under sale and repurchase agreements. These

assets have not been de-recognised as Nationwide has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Nationwide holds collateral under reverse sale and repurchase agreements with a fair value of £1,905.0 million (2007: £Nil). These transactions are

conducted under terms that are usual and customary to standard stock lending, securities borrowing and reverse repurchase agreements. Nationwide 

is permitted to sell or repledge the assets received as collateral in the absence of their default. Nationwide is obliged to return equivalent securities. 

At 4 April 2008 the fair value of collateral repledged amounted to £357.0 million (2007: £Nil). Nationwide does not recognise securities received under

reverse sale and repurchase agreements on the Group and Society balance sheets.

Investment securities include asset backed securities of £Nil (2007: £1,495.2 million) owned by a bankruptcy remote special purpose vehicle. The

acquisitions of the asset backed securities were funded primarily through the issue of commercial paper reported in debt securities in issue.

The investment securities portfolio contains some highly liquid instruments which have a life of 3 months or less, these securities are classified as cash

equivalents in accordance with IAS 7 ‘Cash Flow Statements’. In the Group accounts £3,222.5 million (2007: £3,479.4 million) and in the Society

accounts £3,222.5 million (2007: £3,479.3 million) of investment securities are included in the total cash equivalents figure in note 50.

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Government investment securities 3,348.2 172.6 3,348.2 150.4

Other public sector investment securities - 55.2 - -

Private sector investment securities:

• Listed 14,781.3 10,812.8 14,804.6 9,012.7

• Unlisted 7,356.0 4,560.0 7,356.0 4,560.0

25,485.5 15,600.6 25,508.8 13,723.1

Investment securities have remaining maturities as follows:

• Accrued interest 190.7 103.5 190.7 88.9

• In not more than one year 9,830.0 6,390.0 9,830.0 6,033.8

• In more than one year 15,464.8 9,107.1 15,488.1 7,600.4

25,485.5 15,600.6 25,508.8 13,723.1

18 Investment securities – available for sale



Notes to the Accounts
CONTINUED

2008 ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS  71

2008 2007

Contract/ Fair value Contract/ Fair value

notional notional

amount amount

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Derivatives held for hedging
a) Society
Derivatives designated as fair value hedges

• Interest rate swaps 103,915.2 696.4 661.0 71,944.3 989.2 202.5

Other derivatives

• Cross currency interest rate swaps 9,786.4 298.2 438.7 4,885.1 16.5 243.9

• Caps, collars and floors 216.7 1.3 0.1 220.3 1.8 -

• Forward foreign exchange 5,956.7 43.1 82.9 4,775.7 4.2 85.8

• Forward rate agreements 26,820.8 4.9 6.2 14,938.2 1.3 0.7

• Interest rate futures 5,485.2 0.6 0.5 4,881.9 0.1 0.1

• Interest rate swaps 45,847.8 182.3 100.9 25,604.5 29.7 23.1

• Credit default swaps 206.5 3.3 2.0 664.8 1.6 8.5

198,235.3 1,230.1 1,292.3 127,914.8 1,044.4 564.6

b) Subsidiary
Derivatives designated as fair value hedges

• Interest rate swaps 10,435.5 169.8 155.4 5,911.6 - 122.3

Other derivatives

• Cross currency interest rate swaps 11,594.6 1,254.0 - 5,413.2 27.2 16.3

Intra - Group swap (10,631.3) (246.2) (246.2) - - -

Group 209,634.1 2,407.7 1,201.5 139,239.6 1,071.6 703.2

Group 2008 2007

Contract/ Fair value Contract/ Fair value

notional notional

amount amount

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Derivatives have remaining maturities as follows:

• In not more than one year 104,505.6 532.3 240.1 56,636.6 164.0 163.1

• In more than one year 105,128.5 1,875.4 961.4 82,603.0 907.6 540.1

209,634.1 2,407.7 1,201.5 139,239.6 1,071.6 703.2

Society 2008 2007

Contract/ Fair value Contract/ Fair value

notional notional

amount amount

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Derivatives have remaining maturities as follows:

• In not more than one year 105,391.9 533.6 272.4 56,636.6 164.0 163.1

• In more than one year 92,843.4 696.5 1,019.9 71,278.2 880.4 401.5

198,235.3 1,230.1 1,292.3 127,914.8 1,044.4 564.6

19 Derivative financial instruments

All derivative financial instruments are held for economic hedging purposes although not all derivatives are designated as hedging instruments under

the terms of IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’. The table below analyses derivatives between those designated as hedging

instruments and those which, whilst in economic hedging relationships, are not designated as hedging instruments:

Contract/notional amount indicates the amount outstanding at the balance sheet date and does not represent amounts at risk. 
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20 Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk

As discussed in the statement of accounting policies, when specific criteria are met, the Group applies fair value hedge accounting. In a micro hedge,

the carrying value of the hedged item is adjusted for the change in the fair value of the hedged risk. In the case of a portfolio hedge, the adjustment is

included in this heading.

Under the Building Societies Act 1997, loans to corporate bodies and Registered Social Landlords already existing at the date of adoption may not be

reported as loans fully secured on residential property. Accordingly, the reported loans fully secured on land include Group £294.3 million (2007: £524.2

million) of loans which are fully secured on residential property, and Society £175.4 million (2007: £304.0 million) of loans which are fully secured on

residential property.

Maturity analysis

Loans and advances to customers have remaining maturities as follows:

The maturity analysis is produced on the basis that where a loan is repayable by instalments, each such instalment is treated as a separate repayment.

Arrears are spread across the remaining term of the loan.

The maturity analysis is based on contractual maturity not actual redemption levels experienced by the Group or Society.

Covered bonds

Loans and advances to customers include £18,680.2 million (2007: £11,435.1 million) for both the Group and Society which have been legally transferred

from the Society to Nationwide Covered Bonds LLP, a bankruptcy remote special purpose vehicle which is consolidated by the Group. The loans are

retained on the Society’s balance sheet as the Society substantially retains the risks and rewards relating to the loans.

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Loans fully secured on residential property 127,077.9 101,883.3 112,409.1 94,592.7

Loans fully secured on land 11,476.2 10,072.2 11,355.6 9,852.0

Other loans 4,225.0 4,084.1 2,256.8 2,125.6

142,779.1 116,039.6 126,021.5 106,570.3

Fair value adjustment for micro hedged risk 24.6 (101.2) 24.6 (101.2)

142,803.7 115,938.4 126,046.1 106,469.1

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Repayable on demand 1,301.5 1,350.0 1,229.8 1,341.4

Other loans and advances by residual maturity repayable:

• In not more than three months 838.6 725.7 821.0 720.7

• In more than three months but not more than one year 3,191.9 2,920.5 2,760.3 2,411.5

• In more than one year but not more than five years 19,260.7 16,836.6 17,974.8 15,405.2

• In more than five years 118,398.5 94,410.6 103,361.8 86,813.4

142,991.2 116,243.4 126,147.7 106,692.2

Impairment provision on loans and advances (note 13) (212.1) (203.8) (126.2) (121.9)

Fair value adjustment for micro hedged risk 24.6 (101.2) 24.6 (101.2)

142,803.7 115,938.4 126,046.1 106,469.1

21 Loans and advances to customers
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Investments in equity shares include an investment of £40.2 million carried at fair value, the remaining equity investments are included at cost.

The interests of the Society in its principal subsidiary undertakings, all of which are consolidated, as at 4 April 2008 are set out below: 

100% held subsidiary undertakings Nature of business

First Nationwide Investment company

Moulton Finance Overseas BV Investment company

Nationwide International Limited* Offshore deposit taker

Nationwide Investments (No.1) Limited Investment company

Nationwide Syndications Limited Syndicated lending

Nationwide Trust Limited Consumer finance

The Mortgage Works (UK) plc* Centralised mortgage lender

UCB Home Loans Corporation Limited* Centralised mortgage lender

*Regulated entities which are subject to regulations which require them to maintain capital at agreed levels and so governs the availability of funds for

distribution as dividends.

All the above subsidiary undertakings are limited liability companies except First Nationwide which is an unlimited liability company with share capital.

All of the above companies are registered in England and Wales and operate in the UK except for Nationwide International Limited which is registered

and operates in the Isle of Man and Moulton Finance Overseas BV which is registered and operates in Holland.

The Group has interests in a number of entities which give rise to the risks and rewards that are in substance no different than if they were subsidiary

undertakings. As a consequence, these entities are consolidated in the Group accounts.

The interests of the Society in these principal entities as at 4 April 2008 are set out below:

Other subsidiary undertakings Nature of business Country of registration Country of operation

Great Eastern Investment Partnership Investment company England and Wales UK

Nationwide Covered Bonds LLP Mortgage acquisition and England and Wales UK

guarantor of covered bonds

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

At 5 April 36.7 22.0 10.7 2.2

Movements 24.2 14.7 8.7 8.5

At 4 April 2008 60.9 36.7 19.4 10.7

22 Investments in equity shares

Shares Loans Total
£m £m £m

At 5 April 2007 (restated – note 1) 712.0 8,575.7 9,287.7

Acquired on transfer of engagements 95.1 6,105.8 6,200.9
Additions 1.2 1,591.1 1,592.3
Disposals, redemptions and repayments (218.4) (579.5) (797.9)

At 4 April 2008 589.9 15,693.1 16,283.0

23 Investments in group undertakings
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2008 Computer software
Externally Internally Total Goodwill Total

acquired developed Computer
Software

Group £m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 5 April 183.9 45.8 229.7 - 229.7

Additions 36.5 4.6 41.1 - 41.1
Acquired on transfer of engagements 22.8 2.8 25.6 12.3 37.9
Disposals (3.8) (0.5) (4.3) - (4.3)

At 4 April 2008 239.4 52.7 292.1 12.3 304.4

Amortisation
At 5 April 105.2 18.4 123.6 - 123.6

Acquired on transfer of engagements 12.7 1.6 14.3 - 14.3
Charge for the year 27.9 3.5 31.4 - 31.4
Disposals (1.6) (0.2) (1.8) - (1.8)

At 4 April 2008 144.2 23.3 167.5 - 167.5

Net book value

At 4 April 2008 95.2 29.4 124.6 12.3 136.9

24 Intangible fixed assets

The goodwill arises following the acquisition of The Mortgage Works (UK) plc on 30 November 2001 by Portman Building Society. The goodwill is 

subject to annual impairment testing.

2008 Computer software
Externally Internally Total Goodwill Total

acquired developed Computer
Software

Society £m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 5 April 183.9 45.8 229.7 - 229.7

Additions 36.5 4.6 41.1 - 41.1
Acquired on transfer of engagements 22.8 2.8 25.6 - 25.6
Disposals (3.8) (0.5) (4.3) - (4.3)

At 4 April 2008 239.4 52.7 292.1 - 292.1

Amortisation
At 5 April 105.2 18.4 123.6 - 123.6

Acquired on transfer of engagements 12.7 1.6 14.3 - 14.3
Charge for the year 27.9 3.5 31.4 - 31.4
Disposals (1.6) (0.2) (1.8) - (1.8)

At 4 April 2008 144.2 23.3 167.5 - 167.5

Net book value

At 4 April 2008 95.2 29.4 124.6 - 124.6
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24 Intangible fixed assets (continued)

2007 Computer software

Externally Internally Total Goodwill Total

acquired developed Computer

Software

Group and Society £m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 5 April 142.3 30.2 172.5 - 172.5

Additions 44.0 15.6 59.6 - 59.6

Disposals (2.4) - (2.4) - (2.4)

At 4 April 2007 183.9 45.8 229.7 - 229.7

Amortisation
At 5 April 77.1 14.9 92.0 - 92.0

Charge for the year 29.5 3.5 33.0 - 33.0

Disposals (1.4) - (1.4) - (1.4)

At 4 April 2007 105.2 18.4 123.6 - 123.6

Net book value

At 4 April 2007 78.7 27.4 106.1 - 106.1

2008
Branches Specialised Short Total land Plant and Equipment, Total
and non administration leasehold and machinery fixtures,

specialised buildings buildings buildings fittings and
buildings vehicles

Group £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Cost or valuation
At 5 April 331.6 103.7 28.8 464.1 116.7 601.7 1,182.5

Acquired on transfer of 

engagements 48.7 - 7.9 56.6 0.4 44.7 101.7
Additions 10.4 - 1.3 11.7 13.5 181.9 207.1
Revaluation (21.9) - - (21.9) - - (21.9)
Disposals (14.2) - (0.5) (14.7) (0.8) (23.3) (38.8)

At 4 April 2008 354.6 103.7 37.5 495.8 129.8 805.0 1,430.6

Depreciation
At 5 April - 49.2 18.6 67.8 83.5 367.5 518.8

Acquired on transfer of 

engagements - - 6.2 6.2 0.1 22.1 28.4
Charge for the year - 4.1 2.1 6.2 9.2 77.5 92.9
Disposals - - (1.2) (1.2) (0.3) (18.8) (20.3)

At 4 April 2008 - 53.3 25.7 79.0 92.5 448.3 619.8

Net book value

At 4 April 2008 354.6 50.4 11.8 416.8 37.3 356.7 810.8

25 Property, plant and equipment
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2007

Branches Specialised Short Total land Plant and Equipment, Total

and non administration leasehold and machinery fixtures,

specialised buildings buildings buildings fittings and

buildings vehicles

Group £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Cost or valuation
At 5 April 313.3 103.5 25.1 441.9 119.8 819.7 1,381.4

Additions 5.5 0.2 3.7 9.4 13.5 79.7 102.6

Revaluation 22.9 - - 22.9 - - 22.9

Disposals (10.1) - - (10.1) (16.6) (297.7) (324.4)

At 4 April 2007 331.6 103.7 28.8 464.1 116.7 601.7 1,182.5

Depreciation
At 5 April - 45.0 16.7 61.7 89.0 582.7 733.4

Charge for the year - 4.2 1.9 6.1 11.0 74.3 91.4

Disposals - - - - (16.5) (289.5) (306.0)

At 4 April 2007 - 49.2 18.6 67.8 83.5 367.5 518.8

Net book value

At 4 April 2007 331.6 54.5 10.2 396.3 33.2 234.2 663.7

25 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

2008
Branches Specialised Short Total land Plant and Equipment, Total
and non administration leasehold and machinery fixtures,

specialised buildings buildings buildings fittings and
buildings vehicles

Society £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Cost or valuation
At 5 April 318.5 103.7 28.3 450.5 115.0 580.5 1,146.0

Acquired on transfer of 

engagements 48.7 - 7.9 56.6 0.4 44.7 101.7
Additions 10.4 - 1.3 11.7 13.5 181.0 206.2
Revaluation (20.5) - - (20.5) - - (20.5)
Disposals (14.2) - - (14.2) (0.8) (13.1) (28.1)

At 4 April 2008 342.9 103.7 37.5 484.1 128.1 793.1 1,405.3

Depreciation
At 5 April - 49.2 18.2 67.4 82.3 347.9 497.6

Acquired on transfer of 

engagements - - 6.2 6.2 0.2 22.1 28.5
Charge for the year - 4.1 2.0 6.1 9.0 76.8 91.9
Disposals - - (0.7) (0.7) (0.4) (9.2) (10.3)

At 4 April 2008 - 53.3 25.7 79.0 91.1 437.6 607.7

Net book value

At 4 April 2008 342.9 50.4 11.8 405.1 37.0 355.5 797.6
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25 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

2007

Branches Specialised Short Total land Plant and Equipment, Total

and non administration leasehold and machinery fixtures,

specialised buildings buildings buildings fittings and

buildings vehicles

Society £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Cost or valuation
At 5 April 300.7 103.5 24.6 428.8 118.0 788.4 1,335.2

Additions 5.5 0.2 3.7 9.4 13.5 79.4 102.3

Revaluation 22.4 - - 22.4 - - 22.4

Disposals (10.1) - - (10.1) (16.5) (287.3) (313.9)

At 4 April 2007 318.5 103.7 28.3 450.5 115.0 580.5 1,146.0

Depreciation
At 5 April - 45.0 16.3 61.3 87.8 556.6 705.7

Charge for the year - 4.2 1.9 6.1 10.9 73.1 90.1

Disposals - - - - (16.4) (281.8) (298.2)

At 4 April 2007 - 49.2 18.2 67.4 82.3 347.9 497.6

Net book value

At 4 April 2007 318.5 54.5 10.1 383.1 32.7 232.6 648.4

Branches and non specialised buildings are included at fair value. Valuations, performed by independent surveyors, consist of a mixture of full and

interim valuations and were undertaken as at 4 April 2008 in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation manual published by the Royal Institution of

Chartered Surveyors. Valuations are based on active market prices.

Specialised administration buildings and short leasehold buildings are included at cost less accumulated depreciation. 

Investment properties are carried at fair value. The valuations are undertaken by independent valuers in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation

manual published by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Valuations are based on active market prices. 

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

At 5 April 15.1 279.1 11.9 10.2

Additions from acquisitions - 4.0 - -

Additions from subsequent expenditure - 1.4 - -

Revaluation 0.4 7.0 - 1.7

Disposals (0.4) (276.4) - -

At 4 April 15.1 15.1 11.9 11.9

26 Investment properties

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 1,300.3 111.3

Other 555.5 76.3 528.0 65.0

555.5 76.3 1,828.3 176.3

27 Accrued income and expenses prepaid
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Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

At 5 April 49.4 110.0 73.1 149.5

Transfer from Portman Building Society 4.3 - 1.8 -

Income statement (charge)/income (0.6) (65.0) (12.1) (79.2)

Income statement (charge)/income – rate change to 28% (6.0) - (5.7) -

Future consortium relief 1.2 4.3 1.2 4.3

Available for sale investments 7.1 5.3 4.3 3.7

Reclassification to current tax (3.0) - (2.9) -

Property revaluation 7.8 (4.8) 7.5 (4.8)

Retirement benefit obligations (18.4) (0.4) (18.4) (0.4)

Cash flow hedge reserve 0.3 - 0.3 -

Tax losses carried forward 61.2 - 61.2 -

Change of corporation tax rate to 28% (0.8) - (0.8) -

Taxation on items through reserves 54.2 0.1 51.2 (1.5)

Deferred tax asset 102.5 49.4 109.5 73.1

Excluding liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale - 27.8 - -

Transfer out of liabilities on disposal of life business 13.4 - - -

At 4 April 115.9 77.2 109.5 73.1

28 Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax is provided in full on temporary differences under the liability method at the standard UK corporation tax rate which from 1 April 2008 is

28% (2007: 30%).

The movements on the deferred tax account are as follows:

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following items:

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Retirement benefit obligations 13.8 61.4 13.8 61.3

Provisions for loan impairment 29.9 35.0 15.0 16.9

Other provisions 55.2 28.8 65.7 43.3

Accelerated tax depreciation 3.9 5.8 2.7 5.7

Property revaluation (44.0) (53.8) (44.8) (54.1)

Tax losses carried forward 57.1 - 57.1 -

115.9 77.2 109.5 73.1

The majority of deferred tax assets are anticipated to be recoverable after 1 year.

As at the balance sheet date there are £12.2 million of unused capital losses for which no deferred tax asset is recognised (2007: Group and Society £Nil).

The aggregate amount of the temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings of overseas subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities have

not been recognised is Group and Society £72.5 million (2007: Group and Society £60.6 million). No liability has been recognised in respect of these

differences because the Group is in a position to control the timing of the reversal of these temporary differences and it is probable that such differences

will not reverse in the future.

The deferred tax charge in the income statement comprises of the following temporary differences (note 14):
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Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Accelerated tax depreciation 0.5 2.9 0.1 3.1

Retirement benefit obligations 31.2 46.8 31.2 46.9

Provisions for loan impairment 3.7 0.4 1.9 3.2

Other (34.8) 2.6 (21.1) 13.7

Tax losses carried forward - 12.3 - 12.3

Change of corporation tax rate to 28% 6.0 - 5.7 -

6.6 65.0 17.8 79.2

The government announced a reduction to the rate of standard UK corporation tax to 28% effective from 1 April 2008. For the year ended 4 April 2008

balances have been restated to 28%, however for the prior year, legislation had yet to be enacted. In accordance with the IFRS provisions, a rate of 30%

was used as a basis for the calculation of the deferred taxes as at 4 April 2007.

Deposits from banks include £9,554.4 million (2007: £183.3 million) in respect of sale and repurchase agreements.

29 Shares

Group & Society
2008 2007

£m £m

Held by individuals 113,810.0 86,789.0

Other shares 5.8 6.4

113,815.8 86,795.4

Shares are repayable from the balance sheet date in the ordinary course of business as follows:

Accrued interest 1,006.5 575.7

Repayable on demand 93,511.9 82,092.6

Other shares by residual maturity repayable:

• In not more than three months 1,184.4 756.0

• In more than three months but not more than one year 14,912.9 1,864.5

• In more than one year but not more than five years 3,200.1 1,506.6

113,815.8 86,795.4

30 Deposits from banks

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Deposits from banks are repayable from the balance sheet

date in the ordinary course of business as follows:

Accrued interest 123.1 36.5 79.8 21.0

Repayable on demand 70.2 750.5 544.8 745.4

Other amounts owed to banks with residual maturity repayable:

• In not more than three months 9,398.4 1,241.6 9,388.4 1,241.6

• In more than three months but not more than one year 1,125.9 659.4 1,113.4 659.4

• In more than one year but not more than five years 585.1 500.0 - -

• In more than five years 474.1 100.7 100.0 100.0

11,776.8 3,288.7 11,226.4 2,767.4

28 Deferred tax assets (continued)
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Debt securities in issue include Group and Society £12,091.9 million (2007: £5,913.2 million) of covered bonds secured on certain loans and advances to

customers. Further information on the covered bond structure is given in note 21.

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

Restated

(Note 1)

£m £m £m £m

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - 3,304.3 2,462.7

Other 4,566.6 3,406.7 4,566.6 3,344.1

4,566.6 3,406.7 7,870.9 5,806.8

Other deposits are repayable from the balance sheet date in the ordinary 

course of business as follows:

Accrued interest 46.8 41.0 46.8 45.7

Repayable on demand 0.9 63.6 3,305.2 2,274.3

Other amounts owed to depositors with residual maturity repayable:

• In not more than three months 3,766.0 2,127.2 3,766.0 2,194.8

• In more than three months but not more than one year 749.4 1,138.6 749.4 1,195.9

• In more than one year but not more than five years 3.5 36.3 3.5 96.1

4,566.6 3,406.7 7,870.9 5,806.8

31 Other deposits

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Amounts due to customers are repayable from the balance sheet date in 

the ordinary course of business as follows:

Accrued interest 24.5 18.2 2.4 7.2

Repayable on demand 2,685.2 2,444.9 730.0 937.8

Other amounts owed to customers with residual maturity repayable:

• In not more than three months 40.4 339.2 - -

• In more than three months but not more than one year 498.4 72.0 - -

• In more than one year but not more than five years 184.7 51.8 - -

3,433.2 2,926.1 732.4 945.0

32 Due to customers

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Certificates of deposit and commercial paper 13,085.8 12,557.0 13,085.8 10,979.2

Fixed and floating rate notes 20,510.9 16,263.6 20,708.6 16,416.5

Other debt securities 238.1 230.4 238.1 230.4

33,834.8 29,051.0 34,032.5 27,626.1

Fair value adjustment for micro hedged risk (63.0) (179.3) (6.5) (58.0)

33,771.8 28,871.7 34,026.0 27,568.1

Debt securities in issue are repayable from the balance sheet date in the 

ordinary course of business as follows:

Accrued interest 278.8 202.9 277.7 200.8

Residual maturity repayable:

• In not more than one year 19,150.0 16,431.8 19,150.0 14,855.0

• In more than one year 14,406.0 12,416.3 14,604.8 12,570.3

33,834.8 29,051.0 34,032.5 27,626.1

Fair value adjustment for micro hedged risk (63.0) (179.3) (6.5) (58.0)

33,771.8 28,871.7 34,026.0 27,568.1

33 Debt securities in issue
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Prior to selling Nationwide Life to Legal and General on 31 January 2008 NBS Group offered various insurance products including critical illness and

term assurance. Some of these liabilities were reinsured.

Regulatory capital requirements of insurance contract business

The Society’s former life insurance subsidiary, Nationwide Life, is regulated by the Financial Services Authority (FSA) and as a condition of being able 

to transact business as a life insurer, is required to hold a minimum level of capital which is calculated with respect to the mix of business written. 

In calculating these capital requirements, the FSA requires certain adjustments to be made in the valuation of assets and liabilities in comparison to

those used in the financial statements.

Whilst part of the Nationwide Group, Nationwide Life regularly prepared an Individual Capital Assessment (ICA) which is an assessment of the amount of

capital required to ensure that it can cover its liabilities to policyholders to a given level of confidence. Resources were maintained to cover the higher of

the ICA and FSA requirements.

Group
2008 2007

£m £m

Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale (note 16)
Insurance contract liabilities: 

• Gross - 1,178.0

• Reinsurers’ share - (245.5)

Net insurance contract liabilities - 932.5

34 Insurance contract liabilities

35 Other liabilities

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Third party income tax withheld 330.1 234.3 330.0 233.7

Consortium relief - 6.2 - 6.2

Other liabilities 420.8 276.0 330.3 198.7

750.9 516.5 660.3 438.6

36 Provisions for liabilities and charges

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

At 5 April 50.3 40.3 37.3 29.0

Provisions utilised (24.5) (26.5) (9.5) (25.7)

(Release)/charge for the year (9.8) 36.5 (11.8) 34.0

At 4 April 16.0 50.3 16.0 37.3

Provisions have been made in respect of various customer claims. It is expected that the liability will predominantly crystallise over the next 

12 – 24 months.
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37 Accruals and deferred income

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Deferred income recognition on unit trust products - 2.1 - -

Interest accrued on subordinated liabilities 28.1 18.7 28.1 18.7

Interest accrued on subscribed capital 13.6 9.0 13.6 9.0

Accruals relating to investment properties - 1.2 - -

Other 313.4 336.0 272.4 300.7

355.1 367.0 314.1 328.4

38 Subordinated liabilities

Group & Society
2008 2007

£m £m

Subordinated Callable Floating Rate Notes due 2013 (€400m) 315.0 270.6

6.74% Subordinated Loan due 2014 (£) 15.0 -

5 1/4% Subordinated Notes due 2014 ($225m) 112.8 113.8

3 3/8% Subordinated Notes due 2015 (€750m) 590.7 507.4

5% Subordinated Notes due 2015 ($400m) 200.6 202.4

Subordinated Floating Rate Notes due 2016 (€300m) 236.3 202.9

7.125% Subordinated Notes due 2016 (£) 75.0 -

5 1/4% Subordinated Notes due 2018 (£) 200.0 200.0

8 5/8% Subordinated Notes due 2018 (£) 125.0 125.0

6.73% Subordinated Loan due 2019 (£) 15.0 -

5.25% Subordinated Loan due 2020 (£) 150.0 -

2,035.4 1,622.1

Fair value adjustment for micro hedged risk 28.9 2.2

Unamortised premiums and issue costs (6.1) (7.3)

2,058.2 1,617.0

All of the Society’s subordinated liabilities are unsecured. The Society may, with the prior consent of the FSA, redeem some of the subordinated notes

early as follows:

• All (but not some only) of the Floating Rate Notes due 2013 at par (100%) on 11 April 2008, by giving not less than 15 nor more than 30 days notice to

the holders. The Society gave notice of its intention to redeem the Floating Rate Notes due 2013 during March 2008 and the notes were redeemed in

April 2008.

• All of the 6.74% Subordinated Loan due 2014 may, with the prior consent of the FSA, be redeemed on 7 May 2009, five years before the final maturity

date, by giving not less than 2 days notice to the holders. In the event that the Society does not redeem the notes early the interest rate will convert to

a rate referenced to the then current 5 year gilt rate plus 3%.

• All (but not some only) of the 3 3/8% Notes due 2015 at par (100%) on 17 August 2010 (or each subsequent interest payment date), by giving not less

than 15 nor more than 30 days notice to the holders. In the event the Society does not redeem the notes early the interest rate will convert to a floating

rate equal to the aggregate of 3 month Euribor and 0.76%.

• All (but not some only) of the Floating Rate Notes due 2016 at par (100%) on 22 December 2011, by giving not less than 15 nor more than 30 days

notice to the holders. In the event the Society does not redeem the notes on 22 December 2011 the initial interest margin of 0.22% over Euribor will

increase by a further 0.5%.

• All of the 7.125% Subordinated Notes due 2016 may, with the prior consent of the FSA, be redeemed on 10 October 2011, five years before the final

maturity date, by giving not less than 30 nor more than 60 days notice to the holders. In the event that the Society does not redeem the notes early

the interest rate will convert to a rate referenced to the then current 5 year gilt rate plus 3.2%.

• All (but not some only) of the 5 1/4% Notes due 2018 at par (100%) on 12 February 2013, by giving not less than 15 nor more than 30 days notice to

the holders. In the event the Society does not redeem the notes on 12 February 2013 the fixed rate of interest will become an aggregate of 1.98% and

the then current 5 year benchmark Gilt rate.
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• All or some of the 8 5/8% Notes due 2018 at the higher of par (100%) or the benchmark 8 3/4% 2017 Gilt, by giving not less than 30 nor more than 60

days notice to the holders.

• All of the 6.73% Subordinated Loan due 2019 may, with the prior consent of the FSA, be redeemed on 7 April 2014, five years before the final maturity

date, by giving no less than 2 days notice to the holders. In the event that the Society does not redeem the notes early the interest rate will convert to a

rate referenced to the then current 5 year gilt rate plus 3.1%.

• All of the 5.25% Subordinated Loan due 2020 may, with the prior consent of the FSA, be redeemed on 23 November 2015, five years before the final

maturity date, by giving not less than 30 days notice to the holders. In the event that the Society does not redeem the notes early the interest rate will

convert to a floating rate equal to the then current 3 month Libor plus 1.54%.

The subordinated notes rank pari passu with each other and behind the claims against the Society of all depositors, creditors and investing members

(other than holders of Permanent Interest Bearing Shares) of the Society.

The interest rate risk arising from the issuance of fixed rate subordinated debt has been mitigated through the use of interest rate swaps.

38 Subordinated liabilities (continued)

39 Subscribed capital

Group & Society
2008 2007

£m £m

6.024% Permanent Interest Bearing Shares 350.0 350.0

7.971% Permanent Interest Bearing Shares 200.0 200.0

7.25% Permanent Interest Bearing Shares 60.0 -

6.25% Permanent Interest Bearing Shares 125.0 -

5.769% Permanent Interest Bearing Shares 400.0 400.0

7.859% Permanent Interest Bearing Shares 100.0 100.0

1,235.0 1,050.0

Fair value adjustment for micro hedged risk 19.7 5.9

Unamortised premiums and issue costs (9.8) (10.5)

1,244.9 1,045.4

All Permanent Interest Bearing Shares (PIBS) are unsecured and denominated in Sterling. Repaying the PIBS requires the prior consent of the FSA.

• The 7.971% PIBS are repayable, at the option of the Society, in whole in March 2015 or any fifth anniversary thereafter.

• The 7.25% PIBS are repayable, at the option of the Society, in whole on 5 December 2021 and every fifth successive 5 December thereafter.

• The 6.25% PIBS are repayable, at the option of the Society, in whole on 22 October 2024 and every fifth successive 22 October thereafter.

• The 5.769% PIBS are repayable, at the option of the Society, in whole in February 2026 or any fifth anniversary thereafter. 

• The 7.859% PIBS are repayable, at the option of the Society, in whole in March 2030 or any fifth anniversary thereafter.

If the above five tranches of PIBS are not repaid on a call date then the interest rate is reset at a margin to the yield on the then prevailing 5 year

benchmark Gilt rate.

• The 6.024% PIBS are repayable, at the option of the Society, in whole in February 2013 or any interest coupon date thereafter. If the 6.024% PIBS are

not repaid on their first call date then the interest rate is reset at a margin of 50 basis points over 3 month Libor. If the 6.024% PIBS have not been

repaid by 6 February 2018, the interest rate is reset at a margin of 150 basis points over 3 month Libor.

PIBS rank pari passu with each other. They are deferred shares of the Society and rank behind the claims against the Society of all subordinated

noteholders, depositors, creditors and investing members of the Society.

The interest rate risk arising from the issuance of fixed rate PIBS has been mitigated through the use of interest rate swaps.



Notes to the Accounts
CONTINUED

CLARITY in numbers

84 2008 ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

The Group operates both defined benefit arrangements and defined contribution arrangements. The principal defined benefit pension arrangement is

the Nationwide Pension Fund. This is a contributory defined benefit arrangement, with two main sections. The final salary section was closed to new

entrants with effect from 1 January 2002. The career average revalued earnings (CARE) section applied to new entrants with effect from 1 January 2002

and was closed to new entrants on 31 May 2007. Since 1 June 2007 new employees are able to join a defined contribution arrangement.

The Portman Building Society Pension and Assurance Scheme was closed to new entrants with effect from 1 October 2001. Employees who joined the

Portman Group after that date were able to join a defined contribution arrangement. The Group also operates other pension arrangements for certain

current and former directors and officers, as well as for one subsidiary company.

The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows:

40 Retirement benefit obligations

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Present value of funded obligations 2,158.8 1,944.7 2,156.1 1,942.0

Fair value of plan assets (2,132.0) (1,781.4) (2,129.6) (1,779.0)

26.8 163.3 26.5 163.0

Present value of unfunded obligations 10.2 6.2 10.2 6.2

Total pension liabilities 37.0 169.5 36.7 169.2

Post retirement healthcare 2.7 2.9 2.7 2.9

39.7 172.4 39.4 172.1

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Current service cost 99.4 95.2 93.5 89.3

Past service cost 3.5 1.5 3.5 1.5

102.9 96.7 97.0 90.8

Capitalised as intangible fixed assets (2.6) (2.5) (2.6) (2.5)

Included in employee costs (note 11) 100.3 94.2 94.4 88.3

Expected return on pension assets (note 3) (141.7) (111.1) (141.7) (111.0)

Pension interest cost (note 4) 113.4 92.1 113.4 92.0

72.0 75.2 66.1 69.3

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

At 5 April 1,950.9 1,833.4 1,948.2 1,831.0

Acquired on transfer of engagements 257.4 - 257.4 -

Current service cost 99.4 95.2 93.5 89.3

Past service cost 3.5 1.5 3.5 1.5

Pension interest cost 113.4 92.1 113.4 92.0

Employee contributions 1.3 1.0 1.3 1.0

Subsidiary undertakings contributions - - 5.6 5.7

Actuarial gains (204.3) (32.7) (204.0) (32.7)

Benefits paid (52.6) (39.6) (52.6) (39.6)

At 4 April 2,169.0 1,950.9 2,166.3 1,948.2

Changes in the present value of defined benefit pension obligations are as follows:

The Group does not charge the net defined benefit cost to the subsidiary undertakings that participate in the defined benefit arrangements. The pension

cost to the subsidiary undertakings equals the contributions payable to the Fund.
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40 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

At 5 April 1,781.4 1,542.8 1,779.0 1,541.0

Acquired on transfer of engagements 244.6 - 244.6 -

Expected return on assets 141.7 111.1 141.7 111.0

Actuarial (losses) (143.7) (31.8) (143.4) (32.1)

Contributions by employer 159.3 197.9 153.4 192.0

Employee contributions 1.3 1.0 1.3 1.0

Subsidiary undertakings contributions - - 5.6 5.7

Benefits paid (52.6) (39.6) (52.6) (39.6)

At 4 April 2,132.0 1,781.4 2,129.6 1,779.0

The actual return on assets was (0.1%) (2007: 5.0%).

The major categories of plan assets for the pension funds are as follows:

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

UK equities 670.8 920.1 669.7 919.0

Non-UK equities 444.0 389.5 443.5 389.0

Bonds 692.1 319.2 691.9 319.0

Property and cash 325.1 152.6 324.5 152.0

2,132.0 1,781.4 2,129.6 1,779.0

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Cumulative actuarial gains at 5 April 98.4 97.5 98.0 97.4

Actuarial gains in the year* 60.6 0.9 60.6 0.6

Cumulative actuarial gains at 4 April 159.0 98.4 158.6 98.0

None of the funds’ assets are invested in the Nationwide Group (2007: nil).

The amounts recognised in respect of pension obligations in the statement of recognised income and expense are as follows:

*In addition an actuarial gain of Group and Society £0.2 million (2007: £0.7 million) was recognised in respect of post retirement healthcare.

Experience gains and losses in respect of pension obligations for the current and the previous years are as follows:

Group Society
2008 2007 2006 2005 2008 2007 2006 2005

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Experience (losses)/gains on plan liabilities (41.1) (6.7) 8.0 23.0 (41.1) (6.7) 8.0 23.0

Changes in actuarial assumptions 245.4 39.4 (220.3) 52.9 245.1 39.4 (219.8) 52.9

Actuarial gains/(losses) on plan liabilities 204.3 32.7 (212.3) 75.9 204.0 32.7 (211.8) 75.9

Experience (losses)/gains on plan assets (143.7) (31.8) 205.4 28.5 (143.4) (32.1) 204.9 28.4

60.6 0.9 (6.9) 104.4 60.6 0.6 (6.9) 104.3
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40 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

IAS 19 required five years of information to be presented, but does not apply retrospectively, therefore figures for 2004 are not disclosed. The present

value of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets including post retirement healthcare for the current and previous years are:

The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

Group Society
2008 2007 2006 2005 2008 2007 2006 2005

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Present value of defined benefit obligation 2,171.7 1,953.8 1,837.0 1,482.8 2,169.0 1,951.1 1,834.6 1,481.0

Fair value of plan assets 2,132.0 1,781.4 1,542.8 1,131.2 2,129.6 1,779.0 1,541.0 1,130.0

Total deficit 39.7 172.4 294.2 351.6 39.4 172.1 293.6 351.0

Group & Society
2008 2007

% %

Discount rate 6.4 5.4

Expected return on plan assets 7.0 7.5

Future salary increases 5.3 4.8

Future pension increases 3.4 2.9

Inflation 3.5 3.0

2008 2007

Retired and non-retired members PNXA 00 BY MC PXA 92 BY SC

To derive the expected long–term rate of return on assets assumption, the Group considered the current level of expected returns on risk free

investments (primarily government bonds), the historical level of the risk premium associated with the other asset classes in which the portfolio is

invested and the expectations for the future returns of each asset class. The expected overall return was then calculated based on the asset allocation at

4 April 2008. This resulted in the selection of the 7.0% assumption as at 4 April 2008 (2007: 7.5%). A deduction is made for the expenses of the fund.

The assumptions on mortality are determined by the following actuarial tables:

2008 2007

Retired members

• Males 26.8 26.0

• Females 28.9 28.9

Non-retired members

• Males 29.0 27.2

• Females 30.2 30.0

The mortality tables used at 4 April 2008 make an allowance for future mortality improvements to be at least 1.0% p.a. for males and 0.5% p.a. 

for females.

The assumptions are illustrated by the following years of life expectancy at age 60:

The Group estimates that its contributions to the defined benefit pension funds during the year ended 4 April 2009 will be £90 million.
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Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

At 5 April 5,295.8 4,825.6 4,413.1 3,714.5

Acquired on transfer of engagements 696.9 - 669.5 -

Merger related bonus to Portman members (328.7) - (328.7) -

Tax on merger related bonus to Portman members 98.5 - 98.5 -

Profit for the year 495.3 463.6 554.4 692.3

Actuarial gains on retirement benefit obligations 60.8 1.6 60.8 1.3

Tax on actuarial gains on retirement benefit obligations (18.4) (0.4) (18.4) (0.4)

Impact of change in deferred tax rate (3.8) - (3.8) -

Transfer from revaluation reserve 7.0 5.4 7.0 5.4

At 4 April 6,303.4 5,295.8 5,452.4 4,413.1

41 General reserve

Movements in the general reserves were as follows:

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

At 5 April 128.2 117.0 127.9 116.8

Acquired on transfer of engagements 7.9 - 7.9 -

Revaluation (decrease)/ increase on land and buildings (18.5) 21.4 (18.0) 21.3

Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax liability on the revaluation of land 

and buildings 10.6 (4.8) 10.4 (4.8)

Transfer to general reserve (7.0) (5.4) (7.0) (5.4)

At 4 April 121.2 128.2 121.2 127.9

42 Revaluation reserve

Movements in revaluation reserves were as follows:

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

At 5 April 40.4 88.8 14.2 46.3

Acquired on transfer of engagements (2.6) - (2.6) -

Net loss from changes in fair value (726.3) (73.2) (662.7) (55.5)

Amounts transferred to income statement on disposal and impairment 93.2 4.2 93.2 4.3

(633.1) (69.0) (569.5) (51.2)

Decrease in tax liability 177.0 20.6 175.1 19.1

At 4 April (418.3) 40.4 (382.8) 14.2

43 Available for sale reserve

Movements in available for sale reserves were as follows:
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Group & Society
2008 2007

£m £m

At 5 April - -

Acquired on transfer of engagements 2.5 -

Amortisation (1.0) -

Movement in deferred tax liability 0.3 -

At 4 April 1.8 -

44 Cash flow hedge reserve

Movements in the cash flow hedge reserve were as follows:

Nationwide does not use cash flow hedge accounting. The cash flow hedge reserve has arisen from the merger with the Portman (see note 51 – Transfer

of engagement). The balance taken on as at 28 August 2007 is being amortised over the appropriate period.

2008 Group Society
Contract Credit risk Contract Credit risk
amount weighted amount weighted

amount amount
£m £m £m £m

Irrevocable undrawn loan facilities 3,824.7 1,116.0 3,632.3 1,067.0
Undrawn formal standby facilities, credit lines and other commitments to lend 16.0 1.6 16.0 1.6

3,840.7 1,117.6 3,648.3 1,068.6

2007 Group Society
Contract Credit risk Contract Credit risk

amount weighted amount weighted 

amount amount

£m £m £m £m

Irrevocable undrawn loan facilities 4,050.9 989.9 3,844.8 940.0

Unpaid share capital of subsidiary company - - 28.3 28.3

Undrawn formal standby facilities, credit lines and other commitments to lend 27.0 2.7 27.0 2.7

4,077.9 992.6 3,900.1 971.0

45 Financial commitments

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Capital commitments
Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided for in the Accounts 44.8 24.9 44.8 24.8

46 Capital and leasing commitments
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Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Leasing commitments
At the balance sheet date, future minimum payments under operating leases 

relating to land and buildings were as follows: 

Amounts falling due:

• Within one year 26.0 22.2 25.5 21.7

• Between one and five years 88.1 67.1 86.6 66.0

• After five years 120.2 109.8 117.7 106.6

234.3 199.1 229.8 194.3

Leasing payments due as lessor
At the balance sheet date, subleasing payments receivable under non-

cancellable subleases 8.0 8.3 8.0 7.5

At the balance sheet date, future minimum lease payments receivable under 

non-cancellable operating leases were as follows:

Amounts falling due:

• Within one year 4.9 3.9 4.8 3.8

• Between one and five years 15.1 10.9 14.7 10.4

• After five years 20.0 11.8 19.9 11.6

40.0 26.6 39.4 25.8

47 Contingent liabilities

On 27 July 2007, following agreement between the UK Office of Fair Trading (OFT) and a number of UK financial institutions, the OFT issued High Court

legal proceedings against those institutions, including Nationwide Building Society, to determine the legal status and enforceability of certain of the

charges applied to their personal current account customers in relation to requests for unauthorised overdrafts. On 24 April 2008, a High Court

judgement was received in respect of phase one of a two step process. The Court’s judgement in respect of this first phase was that (subject to a

possible appeal) the institutions’ current terms and conditions relating to unauthorised overdraft charges are not unenforceable penalties but are

assessable for fairness under the Unfair Terms in Consumer Contracts Regulations 1999. In the specific judgement on Nationwide’s terms and 

conditions for overdrafts the Judge concluded that our current terms are in plain intelligible language.

Phase two will deal with whether the charges are deemed to be unfair. The timetable for the next phase in the test case process is due to be 

considered by the Court at a procedural hearing on 22 May 2008. The onus is on the OFT to decide when to proceed to phase two. It is likely that the

test case process will take some time to conclude, particularly if appeals are pursued by the institutions and/or the OFT. Pending resolution of the test

case, the Financial Services Authority has made a Direction that, subject to certain conditions, the handling of customer complaints on this issue can be

suspended. The Direction was, initially granted until 26 July 2008 but provides that it will be extended unless in the light of prevailing circumstances 

this would be inappropriate. 

The Society continues to assert that its charges are fair and transparent, and given the uncertainty as to the final outcome of the case, no provision in

relation to the outcome of this litigation has been made. Depending on the Court’s determinations, a range of outcomes is possible, some of which could

have a significant financial impact on the Society. The ultimate impact of the litigation on the Society can only be known at its conclusion.

48 Financial instruments

Strategy in using financial instruments

Financial instruments incorporate the vast majority of the Group and Society’s assets and liabilities. Given the dominant position of the Society within the

Group structure, the term ‘Group’ is used in the remainder of this note to cover the activities of both Group and Society. Furthermore since the risks of

the organisation are managed on a Group basis, the risk disclosures have been presented below only on a consolidated basis.

The Group accepts deposits from customers at both fixed and floating interest rates for various periods and seeks to earn an interest margin by investing

these funds in high quality assets – predominantly mortgages. The principal risks which arise from this core activity, and which need to be managed by

the Group, are interest rate risks, credit risks and liquidity risks.

The Group uses derivative instruments to manage various aspects of market risk. However, in doing so it complies with the Building Societies Act 1986

which limits our use of derivatives to the management of changes in interest rates, exchange rates or other factors defined by the Act.

46 Capital and leasing commitments (continued)
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Activity Risk Type of derivative instrument used

Fixed rate savings products and funding Sensitivity to changes in interest rates Interest rate swaps, interest rate futures,

activities in Sterling involving either fixed options and forward rate agreements

rate instruments or instruments with 

embedded options

Fixed rate mortgage lending and investment Sensitivity to changes in interest rates, Interest rate swaps including basis swaps,

activities involving either fixed rate instruments including differential between base rate options and forward rate agreements

or instruments with embedded options and Libor

Investment and funding in foreign currencies Sensitivity to changes in foreign Cross-currency interest rate swaps and 

exchange rates foreign exchange contracts

Investment of liquid resources in debt securities Sensitivity to changes in obligor credit Credit default swaps

risk leading to default

The accounting policy for derivatives and hedge accounting is described in the Statement of Accounting Policies. Where possible fair value hedge

accounting is employed but no use is made of cash flow hedge accounting.

Control of derivatives

The Assets and Liabilities Committee (ALCO) is responsible for setting limits over the use of derivative products for managing exposure to interest rates,

foreign exchange rates and other indices. The Credit Committee sets Group credit policy and regularly monitors and reviews credit exposures arising in

all aspects of Group operations, including derivatives.

All exchange-traded instruments are subject to cash requirements under the standard margin arrangements applied by the individual exchanges. Such

instruments are not subject to significant credit risk. Credit exposures arising on derivative contracts with certain counterparties are collateralised with

cash deposits, to mitigate credit exposures. All Group derivatives activity is contracted with OECD financial institutions.

The principal financial risks to which the Group is exposed are interest rate, credit, foreign exchange, liquidity and funding risk. Each of these is

considered below. Additional information on risk management and control is included in the Business Review.

Interest rate risk

The primary market risk faced by the Group is interest rate risk. The net interest income and market value of the Group’s assets is exposed to

movements in interest rates. This exposure is managed on a continuous basis, within limits set by the Board, using a combination of derivative

instruments and cash instruments such as loans, deposits and bonds.

The Group does not run a trading book and therefore does not have the type of higher risk exposure run by many banking institutions. Given our policy

of hedging fixed rate assets and liabilities back to floating rate, interest rate market value risk arises mainly from the Board’s decision to invest the

Group’s reserves according to a specified fixed rate maturity profile. The level of risk can deviate from this – subject to limits – in particular as a result of

decisions made by the Group’s Treasury department to temporarily deviate from the specified fixed rate maturity profile in the light of market conditions.

The Group uses three metrics to monitor interest rate risk and details of these are set out below. The limits around these three metrics have been set by

ALCO and reflect the Group’s low risk appetite.

Value at Risk (VaR). This is a technique that estimates the potential losses that could occur on risk positions as a result of movements in market rates and

prices over a specified time horizon and to a given level of confidence. In its day to day monitoring Nationwide uses a 10 day horizon and a 99%

confidence level.

The VaR model used by Nationwide incorporates underlying risk factors based on interest rate volatilities and correlations. Potential movements in

market prices are calculated by reference to daily market data from the last two years equally weighted. Exposures against limits are reviewed daily by

management. Actual outcomes are monitored periodically to test the validity of the assumptions and parameters/factors used in the VaR calculation.

48 Financial instruments (continued)

The principal derivatives used in balance sheet risk management are interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements, interest rate options, cross-currency

interest rate swaps, interest rate futures, foreign exchange contracts and credit derivatives. Derivatives are used to hedge balance sheet exposures

arising from fixed rate mortgage lending, fixed rate savings products, funding and investment activities in foreign currencies or involving fixed rate

instruments or instruments with embedded options. Group risk exposures are recorded on the Society’s information systems and monitored accordingly.

The following table describes the significant activities undertaken by the Group, the risks associated with such activities and the types of derivatives

which are typically used in managing such risks. Such risks may alternatively be managed using on balance sheet instruments as part of an integrated

approach to risk management.
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48 Financial instruments (continued)

Average High Low Average High Low

2008 2008 2008 2007 2007 2007

£m £m £m £m £m £m

VaR 37.3 47.9 31.7 24.4 33.8 10.0

Sensitivity analysis (PV01) 1.6 1.9 1.4 1.1 1.5 0.3

Stress testing (PV200: all currencies) 316.5 374.5 272.8 217.2 300.2 65.6

All exposures include investment of the Group’s reserves. The exposures have gone up due to the increase in the balance sheet size, partly as a result of

the Portman merger. In addition, VaR exposures have been affected by a rise in interest rate volatilities during the financial year 2007/08.

Interest rate earnings risk, such as basis risk (the risk of loss arising from changes in the relationship between interest rates which have similar but not

identical characteristics – e.g. LIBOR and Bank of England Base Rate) and prepayment risk (the risk of loss arising from early repayment of fixed rate

mortgages and loans) is also monitored closely and regularly reported to the ALCO.

Credit risk

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk, which is defined as the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due. Impairment

provisions are provided for losses that have been incurred at the balance sheet date (see notes 13 & 18). Significant changes in the economy, or a sector

that represents a concentration in the Group’s portfolio, could result in losses that are different from those provided for at the balance sheet date.

Management therefore, carefully manages its exposure to credit risk.

The Group’s Credit Committees for Retail and Commercial and Treasury are responsible for approving and monitoring the Group’s credit exposures

which they do through formal annual review and approval of the Group’s lending policies. Specialist Lending is reviewed and approved by the 

Retail Credit Committee. Regular monitoring and review of lending is undertaken through detailed management information including the 

performance of credit scoring systems for all retail lending. Formal limits are set and reviewed at individual, segment and portfolio levels based on 

credit exposures split by individual counterparties, geographical location and industry sector. A summary of the minutes of the Credit Committees is

reviewed by the Group Risk Committee.

Prior to advancing funds, an assessment is made of the credit quality of borrowers and other counterparties for all lending to both retail and 

corporate customers. Retail lending is subject to credit scoring and lending policies. Corporate lending is based on counterparty assessment that

includes the use of multiple rating methodologies.

Maximum credit risk exposure at 4 April 2008 was £186.6 billion, (2007: £143.8 billion) which includes the carrying value for all assets 

and commitments. 

The classes of financial instruments to which the Group is most exposed are loans and advances to customers (note 21), loans and advances to banks

(note 17), investment securities – available for sale (note 18), and derivative financial instruments (note 19).

Credit risk - Loans and advances to customers

Our £143.0 billion of loans and advances to customers continues to have a low risk profile. The mix of lending has remained broadly consistent over the

year although, following the merger with Portman, moved slightly away from consumer finance and commercial lending towards residential mortgages. 

Lending remains predominantly concentrated on high quality secured products with residential mortgage lending making up 83.6% (2007: 81.9%),

commercial customers 14.2% (2007: 15.4%), consumer finance 2.0% (2007: 2.7%) and the remaining 0.2% is other lending. Sub-prime lending within

Non-Retail Residential mortgages accounts for just 0.05% of all lending.

Although a valuable guide to risk, VaR needs to be viewed in the context of the following limitations:

• historic data is not necessarily a good guide to future events;

• the use of a 99% confidence level, by definition, does not take account of changes in value that might occur beyond this level of confidence. The VaR

numbers may not encompass all potential events, particularly those that are extreme in nature;

• VaR is calculated on the basis of exposures outstanding at the close of business and therefore does not necessarily reflect intra-day exposures.

Sensitivity analysis (PV01 sensitivity). This is used to assess the change in value of the Group’s current net worth against a one basis point (0.01%)

parallel rise in interest rates. As is the case with VaR, this analysis is done on a daily basis separately for each currency (but with the main risk arising

from Sterling exposures) and in aggregate.

Stress testing (PV200 sensitivity). This is calculated in a similar manner to PV01 but against a much more severe 200 basis point (2.0%) parallel rise in

interest rates. Both PV01 and PV200 numbers are generated and monitored daily.

The average gross exposures (before deduction of the above mentioned specified fixed rate maturity profile) through the reporting period are 

as follows:
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48 Financial instruments (continued)

Loans and advances to customers 2008 2007

£bn % £bn %

Retail – Prime residential mortgages 105.5 73.7 88.7 76.3

Non-Retail – Specialist residential mortgages 14.1 9.9 6.5 5.6

Total residential mortgages 119.6 83.6 95.2 81.9

Commercial Lending 20.3 14.2 17.9 15.4

Consumer Finance 2.8 2.0 3.1 2.7

Other Lending 0.3 0.2 - -

Total 143.0 100.0 116.2 100.0

b) Retail business stream

The Retail portfolio is predominantly made up of £105.5 billion of residential mortgages (2007: £88.7 billion) with £2.8 billion of consumer finance

lending (2007: £3.1 billion). By their nature, our Retail lending books comprise a large number of smaller loans and have low volatility of credit risk

outcomes and are intrinsically highly diversified.

In respect of its Retail book, the Group operates across the whole of the UK with a bias towards the south east of England reflecting the concentration of

branches in that region and historically higher asset value growth trends. As at 4 April 2008 around 36% (2007: 44%) of the Retail mortgage book was

made up of exposures concentrated in the south east.

2008 2007

% %

Loan to value analysis:
Total book

<70% 82 87

70% – 80% 8 7

80% – 90% 7 5

>90% 3 1

Average loan to value of stock (indexed) 43 39

Average loan to value of new business 61 58

New business profile:
First-time buyers 19 19

Home movers 39 31

Remortgagers 37 46

Buy to let 5 4

a) Total residential mortgages

Asset quality of residential mortgages remains excellent and we have retained our clear focus on affordability and loan to value (LTV) ratios. The overall

number of residential mortgages 3 or more months in arrears as a proportion of the book remains very low at 0.36% (2007: 0.31% re-stated). We have

restated 2007 to include as arrears those cases where customers are making an agreed payment for less than the contractual amount. The increase in

this measure arises from the merger with Portman where arrears levels were slightly higher, although well within our risk appetite. Overall, our level of

arrears remains excellent compared with the industry average of 1.21% (2007: 1.01%).

The number of residential properties taken into possession during the year was 400 (2007: 347). This represents only 1.41% (2007: 1.43%) of the total

number of repossessions recorded during the year by the CML against our share of stock of 12.79%. 

The average LTV of residential mortgages is 43% (2007: 39%) whilst the average LTV of new lending was 61% (2007: 58%). The value of residential

property is updated on a quarterly basis to reflect changes in the house price index. Further LTV information and an analysis of our gross residential

mortgage lending during the year by borrower type are set out below:
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The table below provides further information on Retail loans and advances by payment due status:

Collateral held in relation to secured loans that are either past due or impaired is capped to the amount outstanding on an individual loan basis.

In consumer finance, the balance of accounts more than 30 days in arrears has reduced and our performance compared to the industry has 

significantly improved. For Personal Loans and Credit Cards, the table below shows our arrears levels are significantly lower than averages for the

industry (FLA and APACS):

Loans in the analysis above which are less than 3 months past due have collective impairment allowances set aside to cover credit losses on loans which

are in the early stages of arrears.

Impaired Retail assets are further analysed as follows:

2008 2007

Residential Consumer Total Residential Consumer Total

Mortgages Finance Mortgages Finance

£bn £bn £bn % £bn £bn £bn %

Not impaired:

Neither past due nor impaired 103.7 2.6 106.3 98 87.5 2.8 90.3 98

Past due up to 3 months but 

not impaired 1.5 0.1 1.6 2 1.1 0.1 1.2 2

Impaired 0.3 0.1 0.4 - 0.1 0.2 0.3 -

105.5 2.8 108.3 100 88.7 3.1 91.8 100

£22.5 million (2007: £34.7 million) of loans that would be past due or impaired have had their terms renegotiated in the last 12 months.

The increase in the balance of Retail residential mortgages more than 3 months past due is largely due to the Portman merger. Additionally, in 2008, 

we have included as arrears those cases where customers are making an agreed payment for less than the contractual amount.

2008 2007

Residential Consumer Total Residential Consumer Total

Mortgages Finance Mortgages Finance

£m £m £m % £m £m £m %

Impaired status:

Past due 3 to 6 months 190.1 61.5 251.6 58 104.0 68.7 172.7 53

Past due 6 to 12 months 59.4 70.7 130.1 30 34.1 84.4 118.5 36

Past due over 12 months 14.4 30.3 44.7 10 8.5 21.0 29.5 9

Possessions 10.1 - 10.1 2 5.8 - 5.8 2

274.0 162.5 436.5 100 152.4 174.1 326.5 100

Collateral held against Retail residential mortgages 2008 2007

£m £m

Past due but not impaired 1,515.8 1,088.2

Impaired 273.3 152.3

1,789.1 1,240.5

Percentage of accounts more than 30 days in arrears 2007/08 2007/08 2006/07 2006/07

NBS Industry NBS Industry

% % % %

Personal Loans 5.88 11.20 6.12 8.10

Credit Card 4.50 7.99 5.81 8.19
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48 Financial instruments (continued)

c) Non-Retail business stream

The Non-Retail business stream operates in the Specialist Lending and Commercial markets and had total balances of £34.7 billion at the year end

(2007: £24.4 billion). Specialist Lending operates through its two brands, UCB and TMW, primarily in the buy to let and self-certification markets with a

very small exposure to the adverse market. Commercial lending comprises loans secured on commercial property, loans to Registered Social Landlords

and loans advanced under Private Finance Initiatives.

The make up of the Non-Retail portfolio is as follows:

The table below provides further information on Non-Retail loans and advances by payment due status as at 4 April:

Loans in the analysis above which are less than 3 months past due have collective impairment allowances set aside to cover credit losses on loans which

are in the early stages of arrears.

Impaired Non-Retail assets are further analysed as follows:

The increase in the balance of Non-Retail lending more than 3 months past due is largely due to the Portman merger.

£28.2 million (2007: £15.5 million) of loans that would be past due or impaired have had their terms renegotiated in the last 12 months.

2008 2007

£bn % £bn %

Self-certified 5.1 15 3.8 16

Buy to let 8.5 24 2.7 11

Near Prime 0.4 1 - -

Sub Prime 0.1 - - -

Specialist Lending 14.1 40 6.5 27

Commercial Lending 20.3 59 17.9 73

Other Lending 0.3 1 - -

34.7 100 24.4 100

2008 2007

£bn % £bn %

Not impaired:

Neither past due nor impaired 33.6 96 23.4 96

Past due up to 3 months but not impaired 0.9 3 0.8 3

Impaired 0.2 1 0.2 1

34.7 100 24.4 100

2008 2007

£m % £m %

Impaired status:

Past due 3 to 6 months 126.4 53 75.8 43

Past due 6 to 12 months 60.5 25 68.1 38

Past due over 12 months 36.8 15 25.4 14

Possessions 16.8 7 7.7 5

240.5 100 177.0 100

Collateral held against Non-Retail lending 2008 2007

£m £m

Past due but not impaired 819.0 810.8

Impaired 237.8 176.5

1,056.8 987.3
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Collateral held in relation to secured loans that are either past due or impaired is capped to the amount outstanding on an individual loan basis.

Within Specialist Lending of £14.1 billion, 60.2% (2007: 41.8%) of lending is to buy to let customers, 39.3% (2007: 58.2%) is self-certified or near prime

lending and only 0.5% (2007: 0.0%) relates to sub prime lending. Asset quality of these portfolios remains strong. The number of mortgage accounts

more than 3 months in arrears as a proportion of the book is 1.11% (2007: 0.91%) compared to the industry average for all lending of 1.21% (2007:

1.01%). The average LTV is 63% (2007: 55%) whilst the average LTV of new lending over the year was 74% (2007: 71%). We continue to closely monitor

and, where appropriate, refine our lending criteria to ensure existing levels of asset quality are maintained.

Our Commercial loan portfolio of £20.3 billion comprises lending secured on commercial property (“Property Finance”), advanced to Registered Social

Landlords and advanced under the Private Finance Initiative as follows:

2008 2007

£bn % £bn %

Property Finance 12.9 64 11.3 63

Registered Social Landlords 6.3 31 5.6 31

Private Finance Initiative 1.1 5 1.0 6

20.3 100 17.9 100

2008 2007

£bn % £bn %

Retail 3.8 29 2.8 25

Office 3.1 24 2.4 21

Industrial and warehouse 2.0 16 1.3 12

Residential 1.8 14 2.6 23

Owner occupied 1.2 9 0.8 7

Leisure and hotel 0.8 6 0.9 8

Other 0.2 2 0.5 4

12.9 100 11.3 100

Loans to Registered Social Landlords are secured on residential property and loans advanced under the Private Finance Initiative are secured on cash

flows from Government backed contracts. We have never suffered losses on our lending in these markets and there are currently no arrears of three

months or more on these portfolios. Our Property Finance portfolio is well diversified by industry type and by borrower and we have no significant

exposure to development finance. Property Finance lending is on investment property supported by strong tenant cashflows, and is therefore not

immediately exposed to falls in capital value. The proportion of Property Finance cases three months or more in arrears as at 4 April was 0.66%, and

equates to 66 cases (2007: 0.77%, 84 cases).

Property Finance lending is well diversified by industry type and an analysis is provided below:

In terms of counterparty concentration, the largest single Commercial customer, including undrawn commitments, represents only 2% (2007: 2%) of 

the total book.

d) Other lending

Other lending of £0.3 billion relates to a loan to a leading European CLO manager. 

Credit risk – Cash and balances with the Bank of England, loans and advances to banks, investment securities – 
available for sale and derivative financial instruments

Credit risk within our Treasury Division arises from the investments held by Treasury for liquidity and investment purposes and for general business

purposes. This aspect of credit risk is managed by Treasury Division and the Commercial and Treasury Risk function within Risk Management Division.

The Commercial and Treasury Risk team underwrites all new facilities and monitors existing facilities. They also set and monitor compliance with policy

and limits, reporting to the Commercial and Treasury Credit Committee.

The Treasury Risk function monitors exposure concentrations against a variety of criteria including industry sector/asset class and country of risk. 

The Treasury portfolio exposure is well spread across both industry sectors and jurisdictions. Nationwide has no exposure to emerging markets and 

only minimal exposure to non investment grade debt. There is no exposure to hedge funds and the only exposure to US sub prime lending is £4.2 million

notional via CDO’s.
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Treasury assets are held in two portfolios – the liquidity portfolio and the investment portfolio. At 4 April 2008 the liquidity portfolio totalled £27.3 billion

(2007: £14.0 billion) and the investment portfolio totalled £4.3 billion (2007: £3.5 billion). Analysis of each of these portfolios by credit rating and by

location of issuer is given below, with further commentary provided in the Business Review on pages 9 to 27.

Liquidity Portfolio April AAA AA A UK US Europe Other April

2008 2007

£bn % % % % % % % £bn

Loans to financial institutions 2.3 - 76 24 19 4 75 2 0.8

Certificates of deposit and commercial paper 7.3 - 64 36 52 - 47 1 4.6

Bank of England reserve account 2.9 100 - - 100 - - - 0.2

Residential mortgage backed securities (RMBS) 3.5 100 - - 44 - 49 7 2.1

Floating rate notes 6.0 10 46 44 14 4 61 21 4.2

Covered bonds 0.8 93 7 - - 3 91 6 0.6

Gilts 3.3 100 - - 100 - - - -

Qualifying prudential liquidity assets 26.1 43 35 22 49 1 43 7 12.5

Cash and balances with the Bank of England 0.4 100 - - 100 - - - 0.4

Prudential liquidity 26.5 12.9

Clearing accounts 0.2 0.2

Other (including items in transit) 0.6 0.9

Total liquidity portfolio 27.3 14.0

Investment Portfolio April AAA AA A Other UK US Europe Other April

2008 2007

£bn % % % % % % % % £bn

Retail mortgage backed securities (RMBS) 0.3 59 14 27 - 40 59 1 - 0.4

Collateralised loan obligations (CLO) 0.5 100 - - - 26 67 7 - 0.4

Collateralised debt obligations (CDO) 0.1 98 - 2 - - 100 - - -

Credit card backed securities 0.3 100 - - - 49 51 - - 0.2

Commercial mortgage backed securities 0.9 81 16 3 - 55 11 34 - 0.6

US student loan 0.7 99 1 - - - 100 - - 0.7

Corporate bond portfolio 0.2 17 83 - - 37 12 51 - 0.4

Financial institutions including 

subordinated debt 0.6 - 59 37 4 24 33 37 6 0.1

SIVs - - - - - - - - - 0.2

Other corporate bonds 0.4 100 - - - 100 - - - 0.4

Other investments 0.3 42 13 3 42 20 49 28 3 0.1

Total 4.3 70 18 8 4 37 44 18 1 3.5

As at 4 April 2008, 99.9% (2007: 100.0%) of the Treasury portfolio exposure was neither past due nor impaired. There are no assets that would

otherwise be past due or impaired whose terms have been renegotiated. In assessing impairment, the Group evaluates among other factors, the normal

volatility in valuation, evidence of deterioration in the financial health of the investee, industry and sector performance and operational and financing

cash flows. A cumulative impairment loss of £30.8 million (2007: £5.6 million) has been recognised in the general reserve in respect of these assets. 

Collateral held as security for Treasury assets is determined by the nature of the instrument. Loans, debt securities, treasury and other eligible bills are

generally unsecured with the exception of asset backed securities and similar instruments, which are secured by pools of financial assets.

The fair value of derivative assets at 4 April 2008 was £2.4 billion (2007: £1.1 billion). Additional information on these assets is set out in note 19. 

The International Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) Master Agreement is Nationwide’s preferred agreement for documenting derivative activity. 

It is common for a Credit Support Annex (CSA) to be executed in conjunction with the ISDA Master Agreement. Under a CSA, collateral is passed

between parties to mitigate the market contingent counterparty risk inherent in the outstanding positions. The posting of collateral is also used to

reduce the credit exposure arising on sale and repurchase transactions.

Netting arrangements do not generally result in an offset of balance sheet assets and liabilities, as transactions are usually settled on a gross basis. 

The Group’s legal documentation for derivative transactions grants legal rights of set-off for those transactions. Accordingly, the credit risk associated

with such contracts is reduced to the extent that negative mark to market values on derivatives will offset positive mark to market values on derivatives

in the calculation of credit risk, subject to an absolute exposure of zero.
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is not able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due or can do so only at an excessive cost.

The Group liquidity policy is to maintain sufficient liquid resources to cover cash flow imbalances and fluctuations in funding, to retain full public

confidence in the solvency of the Group and to enable it to meet all financial obligations. This is achieved through maintaining a prudent level of liquid

assets, through management control of the growth of business and through wholesale funding facilities.

For each material class of financial liability a maturity analysis is provided in notes 29 to 33. In practice, customer deposits will be repaid later than on

the earliest date on which repayment can be required.

As additional support the Group maintains committed standby facilities. As at 4 April 2008, the Group and Society maintained £0.9 billion of 

committed standby facilities (2007: £1.0 billion), of which £0.4 billion (2007: £0.2 billion) are due to mature within one year.

The table below analyses assets and liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the

contractual maturity date.

2008 2007

Average High Low Average High Low

£m £m £m £m £m £m

VaR 0.2 0.4 0.0 1.1 1.5 0.0

48 Financial instruments (continued)

At 4 April 2008 – Repayable Up to 3 3 – 12 1 – 5 years More than Total
Residual maturity on demand months months 5 years

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Assets
Liquid assets 3,602.6 10,360.7 2,050.6 9,130.3 6,531.9 31,676.1
Loans and advances to customers 1,089.5 838.8 3,191.7 19,271.8 118,411.9 142,803.7
Other assets 278.6 627.0 406.2 1,545.1 1,689.9 4,546.8

Total assets 4,970.7 11,826.5 5,648.5 29,947.2 126,633.7 179,026.6

Liabilities
Shares 94,153.3 1,215.0 15,181.2 3,266.3 - 113,815.8
Amounts owed to banks, customers and 

debt securities in issue 2,756.4 24,817.1 10,384.3 10,281.2 5,309.4 53,548.4
Other liabilities 940.6 57.7 349.3 827.3 176.3 2,351.2
Subordinated liabilities - 315.0 - - 1,743.2 2,058.2
Subscribed capital - - - - 1,244.9 1,244.9

Total liabilities 97,850.3 26,404.8 25,914.8 14,374.8 8,473.8 173,018.5

Net liquidity gap (92,879.6) (14,578.3) (20,266.3) 15,572.4 118,159.9 6,008.1

Treasury portfolio credit mitigation

The Group has credit derivatives in place to cover the credit risk on £182.5 million (2007: £646.0 million) of assets within the available for sale portfolio.

The credit derivatives are with an AA rated European financial institution.

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the Sterling value of, or net income from, assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currency changes as

a consequence of changes to foreign exchange rates.

In addition to commercial loans denominated in Euro, a significant proportion of Treasury funding and investment activity is undertaken in foreign

currencies. Foreign currency exposure is hedged on the balance sheet or by using derivatives to reduce currency exposures to acceptable levels.

In line with the prudential guidance applying to all building societies and after taking account of foreign currency derivatives, the Group has no

substantial net exposure to foreign exchange rate fluctuations or changes in foreign currency interest rates. The ALCO sets limits on the level of exposure

by currency which are monitored daily.

VaR is used to monitor the risk arising from open foreign currency positions. Open currency positions represent the net value of assets, liabilities 

and derivatives in foreign currency. The parameters of the VaR methodology, and frequency of reporting are exactly as described above under Interest

Rate Risk.
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Gross contractual cash flows Repayable Up to 3 3 – 12 1 – 5 years More than Total
on demand months months 5 years

2008 £m £m £m £m £m £m

Shares 94,153.3 1,448.9 15,581.0 3,587.1 - 114,770.3
Amounts owed to banks, customers and 

debt securities in issue 2,756.4 25,296.9 11,163.6 12,371.2 5,973.1 57,561.2
Other liabilities 940.6 235.3 455.3 664.2 248.3 2,543.7
Subordinated liabilities - 326.8 69.9 264.5 1,718.3 2,379.5
Subscribed capital - 6.1 74.0 670.5 1,483.4 2,234.0

Total liabilities 97,850.3 27,314.0 27,343.8 17,557.5 9,423.1 179,488.7

At 4 April 2007 – Repayable Up to 3 3 – 12 1 – 5 years More than Total

Residual maturity on demand months months 5 years

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Assets
Liquid assets 566.5 6,010.4 1,618.7 4,440.9 4,818.2 17,454.7

Loans and advances to customers 1,146.2 725.7 2,919.8 16,810.6 94,336.1 115,938.4

Other assets 225.3 2,423.3 76.3 216.4 1,044.1 3,985.4

Total assets 1,938.0 9,159.4 4,614.8 21,467.9 100,198.4 137,378.5

Liabilities
Shares 82,593.2 755.3 1,913.3 1,533.6 - 86,795.4

Amounts owed to banks, customers and 

debt securities in issue 3,259.0 13,273.2 9,033.7 8,286.8 4,640.5 38,493.2

Other liabilities 747.9 2,277.2 229.7 278.9 429.4 3,963.1

Subordinated liabilities - - - - 1,617.0 1,617.0

Subscribed capital - - - - 1,045.4 1,045.4

Total liabilities 86,600.1 16,305.7 11,176.7 10,099.3 7,732.3 131,914.1

Net liquidity gap (84,662.1) (7,146.3) (6,561.9) 11,368.6 92,466.1 5,464.4

Liquid assets include cash in hand and balances with the Bank of England, loans and advances to banks and available for sale investment securities.

Other assets include derivative financial instruments, fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk, investments in equity shares, property plant and

equipment, investment property, other assets, deferred tax assets, accrued income and expenses prepaid, and assets classified as held for sale.

Other liabilities include derivative financial instruments, fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk, other liabilities, provisions for liabilities and

charges, accruals and deferred income, current tax liabilities, retirement benefit obligations and liabilities directly associated with assets classified as

held for sale.

The Board is responsible for setting limits over the level and composition of liquidity balances. A series of liquidity stress tests is performed each month

to confirm that the limits remain appropriate. ALCO is responsible for setting limits over the level and maturity profile of wholesale funding and for

monitoring the composition of the Group balance sheet.

The following is an analysis of gross contractual cash flows payable under financial liabilities:

In addition to the assets and liabilities shown in the table above, retail commitments as at the year end for the Group stood at £5,573 million and for the

Society £4,288 million. These commitments can be drawn at any time, but have a 6 month expiry from inception.

Commercial commitments for both Group and Society shown in note 45 can be drawn at any time. They have expiry dates that are specific to each

contract and these can be in excess of 5 years. Of the Group commitments outstanding at the year end, £84.2 million have a maturity of less than 3

months, £143.4 million have a maturity of within 3 to 12 months, £2,765.6 million mature within 1 to 5 years and £831.5 million mature after 5 years. 

Of the Society commitments outstanding at the year end, £83.7 million have a maturity of less than 3 months, £143.8 million have a maturity of within 

3 to 12 months, £2,600.9 million mature within 1 to 5 years and £803.9 million mature after 5 years.
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Gross contractual cash flows Repayable Up to 3 3 – 12 1 – 5 years More than Total

on demand months months 5 years

2007 £m £m £m £m £m £m

Shares 82,593.2 799.8 2,000.2 1,676.2 - 87,069.4

Amounts owed to banks, customers and 

debt securities in issue 3,259.0 13,637.2 9,699.7 10,075.2 5,231.0 41,902.1

Other liabilities 747.9 2,434.3 323.6 416.6 417.8 4,340.2

Subordinated liabilities - 5.1 71.1 996.5 1,050.7 2,123.4

Subscribed capital - - 68.4 271.8 1,583.4 1,923.6

Total liabilities 86,600.1 16,876.4 12,163.0 13,436.3 8,282.9 137,358.7

The analysis of gross contractual cash flows above differs from the analysis of residual maturity due to the inclusion of interest accrued at current rates,

for the average period until maturity on the amounts outstanding at the balance sheet date.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

The following table summarises the carrying amounts and fair values of those financial assets and liabilities not presented on the Group balance 

sheets at fair value.

2008 Group Society
Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value

value value
£m £m £m £m

Financial assets
Loans and advances to banks 5,784.1 5,784.1 5,723.6 5,723.6
Loans and advances to customers:

Secured 119,545.3 119,277.4 105,494.7 105,204.6
Unsecured 2,630.2 2,631.6 1,001.8 1,001.8
Commercial 20,628.2 20,448.5 19,549.6 19,362.7

Financial liabilities
Shares 113,815.8 113,827.2 113,815.8 113,827.2
Deposits from banks 11,776.8 11,788.2 11,226.4 11,228.1
Other deposits 4,566.6 4,566.2 7,870.9 7,870.5
Due to customers 3,433.2 3,433.2 732.4 732.4
Debt securities in issue 33,771.8 33,162.2 34,026.0 33,359.9
Subordinated liabilities 2,058.2 2,071.4 2,058.2 2,071.4
Subscribed capital 1,244.9 1,253.8 1,244.9 1,253.8

2007 Group Society

Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value

value value

£m £m £m £m

Financial assets
Loans and advances to banks 1,490.1 1,490.1 1,321.4 1,321.4

Loans and advances to customers:

Secured 95,241.7 94,495.9 88,692.2 87,984.4

Unsecured 2,942.8 2,929.8 933.7 933.7

Commercial 17,753.9 17,700.2 16,843.2 16,790.5

Financial liabilities
Shares 86,795.4 86,748.7 86,795.4 86,748.7

Deposits from banks 3,288.7 3,256.2 2,767.4 2,766.2

Other deposits 3,406.7 3,403.8 11,749.2 11,746.3

Due to customers 2,926.1 2,925.5 945.0 945.0

Debt securities in issue 28,871.7 28,867.4 27,568.1 27,442.5

Subordinated liabilities 1,617.0 1,631.8 1,617.0 1,631.8

Subscribed capital 1,045.4 1,053.9 1,045.4 1,053.9
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a) Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances are net of provisions for impairment. The estimated fair value of loans and advances represents the discounted amount of 

estimated future cash flows expected to be received. Expected cash flows are discounted at current market rates to determine fair value. 

b) Deposits and borrowings

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, which includes non-interest bearing deposits, is the amount repayable on demand. 

The estimated fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits and other borrowings without quoted market price is based on discounted cash flows using

interest rates for new debts with similar remaining maturity.

c) Debt securities in issue

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on quoted market prices. For those notes where quoted market prices are not available, a discounted cash

flow model is used based on a current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term to maturity.

49 Related party transactions

Subsidiary, parent and ultimate controlling party

The Group is controlled by the Nationwide Building Society registered in England and Wales which is also considered to be the ultimate parent. 

Details of subsidiary undertakings can be found in note 23 to these accounts.

Key management compensation

The directors of the Society are considered to be the only key management personnel as defined by IAS 24.

Total compensation for key management personnel for the year by category of benefit was as follows:

Portman Building Society directors’ emoluments are disclosed in note 6 of the Portman completion accounts for the period ending 27 August 2007 

(see Transfer of Engagements Statement of Accounting Policy, page 53). Remuneration policy applied to ex-Portman directors is consistent with existing

directors of Nationwide.

2008 2007

£’000 £’000

Short term employee benefits 5,371 4,532

Post employment benefits 157 95

Other long term benefits 1,264 1,130

Contractual / other settlements - 3,424

Total key management personnel compensation for year 6,792 9,181

48 Financial instruments (continued)
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49 Related party transactions (continued)

Transactions with related parties

A number of transactions are entered into with related parties in the normal course of business. These include loans, deposits and the payment and

recharge of administrative expenses. The volumes of related party transactions, outstanding balances at the year end, and the related income and

expenses for the year are as follows: 

Transactions with key management personnel

Transactions with key management personnel are on the same terms and conditions applicable to other employees within the Group.

A register is maintained by the Society containing details of loans, transactions and arrangements made between the Society or its subsidiary

undertakings and Directors of the Society or persons connected with Directors of the Society.

The register will be available for inspection by members at the Annual General Meeting on 17 July 2008 and during normal office hours at the Society’s

principal office (Nationwide House, Pipers Way, Swindon) during the period of 15 days prior to the meeting.

Transactions with Group companies

Transactions with Group companies arise in the normal course of business. Interest on outstanding loans and deposits accrues at a transfer price rate

agreed between the Society and its subsidiaries. 

Related party transactions

As part of the transitional arrangements prior to the merger, the Society provided a facility to Portman Building Society from 6 August 2007. The total

amount provided was £1 billion, of which £755 million was drawn down. The facility was made on commercial terms.

Society Group & Society
Subsidiaries Key management

personnel
Restated

2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Loans payable to the Society
Loans outstanding at 5 April 8,575.7 8,323.5 1.0 1.4

Acquired on transfer of engagements 6,105.8 - - -

Loans issued during the year 1,591.1 604.8 0.1 0.4

Loan repayments during the year (579.5) (352.6) (0.8) (0.8)

Loans outstanding at 4 April 15,693.1 8,575.7 0.3 1.0

Deposits payable by the Society
Deposits outstanding at 5 April 2,462.7 2,661.8 2.3 1.9

Acquired on transfer of engagements 495.4 - - -

Deposits issued during the year 1,012.9 17.8 1.9 1.8

Deposit repayments during the year (666.7) (216.9) (1.5) (1.4)

Deposits outstanding at 4 April 3,304.3 2,462.7 2.7 2.3

Net interest income
Interest receivable 648.5 385.5 0.1 0.1

Interest expense 216.7 126.1 0.1 0.1

Other income and expenses
Fees and expenses paid to the Society 18.7 24.7 - -

Fees and expenses paid by the Society 0.2 18.7 - -
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50 Notes to the cash flow statements

Group Society
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Non-cash items included in profit before tax

Net increase/(decrease) in impairment provisions (13.8) 47.3 (6.2) 11.2

Impairment losses/(gains) on investment securities 102.2 (4.9) 102.2 (4.9)

Depreciation and amortisation 124.3 124.4 123.3 123.1

Loss/(profit) on sale of property, plant and equipment (1.8) (10.5) (1.8) (1.9)

(Profit) on sale of investment property (1.1) - - -

Interest on subordinated liabilities 90.1 68.8 90.1 68.8

Interest on subscribed capital 76.0 51.0 76.0 51.0

Loss/(gain) on the revaluation of land and buildings 3.2 (0.9) 2.5 (0.3)

(Gain) on the revaluation of investment properties (0.4) (1.7) - (1.7)

Loss/(gain) from derivatives and hedge accounting 30.7 (0.9) 31.6 (2.2)

Profit on sale of subsidiary undertaking (9.5) - (132.9) -

399.9 272.6 284.8 243.1

Changes in operating assets*

Loans and advances to banks (35.3) (10.4) (143.2) (13.3)

Investment securities (3,125.6) 468.2 (3,191.6) 314.4

Derivative financial instruments and fair value adjustment for 

portfolio hedged risk (2,359.1) 389.7 (1,209.6) 370.2

Other financial instruments at fair value (537.0) 159.8 - 21.3

Loans and advances to customers (26,725.7) (14,857.0) (19,445.0) (14,101.3)

Other operating assets 1,350.4 185.6 (9,002.5) (4,144.9)

(31,432.3) (13,664.1) (32,991.9) (17,553.6)

Changes in operating liabilities*

Shares 27,020.4 5,876.8 27,020.4 5,876.8

Deposits from banks, customers and others 9,342.7 1,966.8 10,310.5 5,490.2

Derivative financial instruments and fair value adjustment for 

portfolio hedged risk 528.7 (95.6) 747.8 (150.5)

Debt securities in issue 4,900.1 8,104.1 6,457.9 7,996.4

Insurance contract liabilities (1,228.7) 38.2 - -

Retirement benefit obligations (132.7) (120.2) (132.7) (120.3)

Other operating liabilities 559.2 (45.8) 559.4 128.3

40,989.7 15,724.3 44,963.3 19,220.9

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and balances with the Bank of England 406.5 364.0 398.4 361.1

Loans and advances to other banks repayable in 3 months or less** 5,582.7 1,779.2 5,522.2 1,169.3

Investment securities with a maturity period of 3 months or less 3,222.5 3,479.4 3,222.5 3,479.3

9,211.7 5,622.6 9,143.1 5,009.7

* The changes in operating assets categories of ‘Loans and advances to banks’, ‘Other financial assets at fair value’ and ‘Other operating assets’ include

movements in assets classified as ‘Assets classified as held for sale’ on the balance sheet. The changes in operating liabilities categories of ‘Deposits

from banks, customers and others’, ‘Insurance contract liabilities’ and ‘Other operating liabilities’ include movements in liabilities classified as

‘Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale’ on the balance sheet.

** The loans and advances to banks cash equivalents include amounts classified as ‘Other financial assets at fair value’ and ‘Assets classified as held for

sale’ on the balance sheet.

The Group is required to maintain balances with the Bank of England which, at 4 April 2008, amounted to for the Group and Society £197.4 million

(2007: £152.1 million). These balances are included within loans and advances to banks on the balance sheet and are not included in the Cash and cash

equivalents in the cash flow statement as they are not liquid in nature.
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51 Transfer of engagements

On 28 August 2007, the Society merged with Portman Building Society (PBS). The Group assets and liabilities acquired and associated accounting 

policy alignments are set out below:

Balance sheet PBS Cessation Adjustments PBS take on
Accounts balances

Notes £m £m £m

Assets
Cash and balances with the Bank of England 8.7 8.7
Loans and advances to banks 97.2 97.2
Investment securities – available for sale 2,552.8 2,552.8
Derivative financial instruments 178.3 178.3
Loans and advances to customers 51a 17,010.8 (14.0) 16,996.8
Intangible fixed assets 34.5 34.5
Property, plant and equipment 51b 59.7 4.5 64.2
Accrued income and expenses prepaid 3.8 3.8
Deferred tax assets 51c 4.5 1.5 6.0
Other assets 32.7 32.7
Assets classified as held for sale 6.2 6.2

Total assets 19,989.2 (8.0) 19,981.2

Liabilities
Shares 13,763.2 13,763.2
Deposits from banks 1,052.0 1,052.0
Due to customers 772.5 772.5
Debt securities in issue 2,933.3 2,933.3
Derivative financial instruments 67.9 67.9
Other liabilities 231.4 231.4
Accruals and deferred income 16.9 16.9
Deferred tax liabilities 1.7 1.7
Subordinated liabilities 250.2 250.2
Permanent interest bearing shares 175.9 175.9
Current tax liabilities 51c - (1.2) (1.2)
Retirement benefit obligations 12.7 12.7

Total liabilities 19,277.7 (1.2) 19,276.5

General reserve 711.6 (14.7) 696.9
Revaluation reserve - 7.9 7.9
Available for sale reserve (2.6) - (2.6)
Cash flow hedge reserve 2.5 - 2.5

Total reserves and liabilities 19,989.2 (8.0) 19,981.2

The Consolidated Income Statement of the Group includes merger related administrative expenses of £52.3 million. An additional £10.8 million of

merger related administrative expenses was disclosed in the 2007 Annual Report and Accounts.

Reserves transferred from PBS to the Group were reduced by a £4.7 million charge to income for merger related redundancy costs within the Portman

completion accounts.

The completion accounts of PBS for the period 1 January 2007 to 27 August 2007, audited by KPMG, reported a pre-tax profit of £57.6 million, including

exceptional, merger-related costs of £29.0 million. To calculate an estimate of the results of the business combination from the beginning of the year, 

we estimate that £41.4 million relating to PBS would be added to the pre-tax profit figure as reported in the Group income statement on page 48. Since

28 August, operations of PBS have been combined with the Society, so it is no longer practicable to separate the two sets of results.

Subsequent to the completion of the PBS cessation accounts the categories of Intangible fixed assets, Assets classified as held for sale and Property,

plant and equipment were reviewed in detail, this resulted in the re-classification of certain assets.

Subsequent to the completion of the PBS cessation accounts certain tax assets were re-classified from deferred tax to current tax.



CLARITY in numbers

104 2008 ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

Notes to the Accounts
CONTINUED

51 Transfer of engagements (continued)

Explanation of the adjustments to the take on balances

51a Effective Interest Rate

Both Portman and Nationwide used the effective interest rate method to measure the carrying value of loans and advances to customers; however the

policies in applying the effective interest method differed. An adjustment is required to the carrying value of the Portman Loans and advances to

customers to align them with the policies applied by Nationwide. The impact on the General reserve at take on is a reduction of £14.0 million, with an

associated deferred taxation asset of £2.8 million and corporation tax receivable of £1.2 million.

51b Property Valuation

Portman applied the cost model to all its Property, plant and equipment. Nationwide uses the revaluation model for its branches and non-specialised

buildings. Consequently, the take on balances have been adjusted to reflect the revalued amounts of the former Portman branches and non-specialised

buildings. The impact on the Revaluation reserve is an increase of £11.0 million, less adjustment for the associated deferred tax liability of £3.1 million.

The impact on the General reserve is a reduction of £6.5 million with an associated deferred taxation asset of £1.8 million.

51c Taxation

This reflects the tax consequences of the above adjustments.

52 Capital Management

The Group is subject to the capital requirements imposed by its regulator the Financial Services Authority (FSA). Capital comprises the Group’s 

General reserve, Revaluation reserve, Permanent Interest Bearing Shares (PIBS) and Subordinated debt, subject to various adjustments required by the

capital rules.

During the year the Group complied with the capital requirements set by the FSA. Further details about the Group’s capital position can be found in 

the Business Review on page 17.
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For the year ended 4 April 2008

1 Statutory percentages

Statutory

2008 Limit

% %

Lending limit 13.3 25.0

Funding limit 31.0 50.0

The above percentages have been calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Building Societies Act 1986 as amended by the Building 

Societies Act 1997.

The lending limit measures the proportion of business assets not in the form of loans fully secured on residential property and is calculated as 

(X-Y)/X where:

X = business assets, being the total assets of the Group plus impairment provisions on loans and advances to customers less liquid assets, property,

plant and equipment, intangible fixed assets, investment properties and insurance assets as shown in the Group balance sheet.

Y = the principal of, and interest accrued on, loans owed to the Group which are fully secured on residential property.

The funding limit measures the proportion of shares and borrowings not in the form of shares held by individuals and is calculated as (X-Y)/X where:

X = shares and borrowings, being the aggregate of:

i) the principal value of, and interest accrued on, shares in the Society;

ii) the principal of, and interest accrued on, sums deposited with the Society or any subsidiary undertaking of the Society excluding offshore 

deposits; and

iii) the principal value of, and interest accrued under, bills of exchange, instruments or agreements creating or acknowledging indebtedness and

accepted, made, issued or entered into by the Society or any such undertaking, less any amounts qualifying as own funds.

Y = the principal value of, and interest accrued on, shares in the Society held by individuals otherwise than as bare trustees (or, in Scotland, simple

trustees) for bodies corporate or for persons who include bodies corporate.

The statutory limits are as laid down under the Building Societies Act 1986 as amended by the Building Societies Act 1997 and ensure that the principal

purpose of a building society is that of making loans which are secured on residential property and are funded substantially by its members.

Annual Business Statement
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2 Other percentages

The above percentages have been prepared from the Society's consolidated accounts and in particular:

• ‘Shares and borrowings’ represent the total of shares, deposits from banks, other deposits, amounts due to customers and debt securities 

in issue.

• ‘Gross capital’ represents the aggregate of general reserve, revaluation reserve, available for sale reserve, subscribed capital and 

subordinated liabilities.

• ‘Free capital’ represents the aggregate of gross capital and provisions for collective impairment losses on loans and advances to customers 

less property, plant and equipment and intangible fixed assets.

• ‘Liquid assets’ represent the total of cash in hand and balances with the Bank of England, loans and advances to banks and investment securities.

• ‘Mean total assets’ represent the amount produced by halving the aggregate of total assets at the beginning and end of the financial year.

• ‘Management expenses’ represent the aggregate of administrative expenses, depreciation and amortisation.

2008 2007

% %

As a percentage of shares and borrowings:

• Gross capital 5.6 6.5

• Free capital 5.1 6.0

• Liquid assets 18.9 13.9

Profit for the financial year as a percentage of mean total assets 0.31 0.36

Management expenses as a percentage of mean total assets 0.82 0.86
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3 Information relating to directors and other officers

At 4 April 2008

Directors
Name and date of birth Occupation Date of appointment Other directorships

G M T Howe Company Director 1 January 2005 Gateway Electronics Components 

MA (Cantab) Ltd

Chairman Investec Ltd, South Africa

3 September 1949 Investec plc

Jardine Lloyd Thompson Group plc,

Chairman

G J Beale Chief Executive Officer 5 April 2003 Visa Europe Ltd

BSc, ACA Visa Europe Services Incorporated, 

19 October 1958 United States

W Tudor John Company Director 28 August 2007 Grainger plc

MA (Cantab), D.L. Lehman Brothers Europe Ltd

Joint Deputy Chairman Lehman Brothers International 

26 April 1944 (Europe)

NFTS Foundation

Wales in London Ltd

R P Walther Company Director 1 July 2002 British United Provident 

MA, FIA Association Ltd

Joint Deputy Chairman BUPA Health Assurance Ltd

31 July 1943 BUPA Insurance Ltd

Fidelity European Values plc, 

Chairman

Nationwide Pension Fund 

Nominee Ltd

Nationwide Pension Fund Trustee 

Ltd

Portman Pension Trustees Ltd

S D M Bernau Group Retail Director 1 November 1996 at.home nationwide ltd, Chairman

BSc (Econ), FCIB, MCT Ethos Independent Financial 

15 August 1951 Services Ltd, Chairman

Jubilee Mortgages Ltd

The Minchinhampton Golf Club Ltd

T P Prestedge Group Development Director 28 August 2007 The Nationwide Foundation

12 February 1970

M M Rennison Group Finance Director 1 February 2007 Confederation Mortgage Services 

BA, FCA Ltd

9 August 1960 Exeter Trust Ltd

First Nationwide

LBS Mortgages Ltd

Nationwide Anglia Property 

Services Ltd

Nationwide BES Fund Managers Ltd

Nationwide Housing Trust Ltd

Nationwide Investments (No.1) Ltd

Nationwide Lease Finance Ltd

Nationwide Mortgage Corporation 

Ltd

Nationwide Syndications Ltd  

Staffordshire Financial Services Ltd

The Mortgage Works (UK) plc

UCB Home Loans Corporation Ltd

D J Rigney Group Operations Director 1 October 2006 HM Land Registry

ACMA, MBA Monument (Sutton) Ltd

1 June 1963 Nationwide Anglia Property 

Services Ltd

NBS Fleet Services Ltd

Staffordshire Leasing Ltd
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3 Information relating to directors and other officers (continued)

At 4 April 2008

Directors
Name and date of birth Occupation Date of appointment Other directorships

J A Sutherland Sales & Marketing Director 5 April 2007 Nationwide International Ltd, 

MA, MBA, FCIB, Dip FS Isle of Man

18 June 1956

M P V Wyles Non Retail Director 28 August 2007 Confederation Mortgage Services 

ACII Ltd

25 August 1958 Exeter Trust Ltd

Jubilee Mortgages Ltd

LBS Mortgages Ltd

Ridgeway Mortgage Services Ltd

Staffordshire Financial Services Ltd

The Mortgage Works (UK) plc

UCB Home Loans Corporation Ltd

Mrs S J David Company Director 16 April 2003 Bacardi Global Brands 

MA (Cantab) Incorporated, United States

20 November 1962 Bacardi Global Brands Ltd

Bacardi New Zealand Holdings Ltd, 

New Zealand

Mrs S C Ellen Company Director 28 August 2007 Prudential Health Holdings Ltd

BSc Prudential Health Ltd

15 December 1948 Prudential Health Services Ltd

Prudential Protect Ltd

S T Ellen Consultancy Ltd

St. John Ambulance

West Middlesex University 

Hospital NHS Trust, Chairman

M P Nicholls Company Director 28 August 2007 Burcot House Management Ltd

MA (Cantab), MBA EcoSecurities Group plc, Ireland, 

5 May 1949 Chairman

Northern Investors Company plc

The Evolution Group plc

Venture Production plc, Deputy 

Chairman

D A Ross Building Society Director 1 December 2004 Access Bank (UK) Ltd

BSc, LLB, FCA, ACMA, European Central Counterparty Ltd

CTA (Fellow), FCT

1 August 1950

Ms S Taverne Company Director 16 November 2005 FCE Bank plc

3 February 1960 One Parent Families|Gingerbread, 

Chair

The Design Museum

Vlessing & Taverne Ltd

Documents may be served on any of the directors at Burges Salmon LLP, Narrow Quay House, Narrow Quay, Bristol, BS1 4AH.

Directors’ Service Contracts

The standard terms for new executive director appointments include a contractual notice period of 12 months. Seven executive directors had or have

contracts on this basis; they are (with the date of their contract) S D M Bernau (1 November 1996), G J Beale (3 March 2003), D J Rigney (1 October

2006), M M Rennison (1 February 2007), J A Sutherland (5 April 2007), T P Prestedge (28 August 2007) and M P V Wyles (28 August 2007). One

executive director, B K Simpson, had a contract which was entered into on 16 April 1992, before the current standard terms were introduced, which was

terminable by him on three months’ notice or by the Society on payment of an amount equivalent to two years’ basic salary. Mr Simpson retired from

the Board on 5 May 2007.

Directors’ Share Options

No director or other officer, including connected persons, has any rights to subscribe for shares in, or debentures of, any connected undertaking of 

the Society.



3 Information relating to directors and other officers (continued)

At 4 April 2008

Officers
Name Occupation Directorships

A J Alexander Divisional Director Confederation Mortgage Services Ltd

ACA (Finance) Exeter Trust Ltd

Jubilee Mortgages Ltd

Maple Mortgage Holdings Ltd

Maple Mortgage Securities No. 1 plc

Nationwide Healthcare Trustee Ltd

Nationwide Pension Fund Nominee Ltd

Nationwide Pension Fund Trustee Ltd

NBS Fleet Services Ltd

Portman Pension Trustees Ltd

Staffordshire Financial Services Ltd

R T Bailey Divisional Director The New Swindon Company Ltd

DMS (Insurance & Investments)

D Brumby Divisional Director

MBA (Business Systems Transformation)

M C A Carter Divisional Director Nationwide International Ltd, Isle of Man

(Mortgages & Savings)

L J Coleman Divisional Director First Nationwide

BA (Hons), MBA, ACIB, AMCT (Treasury) Nationwide Investments (No.1) Ltd

Nationwide Lease Finance Ltd

M J Gibbard Divisional Director LBS Mortgages Ltd

BSc, FCA, MCT (Risk Management)

M J Hodsdon Divisional Director

ACIB (Central Retail)

G P Hughes Divisional Director

(Retail Network)

M W Humphreys Divisional Director The Mortgage Works (UK) plc

BSc, PhD (Information Technology) UCB Home Loans Corporation Ltd

M R Jenkins Divisional Director at.home nationwide ltd

BA (Hons), FCA, DIPL (Commercial) Longwide Ltd

Nationwide BES Fund Managers Ltd

Nationwide Housing Trust Ltd

Nationwide Lease Finance Ltd

Nationwide Mortgage Corporation Ltd

Nationwide Syndications Ltd

R Johnston Divisional Director

LLB, F Col, ACII (Legal & Compliance)

T K Kaye Divisional Director

MBA (Change Management)

P Leydon Divisional Director

ACIB (Intermediaries)

Mrs M R Mason Divisional Director

(Member Account Administration)
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3 Information relating to directors and other officers (continued)

At 4 April 2008

Officers
Name Occupation Directorships

A McQueen Divisional Director Confederation Mortgage Services Ltd

(Specialist Lending) Exeter Trust Ltd

Jubilee Mortgages Ltd

LBS Mortgages Ltd

Staffordshire Financial Services Ltd

The Mortgage Works (UK) plc

UCB Home Loans Corporation Ltd

S G Nowell Divisional Director

(Business Protection)

Miss A J Robb Divisional Director

BSc (Hons), FCA (Group Strategy & Planning)

Mrs M M Taylor Divisional Director The Nationwide Foundation

(Corporate Affairs)

J R Wood Divisional Director Aldbury Housing Association

(Consumer Finance) Nationwide Pension Fund Nominee Ltd

Nationwide Pension Fund Trustee Ltd

Nationwide Trust Ltd

Portman Pension Trustees Ltd

J D Wrighthouse Divisional Director Nationwide Healthcare Trustee Ltd

BSc (Hons), MA, CFCIPD (Human Resources) Nationwide Pension Fund Nominee Ltd

Nationwide Pension Fund Trustee Ltd

Portman Pension Trustees Ltd
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